N 7
e HARRIS
U CE '\.'l'!‘[i: ; The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Mental Health and IDD 9401 Southwest Freeway Houston, TX 77074
Transforming Live Board ROOm #1 09

Full Board Meeting
August 27, 2024
8:30 am

|. DECLARATION OF QUORUM
[l. PUBLIC COMMENTS

lll. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. Approve Minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting Held on
Thursday, July 23, 2024
(EXHIBIT F-1)

I\VV. BOARD CHAIR’S REPORT
V. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

VI. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ACTIONS

A. Governance Committee Reports and/or Action
( J. Lykes, Chair)

B. Resource Committee Report and/or Action
(G. Womack, Chair)

Quality Committee Report and/or Action
(R. Gearing, Chair)

Program Committee Report and/or Action
(B. Hellums, Chair)

. Foundation Report and/or Action
(N. Hurtado, Chair)

1. Board Room Designation
(EXHIBIT F-2)

VII. CONSENT AGENDA

A. FY'24 Year-to-Date Budget Report-July
(EXHIBIT F-3)

B. August 2024 Contracts Renewals Over 250K
(EXHIBIT F-4 )

C. August 2024 Contract Amendments over 250K
(EXHIBIT F-5)

D. August 2024 Interlocal Agreement
(EXHIBIT F-6)

E. Corporate Card
(EXHIBIT F-7 )

F. Development and Management for Mental Health and IDD Services
Waiver/Interest List
(EXHIBIT F-8)

o 0O

m



. Drug and Alcohol Testing Pre-Employment
(EXHIBIT F-9 )

. Drug-Free Workplace
(EXHBIIT F-10)

. Employee Counseling, Supervision, Progressive Discipline, and
Termination
(EXHIBIT F-11)

. Employment Eligibility Verification for Workers in the United States
(EXHIBIT F-12)

. Guidelines for The Use of Purchase Orders for Goods and Non-
Community Services
(EXHIBIT F-13)

. Incident Response Policy
(EXHIBIT F-14)

. Information Security Policy
(EXHIBIT F-15)

. Least Restrictive Interventions and Management of Aggressive
Behavior
(EXHBIIT F-16)

. Off-Premises Equipment Usage
(EXHBIIT F-17 )

. Payment of Accrued Leave Upon Separation
(EXHIBIT F-18)

. Performance Reporting and Monitoring of Service Contracts
(EXHIBIT F-19 )

. Pharmacy Services and Outpatient Prescription Purchase Plan
(EXHIBIT F-20)

. Professional Practice Evaluation Policy
(EXHIBIT F-21 )

. Sexual Harassment Policy
(EXHIBIT F-22)

. The Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and/or Services
(EXHBIT F-23 )

. The Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and/or Services Dollar
Limit Threshold & Requirements
(EXHIBIT F-24)

. The Use of Service and Assistance Animals in the Harris Center
Facilities Pertaining to Patients and Visitors
(EXHIBIT F-25)

. Vehicle Operations
(EXHIBIT F-26 )

. Workforce Member Network Intemet Use Policy



(EXHIBIT F-27 )

Z. Accident Reporting Policy
(EXHIBIT F-28)

AA. Crisis Stabilization Unit- Workplace Violence Prevention
(EXHIBIT F-29 )

AB. Delegation of Medical Acts for Nurses, Licensed Vocational Nurses,
Licensed Social Workers, and Unlicensed Staff
(EXHIBIT F-30)

AC. Drug Diversion Reporting and Response Policy
(EXHIBIT F-31)

AD. Harris Center Disaster & Emergency Response Plan
(EXHIBIT F-32)

AE. Out-of-State Employment
(EXHIBIT F-33)

AF. Pharmacy Hazardous Drugs Policy
(EXHIBIT F-34 )

AG. Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee Policy
(EXHIBIT F-35)

AH. Pharmacy Staff Training Policy
(EXHIBIT F-36 )

Al. Tenant Selection Policy
(EXHIBIT F-37 )

AJ. Bylaws of The Professional Review Committee of The Harris Center
for Mental Health and IDD with Signature
(EXHIBIT F-38 )

AK. Cash Receipts & Bank Deposits
(EXHIBITF-39)

AL. Cellular Phone Distribution and Management
(EXHIBIT F-40 )

AM. Center-related Meeting Expense
(EXHIBIT F-41)

AN. Charity Care Policy
(EXHIBIT F-42 )

AO. Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/ Individual Health Information
(EXHIBIT F-43 )

AP. Disposal of Fixed Assets
(EXHIBIT F-44)

AQ. Dues and Membership Fees
(EXHIBIT F-45)

AR. Infection Control Plan/Airborne Precautions
(EXHIBIT F-46 )



AS. Investment Policy
(EXHIBIT F-47 )

AT. IRB Research Procedures and the Committee for the Protection of
Human Subjects
(EXHIBIT F-48)

AU. Moonlighting
(EXHIBIT F-49 )

AV. Pharmacy and Unit Medication/Drug Inventory
(EXHIBIT F-50 )

AW. Professional Review Committee
(EXHIBIT F-51)

AX. Signature for Authorization
(EXHIBIT F-52 )

AY. Travel Policy
(EXHIBIT F-53 )

AZ. Whistleblower
(EXHIBIT F-54)

BA. Writing Off Self Pay Balances
(EXHIBIT F-55 )

- BB. Crisis Stabilization Unit-Workplace Violence Prevention Plan
(EXHIBIT F-56 )

BC. FY2025 Budget Review
( Stan Adams)

BD. FY 2025 Capital Budget Review
(Stan Adams)

BE. Human Resource Insurance Update
(Joseph Gorczyca)

BF. Commercial Insurance Renewal
(Eunice Davis)
Vill. REVIEW AND TAKE ACTION

A. Board Room Designation
(EXHIBIT F-57 Natali Hurtado)

B. FQHC Update
(Stanley Williams)

C. FY2025-FY2027 Strategic Plan
( EXHIBIT F-58 Wayne Young)

D. Capital Bond Issuance Update
(Wayne Young)

IX. REVIEWAND COMMENT

A. Legislative Priorities
(EXHIBIT F-59 Amanda Jones)



X. EXECUTIVE SESSION

 As authorized by §551.071 of the Texas Government Code,
the Board of Trustees reserves the right to adjourn into
Executive Session at anytime during the course of this meeting
to seek legal advice from its attorney about any matters listed
on the agenda.

¢ In accordance with §§551.071 and 551.074 of the Texas
Government Code, discussion of a personnel matter and
contemplated litigation in Case 4:23-cv-00297 Christian
Thompson v. The Harris Center for Mental Health & IDD.
Kendra Thomas, General Counsel and Bijul Enaochwo,
Assistant General Counsel-Legal Services

* In accordance with §§551.071 and 551.074 of the Texas
Government Code, discussion of a personnel matter and
contemplated litigation EEOC Charge No. 460-2024-00011,
Jimaisha Yett v. the Harris Center for Mental Health & IDD.
Kendra Thomas, General Counsel

* In accordance with §551.071 of the Texas Government Code,
to seek legal advice related to the FQHC application process
and the co-applicant agreement. Kendra Thomas, General
Counsel

* In accordance with §§551.071 and 551.072 of the Texas
Government Code, to consult with attorney about the due
diligence related to the potential acquisition of real property for
a youth residential program. Wayne Young, CEO and Ernest
Savoy, Assistant General Counsel-Contract Services

Xl. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION

Xil. CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION AS ARESULT OF THE EXECUTIVE
SESSION

Xlll. INFORMATION ONLY

A. Practical Steps to Integrating NMDOH Screening and Referral
Program
(EXHBIIT F-60 )

B. Restructuring Medicare Payments to Address Homelessness Article
(EXHIBIT F-61)

XIV. ADJOURN

Veronica Franco, Board Liaison
Robin Gearing, Ph.D., Chair, Board of Trustees
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD




EXHIBIT F-1



THE HARRIS CENTER for
Mental Health and IDD

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING

This is an official record of the Board of Trustees, The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD, an Agency
of the State, established by the Harris County Commissioners Court under provisions of Chapter 534 of the
Health and Safety Code of the State of Texas.

PLACE OF MEETING: Conference Room 109
9401 Southwest Freeway
Houston, Texas 77074

TYPE OF MEETING: Regular

DATE: July 23, 2024

TRUSTEES

IN ATTENDANCE: Dr. Robin Gearing, PhD-Chair

Mr. Jim Lykes, Vice Chairperson
Dr. Lois Moore, Vice Chairperson
Mrs. Bonnie Hellums

Mr. Gerald Womack

Dr. Luis A. Fernandez-Wische
Mrs. Natali Hurtado

Dr. Max Miller, Jr.

Sheriff Ed Gonzalez
TRUSTEES ABSENT: None
L Declaration of Quorum

Dr. Robin Gearing, Chair, called the meeting to order at 8:33 a.m. noting that a quorum of the
Board was in attendance.

II. Public Comments-
There were no public comments.

III. Approval of Minutes
MOTION BY: WOMACK SECOND: MILLER, JR.

With unanimous affirmative votes
BE IT RESOLVED the Minutes of the Regular Board of Trustees meeting held on Thursday,
June 27, 2024 as presented under Exhibit F-1, are approved.

IV.  Board Chair’s Report
V. Chief Executive Officer’s Report was provided by CEO Wayne Young
Mr. Young provided a Chief Executive Officer report to the Board.
Board of Trustees
July 23, 2024

MINUTES
Page 1 of 6



VI. Committee Reports and Action were presented by the respective chairs:

A. Audit Committee Report and/or Action-J. Lykes
Dr. Gearing provided an overview of the topics discussed and the decisions made at the
Audit Committee meeting on July 23, 2024.

B. Resource Committee Report and/or Action-G. Womack, Chair
Mr. Womack provided an overview of the topics discussed and the decisions made at the
Resource Committee meeting on July 23, 2024.

C. Quality Committee Report and/or Action-R. Gearing, Chair
Dr. Gearing provided an overview of the topics discussed and the decisions made at the
Quality Committee meeting on July 23, 2024.

D. Program Committee Report and/or Action-B. Hellums, Chair
Dr. Gearing provided an overview of the topics discussed and the decisions made at the
Program Committee meeting on July 23, 2024.

E. Foundation Report and/or Action-N. Hurtado, Chair
Mrs. Hurtado provided an overview of the topics discussed and the decisions made at
the Foundation Committee meeting.

VII. Consent Agenda
A. FY'24 Year-to-Date Budget Report-June

MOTION: LYKES SECOND: WOMACK

With unanimous affirmative votes

BE IT RESOLVED the FY’24 Year-to-Date Budget Report-June as presented under Exhibit
F-2, are approved.

B. July 2024 New Contracts Over 250K

MOTION BY: LYKES SECOND: WOMACK

With unanimous affirmative votes

BE IT RESOLVED the July 2024 New Contract Over 250K as presented under Exhibit F-3,
are approved.

C. July 2024 Renewals Over 250K

MOTION BY: LYKES SECOND: WOMACK

With unanimous affirmative votes

BE IT RESOLVED the July 2024 Contract Renewals Over 250K as presented under Exhibit
F-4, are approved.

D. July 2024 Amendments Over 250K
MOTION BY: LYKES SECOND: WOMACK

With unanimous affirmative votes

Board of Trustees
July 23, 2024
MINUTES

Page 2 of 6



BE IT RESOLVED the July 2024 Amendments Over 250K as presented under Exhibit F-5,
are approved.

E. July 2024 Interlocal Agreements
MOTION BY: LYKES  SECOND: HELLUMS

Dr. Fernandez recused himself from the discussion and vote on the following Interlocal
Agreements due to conflict of interests:
o Interlocal Agreement #7 Harris Center and Harris County Hospital District
o Interlocal Agreement #8 Harris Center and Harris County Hospital District
¢ Interlocal Agreement #15 Harris Center and Univ. of Texas Health Science
Center
o Interlocal Agreement #16 Harris Center and Univ. of Texas Health Science
Center

With unanimous affirmative votes
BE IT RESOLVED the July 2024 Interlocal Agreements as presented under Exhibit F-6,
are approved.

F. Pharmacy Inventory Services RFP
MOTION BY: LYKES SECOND: WOMACK

With unanimous affirmative votes
BE IT RESOLVED the Pharmacy Inventory Services RFP as presented under Exhibit F-7,
are approved.

G. FY25 Compliance Workplan

MOTION BY: LYKES SECOND: WOMACK

With unanimous affirmative votes

BE IT RESOLVED the FY25 Compliance Workplan as presented under Exhibit F-8, are
approved.

H. Internal Audit FY2024 Q2/Q3 Reports

MOTION BY: LYKES SECOND: WOMACK

With unanimous affirmative votes

BE IT RESOLVED the Internal Audit FY2024 Q2/Q3 Reports as presented under Exhibit
F-9, are approved.

Board of Trustees
July 23, 2024
MINUTES

Page 3 of 6



VII. Review and Take Action

A. Committee Appointments- Consistent with his authority as Board Chair, Dr. Gearing
revised Board members’ assignments to the Program Committee. Dr. Gearing reduced
the membership of the Program Committee from five Board members to three Board
members. The following Board members are now members of the Program Committee:

Program Committee
Mrs. B. Hellums-Chair

Dr. L. Moore-Member
Dr. L. Fernandez-Member

B. Employee Engagement and Communications Policy-Dr. Gearing, Board Chair requested
to enter into Executive Session pursuant to Section 551.071 to seek legal advice from its
counsel related to the Employee Engagement and Communication Policy at 9:52am..

Reconvene into Open Session- The Board reconvened into Open Session at 10:47am.

MOTION: Mrs. Hellums moved and strongly suggested the Board approve and pass the
Continuing Employee Communications and Engagement that has been drafted and presented
today with the changes from the last time the Board made this motion. Mrs. Hellums stated it
is really important for everyone to understand that there are two major commitments of this
organization. One is to take care of the mental health problems of our community and the
other one is to care for and bless our employees. Mrs. Hellums stated we have discussed in
great length here how important that is and the purpose behind us accepting the Continuing
Employee Communications policy.

Dr. Gearing stated certainly appreciates all of the work that everyone has done in trying to get
the voices of every one of all employees in making this best document we can have at any one
time. We certainly want to be conscientious, and we do not want to limit any employees’ right
to form or join any organization. The Board of Trustees believes that all employees have a
right to join any union as they wish to form. The Board passed two resolutions on this issue.
We absolutely and fully support it as a Board and have done that twice unanimously. But
putting a provision on what percentage might be or not be a union is beyond any legal concerns
or issues or lawfulness because it raises the issue of does this limit employees to what
organizations they choose. At the end of the day, the Board does not want to limit our
employees. We want employees not to be limited but have the right to join any of them, any
one that might emerge and we want to give that opportunity and not have them limited. We
think this is a thoughtful policy that takes in consideration so many constituents, hundreds of
voices and this will be looked at again every year as part of our Governance and as we
continue to try and make it the best document it can be to represent our commitment to the
agency and to each and every employee.

SECOND:  Mrs. N. Hurtado

Board of Trustees
July 23, 2024
MINUTES

Page 4 of 6



With unanimous affirmative votes,
BE IT RESOLVED the Employee Engagement and Communication Policy is approved.

XI. Review and Comment
A.Finance Primer Part Two-Stan Adams and David Weden presented the Finance Primer
Part Two to the Full Board.

XII. Entered into executive session-Board Chair Dr. Gearing announced the Board would
convene an Executive Session at 11:34 am for the following reasons:

e As authorized by §551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Board of Trustees
reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this
meeting to seek legal advice from its attorney about any matters listed on the agenda.

¢ In accordance with §551.074 of the Texas government Code, discussion of a personnel
matter. Kendra Thomas, General Counsel

e In accordance with §§551.071 and 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, discussion of a
personnel matter and contemplated litigation in Case 4:23-cv-00297 Christian Thompson
v. The Harris Center for Mental Health & IDD. Kendra Thomas, General Counsel

e In accordance with §§551.071 and 551.072 of the Texas Government Code, to consult with
attorney about the due diligence related to the potential acquisition of real property.
Wayne Young, CEO, Stanley Adams, CFO and Kendra Thomas, General Counsel

XIII. Reconvene into Open Session
Dr. Gearing reconvened the meeting into Open Session at 1:04 pm.

XIX. Consider and take action as a result of the executive session
1. In accordance with §§551.071 and 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, discussion of
a personnel matter and contemplated litigation in Case 4:23-cv-00297 Christian Thompson
v. The Harris Center for Mental Health & IDD. Kendra Thomas, General Counsel

MOTION: Mrs. B. Hellums moved The Harris Center Board of Trustees authorize
the CEO to negotiate the settlement of an employment claim styled, Christian
Thompson vs. the Harris Center in accordance with the terms discussed during
Executive Session.

SECOND: Dr. M. Miller, Jr. and Dr. L. Moore

2. Inaccordance with §§551.071 and 551.072 of the Texas Government Code, to consult with
attorney about the due diligence related to the potential acquisition of real property. Wayne
Young, CEO, Stanley Adams, CFO and Kendra Thomas, General Counsel.

Board of Trustees
July 23, 2024
MINUTES

Page 5 of 6



MOTION: Dr. R. Gearing moved The Harris Center Board of Trustees adopt a
resolution empowering and authorizing the CEO to negotiate and execute a Real
Estate Acquisition Agreement and any other contracts and documents, in the name
and on behalf of the Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD, and perform all of its
obligations under the agreement that shall be legally necessary, advisable or
appropriate to effectuate and complete the Harris Center’s acquisition of the
following properties:

3809 Main Street, Houston, TX 77002

1104 Alabama, Houston, TX 77004

3801 Fannin, Houston, TX 77004

3810 Fannin, Houston, TX 77004

3816 Fannin, Houston, TX 77004

3813 Fannin, Houston, TX 77004

3812 Fannin, Houston, TX 77004

SECOND: N. Hurtado
The motion passed with unanimous affirmative vote. On behalf of the Harris Center Board of
Trustees, Dr. Gearing signed a written Resolution stating the same.
XV. ADJOURN
MOTION: FERNANDEZ SECOND: MOORE

Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes.
The meeting was adjourned at 1:08 PM

Respectfully submitted,

Veronica Franco, Board Liaison
Dr. Robin Gearing, Chair, Board of Trustees
The HARRIS CENTER for Mental Health and IDD

Board of Trustees
July 23, 2024
MINUTES

Page 6 of 6



EXHIBIT F-2



Docusign Envelope |1D: 01 D36F76-D558-43B3-B47A-1E70B89701BF Page 13 of 319

O e The Harris Center Foundation for Mental Health & IDD
AnRnlS 9401 SW Freeway, Houston, Texas 77074

W/ W CENTER

Foundation

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Patricia “Gail” Bray, PhD August 8, 2024
Chair

Judge Marc Carter, JD
Vice Chair Dear Chairman Gearing and Members of The Harris Center Board of Trustees,

Jenny Meyer, MBA

Secretary The Harris Center Foundation Board of Directors respectfully requests consideration

for naming the Board Room at 9401 Southwest Freeway for David M. Feldman.
Lucindra Campbell-Law,
PhD Anyone with long service to The Harris Center knew Dave. He filled many roles
during more than three decades of service to the Center and the Foundation. In his last meeting
as Chair of the Foundation, Dave shared that he was most proud of three things. 1) His service
Lily Chen Foster as a Captain in the Army. 2) His service as City Attorney with Mayor Annise Parker. 3) His
service on the Foundation Board of Directors. Service was sacred to Dave and his service
epitomizes dedication to our community and his personal passion and compassion for

Natali Hurtado individuals served by The Harris Center. As is true for many of us, this dedication was

Harris Center Board of personal.

Trustees, Liaison.

Robert M. Eury

Tony Solomon, MBA

Dave’s work with The Harris Center began in the late 1980s at a challenging time for
The Mental Health and Mental Retardation Authority of Harris County (MHMRA). Brought

DIRECTORS EMERITI in as outside counsel, Dave served an important role working with the Board and Staff at a
_ time of transition. His continued service included Board training and assisting with staffing
Robert Corrigan, Jr, JD needs, including the hiring of Executive Director, Dr. Steven B. Schnee in 1992. Dave’s

service as outside counsel continued. Dr. Schnee hired Ms. Jeanne Mayo to serve as in-house
General Counsel. Legal issues were taken to trial and not a single case was lost.

Alan Helfman

Jeanne Mayo, MS, JD

Steven B. Schnee, PhD Dave continued to represent the Agency through the 1990s assisting with vendor
disputes, employment matters, board training, and more. The Agency mission expanded and
Marshenell Sells, JD The Harris Center (MHMRA at the time) served as an ever-greater resource for those in need.
Baxid Eeldman, Jo; B).f' 2010, Dave’s expertise and experience in the Harris County legal community made him a
posthumously prime candidate to serve the City of Houston as City Attorney under Mayor Annise Parker. He

took on that assignment with the same vigor and dedication he provided to the Agency. His
son, Cris Feldman, stepped in as outside counsel to the Agency while Dave served in this role.
Cris called upon his father during that time for advice and assistance.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Susan Fordice In 2012, Cris opened the Feldman Firm. A few years later, following his service as
City Attorney, Dave was proud to join the practice of Feldman & Feldman as the second
Feldman on the letterhead. Dave was able to resume his work in support of the Agency,
working closely with Dr. Schnee, Ms. Mayo and new Board Chair Mayor Jon Keeney. This
opportunity for service included the retirement of Dr. Schnee and Ms. Mayo and the hiring of
Mr. Wayne Young.

www.theharriscenterfoundation.org




Docusign Envelope ID: 01D36F76-D558-4383-B47A-1E70B89701BF Page 14 of 319

QP [T The Harris Center Foundation for Mental Health & IDD
CLANULS 9401 SW Freeway, Houston, Texas 77074

4 s CLINTER

Foundation

Exploration for creating a foundation was viewed as a natural and needed progression in the early 2000s, and
Dave was integral to the creation of Friends of MHMRA, which became known as The Harris Center Foundation for
Mental Health and IDD. He served on the Board of Directors from inception in 2006. Dr. Schnee led the Foundation
from 2006 through 2021. Dave was the first Chair of the Foundation Board of Directors following Dr. Schnee’s
tenure. His charge was to transition from Board membership with long service to a community-led Board. Long-
serving Board members accepted term limits or Director Emeritus status and a new Board was recruited and seated in
2022. Mrs. Gwen Emmett followed Dave as Chair of the Board in 2023. With the implementation of term limits,
Dave’s retirement from the Board was anticipated at calendar year end 2023. The Board and staff of the Foundation
were shocked and saddened to learn of his unexpected passing on July 23, 2023. We lost a leader, a friend, and the
opportunity to appropriately recognize and thank him for his ever present, passionate and prolific service to the Harris
Center and the Foundation. Many of us attended his Celebration of Life at the Gallagher Club at Minute Made Park.
Dave’s obituary invited memorial gifts for The Harris Center Foundation.

The Feldman family supports the request and son Cris offered that Dave’s early years in Brooklyn formed
Dave’s passion for helping with the challenges of those with less. More than three decades of service as in-house
counsel and volunteer are a testament to his passion for the mission and his commitment to the people it serves.
The Harris Center Foundation Board of Directors respectfully invites consideration and approval of this request.

Sincerely,
DocuSigned by: Signed by:
Patricia. Cail, Bray udse Mare (arter
N 353096§FCQ10403 i CBO03604AAAEAF1...
Patricia “Gail” Bray, PhD Judge Marc Carter (ret.)
Chair Vice Chair

cc: Wayne Young, President & CEO, Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Natalie Hurtado, Trustee & Foundation Liaison, Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Cris Feldman, Feldman & Feldman
Members, Foundation Board of Directors

www.theharriscenterfoundation.org



EXHIBIT F-3



Page 15 of 319

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Results of Financial Operations and Comparison to Original Budget
July 31, 2024

Fiscal Year 2024



Page 16 of 319

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Resource Committee
Board of Trustees
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Center)

The Report on Results of Financial Operations and Comparison to Original Budget (the Report) submitted herewith was prepared by The Center's Accounting
Department.

Responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, and fairness of presentation of the presented data rests with The Center, the Chief Financial Officer and the
Accounting department.

We believe the Report, as presented, is materially accurate and is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of
operations of The Center.

The Center's accounting records for its general fund are maintained on a modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized in
the period when they become both measurable and available, and expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable.

The Report submitted herewith was prepared on a budgetary basis which is not in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles nor with financial
reporting principles set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The Report has not been audited by an independent auditor.

Stanley Ad
Chief Financial Officer



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Results of Financial Operations and Comparison to Original Budget
July 31, 2024
Non-GAAP / Budgetary-Basis Reporting
Unaudited - Subject to Change

Page 17 of 319
Page 3

| For the Month Ended |
Original Budget Actual Variance
Revenues S 28,619,834 S 42,382,769 13,762,935
Expenditures 28,536,501 38,588,966 (10,052,465)
Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures S 83,333 S 3,793,803 3,710,470
Other Sources (Uses)
Debt payment S (83,333) S - 83,333
Capital Outlay - (1,086,089) (1,086,089}
Other Sources (Uses) - 778 778
Change in Fund Balance/Net Position $ - $ 2,708,492 2,708,492
| Fiscal Year to Date |
Original Budget Actual Variance
Revenues S 314,818,179 S 328,119,381 13,301,202
Expenditures 313,901,512 322,667,310 (8,765,798)
Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures S 916,667 $ 5,452,071 4,535,404
Other Sources (Uses)

Debt payment S (916,667) $ - 916,667
Capital Outlay - (6,680,865) (6,680,865)
Other Sources (Uses) - 163,742 163,742
Change in Fund Balance/Net Position S - S {1,065,052) (1,065,052)




Page 18 of 319
Page 4

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Results of Financial Operations and Comparison to Original Budget
July 31, 2024
Non-GAAP / Budgetary-Basis Reporting
Unaudited - Subject to Change

| For the Month Ended |1 Fiscal Year to Date |
Original Variance Original Variance
Budget Actual s % Budget Actual $ %
Operating Revenue
State General Revenue S 10,145,271 S 22,678,866 12,533,595 124% 111,597,984 S 125,291,170 13,693,186 12% A
Harris County and Local 5,420,027 4,922,473 (497,554) -9% 59,620,301 57,446,329 (2,173,972) -4% B
Federal Contracts and Grants 4,034,513 3,526,891 (507,622) -13% 44,379,642 43,050,743 (1,328,899) -3% C
State Contract and Grants 1,128,277 2,763,385 1,635,108 145% 12,411,052 11,924,748 (486,304) -4% D
Third Party Billing 2,766,501 3,322,616 556,115 20% 30,431,506 34,833,889 4,402,383 14%
Charity Care Pool 3,340,350 3,340,350 - 0% 36,743,853 36,743,855 2 0%
Directed Payment Programs 726,250 513,204 (213,046) -29% 7,988,750 5,822,338 (2,166,412) -27% E
Patient Assistance Program (PAP) 833,578 990,908 157,330 19% 9,169,358 9,680,959 511,601 6%
Interest Income 225,067 324,076 99,009 44% 2,475,733 3,325,350 849,617 34%
Operating Revenue, total $ 28,619,834 42,382,769 13,762,935 48% 314,818,179 328,119,381 13,301,202 4%
Operating Expenditures
Salaries and Fringe Benefits S 19,926,501 21,427,948 (1,501,447) -8% 219,191,509 220,932,695 (1,741,186) -1%
Contracts and Consultants 1,393,967 1,308,794 85,173 6% 15,333,639 10,304,232 5,029,407 33%
Contracts and Consultants-HCPC 3,017,779 11,490,123 (8,472,344) -281% 33,195,574 41,855,324 (8,659,750) -26% F
Supplies 277,304 207,549 69,755 25% 3,050,340 1,922,635 1,127,705 37%
Drugs 1,254,451 2,401,063 (1,146,612) -91% 13,798,963 23,070,739 (9,271,776) -67% G
Purchases, Repairs and Maintenance of:
Equipment 597,697 390,754 206,943 35% 6,574,669 5,137,745 1,436,924 22%
Building 538,158 271,207 266,951 50% 5,919,742 2,625,563 3,294,179 56%
Vehicle 86,436 70,554 15,882 18% 950,797 822,213 128,584 14%
Telephone and Utilities 317,951 271,359 46,592 15% 3,497,456 3,034,726 462,730 13%
Insurance, Legal and Audit 166,175 177,370 (11,195) -7% 1,827,930 1,950,649 (122,719) -7%
Travel 194,299 203,211 (8,912) -5% 2,137,284 1,929,088 208,196 10%
Dues & Subscriptions 382,047 155,029 227,018 59% 4,202,514 5,003,628 (801,114) -19% H
Other Expenditures 383,736 214,005 169,731 44% 4,221,095 4,078,073 143,022 3%
Operating Expenditures, total $ 28,536,501 S 38,588,966 (10,052,465) -35% 313,901,512 S 322,667,310 (8,765,798) -3%
Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures $ 83,333 S 3,793,803 3,710,470 916,667 S 5,452,071 4,535,404
Other Sources (Uses)
Debt payment S (83,333) S - 83,333 (916,667) S - 916,667
Capital outlay - (1,086,089) (1,086,089) (6,680,865) (6,680,865)
Insurance proceeds - 778 778 49,042 49,042
Proceeds from Sale of Assets - - - - 114,700 114,700
Change in Fund Balance/Net Position $ - 2,708,492 S 2,708,492 - (1,065,052) $ (1,065,052)




Page 19 of 319
Page 5
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Notes to Statements Presented
Non-GAAP / Budgetary-Basis reporting
July 31, 2024

Results of Financial Operations and Comparison to Original Budget

A

State General Revenue
Positive budget variance primarily driven by additional funding received and recognized for 11 months in the current fiscal year at new
rates of the existing beds at HCPC and West Oaks effective September 1, 2023.

Harris County and Local Revenue
Unfavorable budget variance is attributed to timing differences in revenue budgeted during the fiscal year vs recognized during the
contract period.

Federal Contract and grants
Unfavorable budget variance is due to approx. $1M revenue budgeted with no corresponding revenue recognized due to delayed
construction of the NE Clinic.

State Contract and Grants
The primary driver of the net favorable variance in monthly State Contract and Grants is related to catch-up of billing of expenditures for
building costs for 6168 apartments.

Directed Payment Programs

DPP revenue shortfall is due to updating our accounting records to match the latest annual estimates provided by Texas Council in mid-
May 2024. The new annual estimated net revenue is $6.2M, $2.5M less than the $8.7M net revenue estimate published in November
2023. The decrease is driven by decrease in FMAP and reduced DPP-related claim throughput.

Contracts and consulitants - HCPC
Unfavorable budget variance primarily driven by additional costs recognized for 11 months in the current fiscal year at the new rates of
the existing beds at HCPC effective September 1, 2023.

Drugs

The primary driver of the net unfavorable variance in Drugs is the increase in retail drug pharmacy purchases, which is offset by revenue
earned on the billing program. On a YTD basis the Pharmacy billing program revenue exceeds budget by $8.2M and the billing program
expense exceeds budget by ($8.3M).

Dues & Subscriptions
IT related Dues & Subscriptions total $112K for the current month and $4.2M for the current year to date.



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Balance Sheet
July 31, 2024
Non-GAAP / Budgetary-Basis Reporting
Unaudited - Subject to Change

Page 20 of 319
Page 6

|  June-2024 || July-2024 | | Change |
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Petty Cash 10,570,716 31,130,851 20,560,135
Cash Equivalents 76,838,546 54,556,827 (22,281,719)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, total 87,409,262 85,687,678 (1,721,584) AA
Inventory and Prepaid 6,505,768 5,961,387 (544,381)
Accounts Receivable:
Other A/R 31,747,225 31,361,173 (386,052)
Patient, net of allowance 2,981,401 3,608,908 627,507
Current Assets, total 128,643,656 126,619,146 (2,024,510)
Capital Assets
Land 13,004,859 13,004,859 -
Building and Building Improvements 52,615,143 52,615,143 -
Furniture, Equipment and Vehicles 10,826,281 10,826,281 -
Construction in Progress 5,764,164 5,764,164 -
Capital Assets, total 82,210,447 82,210,447 -
Total Assets 210,854,103 208,829,593 (2,024,510)
LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION
Liabilities
Unearned Revenues 34,214,580 24,504,332 (9,710,248) BB
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 19,559,172 24,535,559 4,976,387 CC
Long term Liabilities 800,747 801,606 859
Liabilities, total 54,574,499 49,841,497 (4,733,002)
Fund Balance/Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 82,210,447 82,210,447 -
Nonspendable 6,505,768 5,961,387 (544,381)
Assigned 66,514,014 66,514,014 -
Unassigned 4,822,919 5,367,300 544,381
Change in fund balance/net position (3,773,544) (1,065,052) 2,708,492
Fund Balance/Net Position, Total 156,279,604 158,988,096 2,708,492
Total Liabilities & Fund Balance/Net Position 210,854,103 208,829,593 (2,024,510)




Page 21 of 319
Page 7
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Notes to Statements Presented
Non-GAAP / Budgetary-Basis reporting
July 31, 2024 —~

Balance Sheet
AA Cash and Investments
The decrease in cash and cash equivalents is in line with normal operating conditions. We received an additional payment in July of $18.2M related to the

amended performance contract with HHSC primarily related to new bed rates at HCPC.

BB Unearned Revenues
Unearned income decreased due to continued use of the state revenue allocation with additional unearned revenues expected to be recognized in August.

CC Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
The increase in Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities is primarily due to an additional $4.8M owed to HCPC as of July 31, 2024; this includes amounts

due on the new rates for existing beds under the new contract effective September 1, 2023.



Page 22 of 319
Page 8

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Investment Portfolio

July 31, 2024
Local Government Investment Pools (LGIPs)
Monthly
Beginning Balance Transfer In Transfer Out Interest Income Ending Value Portfolio % Yield
Texas CLASS
Texas CLASS General Fund S 37,753,175 § 11,200,000 $ (16,570,699) S 151,350 §$ 32,533,826 59.63% 5.45%
TexPool
TexPool Prime 35,476,596 (17,200,000) 121,333 18,397,929 33.72% 5.46%
TexPool General Fund 1,098,455 - - 4,560 1,103,415 2.02% 5.32%
TexPool Internal Service Fund 2,510,320 - - 11,337 2,521,657 4.62% 5.32%
TexPool Sub-Total 39,085,371 - (17,200,000} 137,630 22,023,001 40.36% 5.44%
Total Investments S 76,838,546 S 11,200,000 S (33,770,699) S 288,980 S 54,556,827 99.99% 5.44%
Additional Interest on Checking Accounts 35,096
Total Interest Earned during the current month S 324,076
Investment Portfolio Weight
$2,521,657 3 Month Weighted Average Maturity (Days) 1.00
$1,103,415 o 3 Month Weighted Average Yield 5.44%
3 Month Rolling Weighted Average Daily Treasury Bill Rate (4 weeks) 5.27%
Interest Rate - Chase Hybrid Checking 3.70%
ECR - Chase 3.80%
$18,397,929
$32,533,826
m Texas CLASS General Fund = TexPool Prime
= TexPool General Fund = TexPool Internal Service Fund

This Investment Portfolio Report of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD as of July 31, 2024, is in compliance with the provisions of the Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA),
Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code and the Investment Strategy approved by the Board of Trustees.

Approved:

Thania D. Gonzalez

Controller




The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

July 31, 2024

Monthly Report of Financial Transactions Related to Payments of Liabilities for Employee Benefits

Vendor Description Mo::;:‘::,:ro- Jul-24 Fiscal Y:;;IO Date
Lincoln Financial Group (LFG)®? Retirement Funds (401a, 403b, 457) $3,500,000 $2,944,025 $23,674,832
Blue Cross Blue Shield of TX Health and Dental Insurance $3,200,000 $2,492,302 $27,324,748
UNUM Life Insurance $300,000 $205,084 $2,278,068
Notes:

U as established by the Board Resolution: Harris Center Board of Trustees Signature Authorization and Delegation Authority for Certain Items

effective May 23, 2023.

) | FG payments include PP 068, 07A & 078

Page 23 of 319
Page 9



Page 24 of 319

Estimated Monthly Days-Cash-On-Hand (DCOH)  §Qfiu:s

(:ENYI'EI{ Jor

FY 2024 — as of 07-31-2024 Mental Health and 1DD

$120,000,000 140

125

$100,000,000

100
$80,000,000 _ — — = e e e e e e e e e e e e T = e g cgeme g
78 . 80
$60,000,000 68
62 69 60
$40,000,000
39 40
o I I I I I I I I I I )
5- 0

Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Jul-24 Aug-24

Bl Y 2024 Cash & Equivalents B FY 2024 Operating Expenses =@=FY 2024 DCOH

August 2024 figures are based on updated estimates, previous months are based on actuals. DCOH = Cash & Equivalents @ Month End divided by Daily Operating Expenses



Page 25 of 319

DEbt'tO'EqUity & Working Capital Ratios HARRIS

CENTER for

— as of 07/ 31 / 2024 Mental Health and IDD

70.00% 7
5.9

58.91%

60.00% 6

50.00% 5

40.00% 4

33.63%
30.00% 27.84% 3
23.29%

20.00% 15.77% 17.71% )

- - . |

0.00% 0

as of 08/31/2022 as of 08/31/2023 as of 07/31/2024
i Average D/E of selected Centers EEBTHC - from Total Net Position @@ THC - from Unrestricted Net Position =@=THC - Working Capital Ratio
Debt/Liabilities Included in Calculation:

Unearned Revenues $ 24,504,332
Jebt to Equity Ratio: Total Liabilities less compensated absences divided by Total Net Position (from Statement of Net Position) Other AP & Accrued Liabilities 15,332,105
- by Unrestricted Net Position. Current capital outlay is assumed to be investment in capital assets. Leases Liability 1,190,208
Subscription-Based IT Arrangements Liability 228,648
*Warking Capital Ratio = Current Assets/Current Liabilities State Escheatment Payable 41,811

$ 41,297,104



Page 26 of 319

The

HARRIS

Available Resources (in Millions) - as of 07-31-2024 CENTER 5

Mental Health and IDD

$14.29
$5.96 9%

$8.54

$88.89
56%

$a1.30
26%

M Invested in Capital Assets M Liabilities (other than C/A) B Compensated Absences ® Nonspendable B Unrestricted/Assigned



EXHIBIT F-4




AUGUST 2024
RENEWALS OVER 250k



THE HARRIS CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH AND IDD

SNAPSHOT SUMMARY AUGUST 2024
CONTRACT RENEWALS FISCAL YEAR 2024
MORE THAN $250,000
CONTRACTOR PRODUCT/SERVICE DESCRIPTION FY 2024 NTE FY 2025 NTE CONTRACT PERIOD FUNDING BID/TAG-ON COMMENTS
AMOUNT AMOUNT .
ACCESS
ADMINISTRATION
1 Master Pool Foreign & Sign Foreign & Sign Language $405,052.00 $413,368.00 | 9/1/2024 - 8/31/2025 General Request for  |Annual renewal of Master Pool for Agency Wide Foreign & Sign Language
Language Translation Services Interpretation Services Agency Wide Revenue (GR) Proposal Interpretation Services. First year renewal option.
2 McKesson Corporation Pharmacy Wholesaler $10,000,000.00 | $12,000,000.00 | 9/1/2024 - 6/12/2025 General Tag-On Pharmacy Wholesaler to obtain drugs for patient prescriptions from The Harris
Revenue (GR) Center Pharmacies. There was an increase due to the 3rd party billing program.
[Tag-on through GPO Premier.]
CPEP/CRISIS SERVICES
FORENSICS

INTELLECTUAL DEVELOPMENTAL
DISABILITY SERVICES

MENTAL HEALTH

MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES-ECI

LEASES

6T€E Jo gz abed



N
8-8 HaRkls - Annual Renewal Evaluation

Mental Health and IDD

Current Fiscal Year Contract Information

Current Fiscal Year
2024

Contract ID#*
2023-0793

Contractor Name *
P-Foreign & Sign Language

Service Provided™® (?)

Master Pool Contract for Foreign & Sign Language Interpretation Services Agency Wide.

Renewal Term Start Date™

Renewal Term End Date*

9/1/2024 8/31/2025

Term for Off-Cycle Only (For Reference Only)

Agenda ltem Submitted For: (?)

. Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)

+ Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)

Grant Proposal

Revenue

SOW-Change Order-Amendmenti#
Other

Procurement Method(s)*
Check all that Apply
Competitive Bid
+ Request for Proposal
. Request for Application
Request for Quote
Interlocal
Not Applicable (If there are no funds required)

Contract Description / Type

Personal/Professional Services
Consumer Driven Contract

Memorandum of Understanding

Affiliation or Preceptor
BAA/DUA
Pooled Contract

+ Renewal of Existing Contract

Competitive Proposal
Sole Source

Request for Qualification
Tag-On

. Consumer Driven

Other

Consultant

. New Contract/Agreement
" Amendment to Existing Contract

Service/Maintenance
IT/Software License Agreement
Lease

Other

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) (?)

Yes
¢+ No
Unknown

Page 29 of 319



Contract NTE* (?)
$ 405,052.00

Rate(s)/Rate(s) Description

Unit(s) Served®
Multiple

GIL Code(s)*
543018

Current Fiscal Year Purchase Order Number™®
CT143462

Contract Requestor*

Eggla MacKinney

Contract Owner™

Demetria Luckett

File Upload (?)

Evaluation of Current Fiscal Year Performance

Have there been any significant performance deficiencies within the current fiscal year?*
' Yes ® No

Were Services delivered as specified in the contract? *

® Yes ' No

Did Contractor perform duties in a manner consistent with standards of the profession? ¥

® Yes © No

Did Contractor adhere to the contracted schedule?™ (?)

® Yes O No

Were reports, billing and/or invoices submitted in a timely manner?”* (?)

® Yes U No

Did Contractor provide adequate or proper supporting documentation of time spent rendering services for the
Agency?* ()

® Yes ©° No

Did Contractor render services consistent with Agency policy and procedures?* 7
® Yes ' No

Maintained legally required standards for certification, licensure, and/or training? o o)

® Yes U No

Renewal Determination

Is the contract being renewed for next fiscal year with this Contractor?™ ()

* Yes 7 No

Renewal Information for Next Fiscal Year

Page 30 of 319



_Budget Units and Amounts Charged fo each Budget Unit

Budget Unit Number*

1102

Budget Manager*

Campbell chardo

Budget Unit Number®*
2200

Budget Manager*
She[by. Debbre

Budget Unit Number™®
2212

Budget Manager™
She[by, Debb:e

Budget Unit Number®*
2213

Budget Manager™
Shelby. Debble

Budget Unit Number®
2214

Budget Manager®
Shelby. Debbie

Budget Unit Number®
2215

Budget Manager*
Shelby, Debbie

Budget Unit Number*

2299

Budget Manager®
Shelby, Debbie

Budget Unit Number®*
2301

Budget Manager®
Shelby, Debbie

Budget Unit Number*
2802

Budget Manager*

Shelby, Debbie

Amount Charged to Unit*

Amount Charged to Unit*
$ 500.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager*
Campbell Rlcardo

Amount Charged to Unit*
$ 14,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager *
Hooper Jr Michael

Amount Charged to Unit*
$ 20,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager*
Hooper Jr Mrchael

Amount Charged to Unit*
$ 5,160.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager*
Hooper Jr., Michael

Amount Charged to Unit*
$ 27,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager®
Hooper Jr Michael

Amount Charged to Unit*
$ 6,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager™
Hooper Jr Michael

$ 2,660.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager*
Hooper Jr Mlchael

Amount Charged to Unit*
$ 7,100.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager™
Hooper Jr., Michael

Amount Charged to Unit*
$ 1,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager*
Hooper Jr., Michael

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

ExpenseIGL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Page 31 of 319



Budget Unit Number*
3350

Budget Manager®
Johnson, Kenyonika

Budget Unit Number*
3360

Budget Manager*
Smith, Janai
Budget Unit Number*
4160
Budget Manager*
Smith, Janai
Budget Unit Number®
4323
Budget Manager*
Smith, Janai
Budget Unit Number™®
4325
Budget Manager*
Smith, Janai
Budget Unit Number®
4736
Budget Manager™
Smith, Janai
Budget Unit Number™*
4780
Budget Manager™
Smith, Janai
Budget Unit Number™®
4913

Budget Manager™®
Smith, Janai

Budget Unit Number*

6201

Budget Manager®
Williams-Wesley, Sheenia

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*

$ 47,423.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager™*
Kerlegon, Charles

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*

$ 68,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager™®
Hooper Jr., Michael

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*

$ 5,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager™

$ 40,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager™

Hooper Jr., Michael
Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
$ 6,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager*
Hooper Jr., Michael

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*

$ 16,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager®
Hooper Jr., Michael

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*

$ 5,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager®
Hooper Jr., Michael

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*

$ 15,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager™
Hooper Jr., Michael

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*

$ 200.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager®
Jiles, Monalisa

Expense/GL Code No.*

My

Page 32 of 319



Budget Unit Number®
6204

Budget Manager™

Williams-Wesley, Sheenia

Budget Unit Number*
6205

Budget Manager™*

Williams-Wesley, Sheenia

Budget Unit Number*
6302

Budget Manager*

Williams-Wesley, Sheenia

Budget Unit Number*
6401

Budget Manager™

Williams-Wesley, Sheenia

Budget Unit Number®*
6500

Budget Manager™*

Williams-Wesley, Sheenia

Budget Unit Number*
6601

Budget Manager®
Smith, Janai

Budget Unit Number®
7001

Budget Manager™
liejay, Kevin

Budget Unit Number®
7011

Budget Manager™*
llejay, Kevin

Budget Unit Number*
7110

Budget Manager*

llejay, Kevin

Amount Charged to Unit*

Amount Charged to Unit*

Amount Charged to Unit*

Amount Charged to Unit*

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
$ 300.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager™

Jiles, Monalisa
Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
$ 3,500.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager*
Jiles, Monalisa

$ 2,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager’r
Jiles, Monalisa

$ 1,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager™

Jiles, Monalisa
Expense/GL Code No.*
$ 2,500.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager™
Adams, Betty

$ 7,536.00 543018
Secondary Budget Manager™
Hooper Jr., Michael
Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL. Code No.*
$ 24,500.00 543018
Secondary Budget Manager™
Campbell, Ricardo
Amount Charged to Unit*
$ 5,000.00 543018
Secondary Budget Manager™
Campbell, Ricardo
Amount Charged to Unit*
$ 5,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager*
Campbell, Ricardo

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Page 33 of 319




Budget Unit Number™*

9208

Budget Manager™*
Oshman Jodel

Budget Unit Number*
9208

Budget Manager®
Oshman Jodel

Budget Unit Number™®
9209

Budget Manager™®
Oshman, Jodel

Budget Unit Number®
9210

Budget Manager®
Oshman Jodel

Budget Unit Number™®
9228

Budget Manager™
Oshman Jodel

Budget Unit Number™®
9238

Budget Manager*
Oshman Jodel

Budget Unit Number®
9244

Budget Manager*
Ramirez, Priscilla

Budget Unit Number™®
9247

Budget Manager™®
Oshman Jodel

Budget Unit Number™®
9261

Budget Manager*

Ramirez, Priscilla

Amount Charged to Unit*

Amount Charged to Unit*

Amount Charged to Unit*

Amount Charged to Unit*

Amount Charged to Unit*

Amount Charged to Unit*
$ 8,500.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager™
Ramnrez, Prisc|lla

Amount Charged to Unit™*
$ 9,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Managef*
Ramlrez Pnscn[la

$ 1,500.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager*
Ramirez, Priscilla

Amount Charged to Unit*
$ 900.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager*
Ramirez, Pnscula

Amount Charged to Unit*
$ 1,200.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager™
Ramirez, Pnscslla

$ 1,500.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager*
Ramirez, Priscilla

$ 560.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager®
Oshman Jodel

$ 500.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager™
Ramirez, Priscilla

$ 600.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager*

Puente, Giovanni

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Page 34 of 319



Budget Unit Number*
9403

Budget Manager*
Ramirez, Priscilla

Budget Unit Number™®
9405

Budget Manager™*
Ramtrez Pnscnlla

Budget Unit Number™®
9407

Budget Manager*
Ramirez, Pnscllla

Budget Unit Number®
9501

Budget Manager*
Ramlrez Pnscnlla

Budget Unit Number®
9502

Budget Manager®
Ramirez, Priscilla

Budget Unit Number®*
9504

Budget Manager™
Ramlrez Pnsc:lla

Budget Unit Number*
9810

Budget Manager™®
OShman Jodel

Budget Unit Number®
1108

Budget Manager*

Campbell, Ricardo

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*

$ 3,752.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager®
Puente Glovanm

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*

$ 2,997.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager*
Puente Glovanm

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*

$ 2,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager*
Puente, Giovanni

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*

$ 120.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager*
Puente, Glovannl

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*

$ 500.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager™
Puente, Guovanm

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*

$ 360.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager®
Puente Glovanm

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*

$ 7,000.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager™

Ramirez, Pnscnlla

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*

$ 3,500.00 543018

Secondary Budget Manager ™
Campbell, Ricardo

Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if applicable* ()

Rates vary from vendor to vendor depending on the mode of
interpretation. Do note, some vendors will increase their rate
on a yearly basis. See attached sheet for further details

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure)® (?)
N/A

Page 35 of 319



Fiscal Year™ (% Amount® ()
2025 $ 413,368.00

Next Fiscal Year Not to Exceed Amount for Master Pooled Contracts

$413,368.00

Contract Funding Source®
General Revenue (GR)

Contract Content Changes
Are there any required changes to the contract Ianguage?* (?)
) Yes @ No

Will the scope of the Services change?*

) Yes = No

Is the payment deadline different than net (45)‘?*

) Yes = No

Are there any changes in the Performance Targets?*

' Yes = No

Are there any changes to the Submission deadlines for notes or supporting documentation?*

) Yes ® No
File Upload (%)
BAFO Pricing Sheet Summary 9-21-23.xIsx 43.99KB
FY25 Allocation - GL 543018.xIsx 11.17KB

Contract Owner

Contract Owner™ (?)
Please Select Contract Owner

Demetria Luckett

Budget Manager Approval(s) (A
Approved by Approved by

Sratae Camolbel Dt Crmodeld
Approved by Approved by

Page 36 of 319



Approved by Approved by
Shewiia Fithians- Tty evin ilipizy
Approved by
JM (&7

Contract Owner Approval

Approved by

Deometsia 0. ot

Contracts Approval

Approve®

® Yes

(' No, reject entire submission
' Return for correction

Approved by *
Approval Date *

Brtender  Stucte 712912024

m

Page 37 of 319



8-8”-\“*“5 Annual Renewal Evaluation

CENTER &

Mental Health and 1DD

Current Fiscal Year Contract Information

Current Fiscal Year
2024

Contract ID#*
2021-0189

Contractor Name *

McKesson Corporation

Service Provided * (?)

Pharmacy Wholesaler to obtain drugs for patient prescriptions form The Harris Center

Pharmacies.
Renewal Term Start Date ™ Renewal Term End Date ™
9/1/2024 6/12/12025

Term for Off-Cycle Only (For Reference Only)

Agenda Item Submitted For: (?)
Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)
+ Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)
Grant Proposal
Revenue
SOW-Change Order-Amendment#
Other

Procurement Method(s)*
Check all that Apply

. Competitive Bid Competitive Proposal
. Request for Proposal Sole Source
Request for Application Request for Qualification
Request for Quote < Tag-On
Interlocal Consumer Driven
Not Applicable (If there are no funds required) + Other GPO Premier Contract.

Contract Description / Type

Personal/Professional Services Consultant
Consumer Driven Contract New Contract/Agreement
Memorandum of Understanding ' Amendment to Existing Contract
Affiliation or Preceptor Service/Maintenance
BAA/DUA IT/Software License Agreement
Pooled Contract | Lease

¥ Renewal of Existing Contract Other

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) (?)
Yes
No

s Unknown

Page 38 of 319



Contract NTE® (?)
$ 10,000,000.00

Rate(s)/Rate(s) Description
Vary.

Unit(s) Served™
1135, 1136

GIL Code(s)*
547001

Current Fiscal Year Purchase Order Number®
CT143311

Contract Requestor®

Angela Babin

Contract Owner®

Angela Babin

File Upload (?)

Evaluation of Current Fiscal Year Performance

Have there been any significant performance deficiencies within the current fiscal year? *

Yes ¢ No

Were Services delivered as specified in the contract?*

@ Yes No

Did Contractor perform duties in a manner consistent with standards of the profession'r“'r

@ Yes No

Did Contractor adhere to the contracted schedule?™ (?)

® Yes No

Were reports, billing and/or invoices submitted in a timely manner?* (?)

* Yes No

Did Contractor provide adequate or proper supporting documentation of time spent rendering services for the
Agency?* ()

* Yes No

Did Contractor render services consistent with Agency policy and procedures?* (]

® Yes No

Maintained legally required standards for certification, licensure, and/or training?™* (?)
¢ Yes No

Renewal Determination

Is the contract being renewed for next fiscal year with this Contractor?™ (?)

* Yes No

Renewal Information for Next Fiscal Year [~ )

Page 39 of 319



Budget Units and Amounts Charged to each Budget Unit

Budget Unit Number* Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
1136 $ 2,000,000.00 547001

Budget Manager™ Secondary Budget Manager ™

Shelby, Debbie Hooper Jr., Michael

Budget Unit Number™ Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.™
1135 $ 10,000,000.00 547001

Budget Manager* Secondary Budget Manager™

Campbell, Ricardo Campbell, Ricardo

Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if applicable™ (?)
N/A

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure)* ()

N/A
Fiscal Year* () Amount® (7

2025 $ 12,000,000.00

Next Fiscal Year Not to Exceed Amount for Master Pooled Contracts

Contract Funding Source *

General Revenue (GR)

Contract Content Changes
Are there any required changes to the contract Ianguage?* (?)
Yes = No

Will the scope of the Services change?*

Yes * No

Is the payment deadline different than net (45}?*
Yes = No

Are there any changes in the Performance Targets?*

Yes = No

Are there any changes to the Submission deadlines for notes or supporting documentation? *

Yes @ No

File Upload (?)

Contract Owner

Contract Owner ™ (?)
Please Select Contract Owner

Angela Babin

Page 40 of 319



Budget Manager Approval(s) ®
Approved by Approved by
Dtter (Ghamdota Sty Sratae (emobld

Contract Owner Approval

Approved by

ANGELA ﬁAﬂv

Contracts Approval

Approve*
® Yes
 No, reject entire submission
Return for correction

Approved by *
Approval Date®

Btenater Stz 7/29/2024

m

Page 41 of 319



- EXHIBIT F-3



AUGUST 2024
AMENDMENTS OVER 250k



Page 43 of 319

THE HARRIS CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH AND IDD SNAPSHOT SUMMARY AUGUST 2024
CONTRACT AMENDMENTS FISCAL YEAR 2024
MORE THAN $250,000
~ CONTRACTOR - PRODUCT/SERVICE DESCRIPTION PREVIOUS | INCREASE NTE AMOUNT CONTRACT PERIOD FUNDING | BID/TAG-ON COMMEN!‘S e S
1 3 Tl i : AMOUNT AMOUNT { v £ b By :
ACCESS
ADMINISTRATION
1 Centre Technologies, Inc. Microsoft Azure Draa$ Disaster $310,000.00 $23,000.00 $333,000.00 5/1/2023 - 8/31/2024 General Revenue Tag-On Amendment to increase the NTE needed for adding more resources with
Recovery as a Service (GR) Cloud Services for improved redundancy and server resiliency.
2 UKG Kronos Systems, LLC HMRS Software Agency Wide $314,560.00 $93,000.00 $407,560.00 9/1/2023 - 8/31/2024 General Revenue| Competitive |Amendment to increase the NTE for Added additional modules during
including Time and Attendance (GR) Proposal FY24 including ACA, Performance, Additional licenses, Document
Manager and additional payroll services fees.
CPEP/CRISIS SERVICES
FORENSICS
INTELLECTUAL DEVELOPMENTAL
DISABILITY SERVICES
MENTAL HEALTH

MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES-ECI

LEASES




Page 44 of 319

ikl Executive Contract Summary

CENTER 5

Mental Health and IDD

Contract Section

Contractor®

Centre Technologies

Contract ID #*
7709

Presented To™

s Resource Committee
Full Board

Date Presented ™
8/20/2024

Parties ™ (7

The Harris Center and Centre Technologies

Agenda Item Submitted For: ™ (?)
Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)
+ Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)
Grant Proposal
Revenue
. SOW-Change Order-Amendment#
| Other

Procurement Method(s)*
Check all that Apply

Competitive Bid Competitive Proposal

Request for Proposal Sole Source

Request for Application Request for Qualification
' Request for Quote < Tag-On

Interlocal Consumer Driven

Not Applicable (If there are no funds required) Other

Funding Information*

New Contract = Amendment

Contract Term Start Date™ (?) Contract Term End Date™ (?)
9/1/2023 8/31/2024

If contract is off-cycle, specify the contract term (?)

Current Contract Amount™
$ 310,000.00

Increase Not to Exceed*
$ 23,000.00

Revised Total Not to Exceed (NTE)*
$ 333,000.00




Fiscal Year™ (?) Amount® (7)

2024 $ 333,000.00

Funding Source *

General Revenue (GR)

Contract Description / Type * ()

Personal/Professional Services Consultant

Consumer Driven Contract . New Contract/Agreement

Memeorandum of Understanding + Amendment to Existing Contract

Affiliation or Preceptor Service/Maintenance

BAA/DUA IT/Software License Agreement
| Pooled Contract Lease

Renewal of Existing Contract Other

Justification/Purpose of Contract/Description of Services Being Provided ™ (?)

Adding more resources with Cloud Services for improved redundancy and server resiliency.

Contract Owner™

Mustafa Cochinwala

Previous History of Contracting with Vendor/Contractor*

* Yes No Unknown

Please add previous contract dates and what services were provided*

FY11 - FY24
DRaa$S, 0365, Hardware and Software Support

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)* @

Yes No = Unknown

Community Partnership™ ()

Yes = No Unknown

Supporting Documentation Upload (?)

Vendor/Contractor Contact Person

*
Name

Jamie Schanbachler

Address ™
Street Address
480 North Sam Houston Parkway East

Address Line 2

City State / Province / Region
Houston TX

Postal / Zip Code Country

77060-3550 us

Phone Number*®
281-741-6389

Page 45 of 319



Email*

jschanbachler@centretechnologies.com

Budget Section

Budget Units and Amounts Charged to each Budget Unit

Budget Unit Number™® Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
1130 $ 23,000.00 574000
Budget Manager Secondary Budget Manager

Campbell, Ricardo Campbell, Ricardo

Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if applicable™ ()
N/A

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure)™ (?)

N/A
Requester Name Submission Date

Hurst, Richard 7129/2024

Budget Manager Approval(s) o

Approved by
Approval Date

Gratae Camobeld 7129/2024

Procurement Approval

File Upload (?)

Approved by Approval Date
Sign

Contract Owner Approval

Approved by
Approval Date

heszare Coctennatee 7/31/2024

Contracts Approval

Approve*

* Yes
No, reject entire submission
Return for correction

Page 46 of 319



Page 47 of 319

Approved by *
[ Approval Date*
7/31/2024




dblil Bt conttaet summany

Mental Health and 1DD

Contract Section

Contractor*
UKG Kronos Systems, LLC

Contract ID #*
6685

Presented To*
= Resource Committee
Full Board

Date Presented®
8/27/2024

Parties ™ ()
UKG and The Harris Center

Agenda ltem Submitted For:* (?)

Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)
+ Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)

Grant Proposal

Revenue

SOW-Change Order-Amendment#
Other

Procurement Method(s)*

Check all that Apply
Competitive Bid
Request for Proposal

| Request for Application
Request for Quote
Interlocal
Not Applicable (If there are no funds required)

Funding Information™
New Contract ‘= Amendment

Contract Term Start Date * (?)
9/1/2023

If contract is off-cycle, specify the contract term (?)

Current Contract Amount™®
$ 314,560.00

Increase Not to Exceed*
$ 93,000.00

*

Revised Total Not to Exceed (NTE)
$ 407,560.00

+' Competitive Proposal
Sole Source
Request for Qualification
Tag-On
Consumer Driven
Other

Contract Term End Date™ ()
8/31/2024

Page 48 of 319



Fiscal Year™ (?) Amount® ()
2024 $ 407,560.00

Funding Source ™
General Revenue (GR)

Contract Description / Type* (?)

Personal/Professional Services Consultant
Consumer Driven Contract New Contract/Agreement

I Memorandum of Understanding v Amendment to Existing Contract
Affiliation or Preceptor Service/Maintenance

. BAA/DUA IT/Software License Agreement
Pooled Contract | Lease
Renewal of Existing Contract ¥ Other CT143273

Justification/Purpose of Contract/Description of Services Being Provided™ (?)

Added additional modules during FY24.
ACA, Performance, Additional licenses, Document Manager and additional payroll services
fees

Contract Owner*

Mustafa Cochinwala

Previous History of Contracting with Vendor/Contractor™

* Yes ' No Unknown

Please add previous contract dates and what services were provided*

FY18-FY24
Employee Payroll and Time and Attendance

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)* @

Yes No ‘= Unknown

Community Partnership™ ()

' Yes No @ Unknown

Supporting Documentation Upload (?)

Vendor/Contractor Contact Person

*
Name

Chris Layne

Address™*
Street Address
900 Chelmsford Street

Address Line 2

City State / Province / Region
Lowell MA

Postal / Zip Code Country

01851 us

Page 49 of 319



Phone Number®
303-726-7503

Email*

chris.layne@kronos.com

Budget Section

~ Budget Units and_. Amounts Charged to each Budget Unit

Budget Unit Number™ Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
1147 $ 93,000.00 900021

Budget Manager Secondary Budget Manager

Campbell, Ricardo Campbell, Ricardo

Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if applicable* (?)
N/A

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure) ™ (?)

1T21.1147.08
Requester Name Submission Date
Hurst, Richard 7129/2024

Budget Manager Approval(s)

Approved by
Approval Date

et (lomatedd 7/29/2024

Procurement Approval

File Upload (?)

Approved by Approval Date
Sign

Contract Owner Approval

Approved by
Approval Date

szt Corkenniatee 7/31/2024

Contracts Approval

Approve*

® Yes
No, reject entire submission
Return for correction

Page 50 of 319



Page 51 of 319

Approved by *
r

Approval Date®
713172024




EXHIBIT F-6



AUGUST 2024
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENTS



Page 53 of 319

THE HARRIS CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH AND IDD SNAPSHOT SUMMARY AUGUST 2024
INTERLOCALS FISCAL YEAR 2024
CONTRACTOR PRODUCT/SERVICE DESCRIPTION ~Action Type ; _CDNTRACT PERIOD FUNDING COMMENTS s s
1 Baylor College of Medicine - Psychiatric Resident Educational Renewal 7/1/2024 - 6/30/2025 Federal Grant Annual renewal of Agreement for Psychiatric Resident Educational Rotation Services.
Department of Psychiatry and Rotation Services [FY24/25 NTE: $105,730.56).
Behavioral Sciences
2 Baylor College of Medicine Physical and Medical Examinations New Contract 9/1/2024 - 8/31/2025 General Revenue |New Agreement to provide physical and medical examinations for all patients
Department of Family and Community (GR) admitted to the Crisis Stabilization Unit (CSU).
Medicine
3 City of El Lago Space Rental for the Coffee House Renewal 9/1/2024 - 8/31/2025 State Annual renewal of Agreement to provide Space Rental for the Coffee House Program.
Program
4 Gulf Bend Center Crisis Intervention Helpline Services Renewal 9/1/2024 - 8/31/2025 County Annual renewal of Revenue Agreement to provide Crisis Intervention Helpline
Services. [FY25 Revenue: $66,000.00].
5 Harris County Community Mental Health Grant Renewal 9/1/2024 - 8/31/2025 County Community Mental Health Grant Program OCR for Coordination of Mental Health and
Program OCR for Coordination of Intellectual Developmental Disability Services for Harris County. [FY25 Revenue NTE:
Mental Health and Intellectual $2,115,000.00].
Developmental Disability Services
6 | Harris County Community Supervision| Dual Diagnosis Residential Program Renewal 9/1/2024 - 8/31/2025 County Annual renewal of Interlocal Agreement for the Dual Diagnosis Residential Program for
and Corrections Department for treatment (138 Beds) at 2312 treatment (138 Beds) at 2312 Atascocita Road,Humble, Texas for CSCD. [Revenue
Atascocita Road, FY25 NTE: $5,951,331.00).
Humble, Texas for CSCD.
7 Harris County Office of County Community Initiated Mental Health Renewal 9/1/2024 - 10/25/2024 Federal Grant Amendment to decrease the NTE and reallocate funds for FY25 for the Community
Administration and Resiliency Care Program Initiated Mental Health and Resiliency Care Program. [Revenue FY25 NTE:
$1,200,000.00]
8 MHMRA of Brazos Valley Crisis Intervention Helpline Services to Renewal 9/1/2024 - 8/31/2025 County Annual renewal of revenue Agreement to provide Crisis Intervention Helpline Services
Callers to Callers. [Revenue FY25 NTE: $81,000.00].
9 North Texas Behavioral Health Crisis Intervention Helpline Services to Renewal 9/1/2024 - 8/31/2025 County Annual renewal of Revenue Agreement to provide Crisis Intervention Helpline Services
Authority Consumers to Consumers.
10 Texas Department of Family and Renewal Renewal 9/1/2024 - 8/31/2025 General Revenue |Annual renewal to address the regional referral process, coordination of services and
Protective Services (GR) sharing of information between The Harris Center and Texas Department of Family
and Protective Services.
11 The Burke Center Crisis intervention Helpline Services to Renewal 9/1/2024 - 8/31/2025 County Annual renewal of Revenue Agreement to provide Crisis Intervention Helpline Services
Consumers. to Consumers.
12 The University of Texas Health Mental health In-Patient Psychiatric Renewal 9/1/2024 - 8/31/2025 State Annual renewal of ILA for Mental health In-Patient Psychiatric Beds, Inpatient
Science Center at Houston on behalf Beds, Inpatient Competency Competency Restoration Services and Voluntary/Involuntary Civic Beds. [HCPC]. [FY25
of Harris County Psychiatric Center Restoration Services and $47,463,519.20].
Voluntary/Involuntary Civic Beds
13 University of Houston Downtown New Affiliation Agreement New Contract 7/1/2024 -7/31/2028 General Revenue |New Affiliation Agreement will allow students enrolled in University of Houston
Marilyn Davies College of Business (GR) Downtown Marilyn Davies College of Business to complete graduate and
undergraduate field placements as part of their degree requirements.
14 University of Houston-College of Physician will provide primary care Renewal 9/1/2024 - 8/31/2025 Federal Grant Annual renewal of Primary Care Services Agreement that serve patients at the

Medicine

services to patients at Agency's Clinics
(Southeast, Southwest, Northwest
and Northeast) and for Crisis Services.

Agency's Clinics and for Crisis Services. [FY25 NTE: $781,558.00].




s Annual Renewal Evaluation
Mensal Health and 1DD

Current Fiscal Year Contract Information

Current Fiscal Year
2024

Contract ID#*
2023-0736

Contractor Name ™
Baylor College of Medicine - Department of Psychiatry and Behavioral Sciences

Service Provided ™ (?)
Psychiatric Resident Educational Rotation Services

Renewal Term Start Date * Renewal Term End Date ™
711712024 6/30/2025

Term for Off-Cycle Only (For Reference Only)

Agenda Item Submitted For: (?)

+ Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)
Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)
Grant Proposal
Revenue
SOW-Change Order-Amendment#

Other

Procurement r-'leth(:ud(s)l"'r
Check all that Apply

Competitive Bid Competitive Proposal
Request for Proposal Sole Source
Request for Application Request for Qualification
Request for Quote Tag-On

< Interlocal Consumer Driven
Not Applicable (If there are no funds required) Other

Contract Descriptign / Type

Personal/Professional Services Consultant
Consumer Driven Contract New Contract/Agreement
Memorandum of Understanding Amendment to Existing Contract
Affiliation or Preceptor Service/Maintenance
. BAA/DUA | IT/Software License Agreement
Pooled Contract Lease
+ Renewal of Existing Contract Other

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) (?)
Yes

* No
Unknown

Page 54 of 319



Contract NTE™ (?)
$ 170,186.27

Rate(s)/Rate(s) Description
$63.45 per hour for 32 hours per week per resident

Unit(s) Served*
2208

GIL Code(s)*
540504

Current Fiscal Year Purchase Order Number™
CT143447

Contract Requestor*

Danyalle Evans

Contract Owner*
Felecia Garner

File Upload ()

Evaluation of Current Fiscal Year Performance

Have there been any significant performance deficiencies within the current fiscal year?*

" Yes ¢ No

Were Services delivered as specified in the contract?®
® Yes No

Did Contractor perform duties in a manner consistent with standards of the profession? ™

= Yes No

Did Contractor adhere to the contracted schedule?™ (?)

o Yes No

Were reports, billing and/or invoices submitted in a timely manner?* ()

» Yes . No

Did Contractor provide adequate or proper supporting documentation of time spent rendering services for the
Agency?* (7)

s Yes No

Did Contractor render services consistent with Agency policy and procedures? * )

¢ Yes No

Maintained legally required standards for certification, licensure, and/or training?* (7)

= Yes ' No

Renewal Determination

Is the contract being renewed for next fiscal year with this Contractor?* ()

* Yes No

Renewal Information for Next Fiscal Year ®

Page 55 of 319



Budget Units and Amounts Charged to each Budget Unit

Budget Unit Number*® Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
2208 $ 105,730.56 540504
Budget Manager™* Secondary Budget Manager™

Shelby, Debbie Hooper Jr., Michael

Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if applicable * (?)
63.54 per hour for 32 hours per week

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure)™ (2)
Psychiatric Residency Program for Forensics, CAS, AMH

and Crisis
Fiscal Year™ (%) Amount™ (?)

2025 $ 105,730.56

Next Fiscal Year Not to Exceed Amount for Master Pooled Contracts
105730.56

Contract Funding Source ™

Federal Grant

Contract Content Changes

Are there any required changes to the contract Ianguage?* O]

Yes @ No

Will the scope of the Services change?*

Yes = No

Is the payment deadline different than net (45)?*

Yes = No

Are there any changes in the Performance Targets?*

Yes = No

Are there any changes to the Submission deadlines for notes or supporting documentation?*

Yes © No

File Upload (?)
ID 2023-0736 Baylor - UPDATED FY25 Contract (002).docx 112.95KB

Contract Owner

Contract Owner™ (2)
Please Select Contract Owner

Felecia Garner

Budget Manager Approval(s) @

Page 56 of 319



Approved by

At (Dhamediorid  Shetts

Contract Owner Approval ®

Approved by

Jelein Gakhe, 49

Contracts Approval . :

Apprr.)\.re"I
o Yes
© No, reject entire submission
Return for correction

Approved by %
Approval Date®

Dtenaee  Steeate 7129/2024

Page 57 of 319



8-8 (ij_i]‘;_\{’sil.‘i,!ij, Executive Contract Summary

Mental Health and IDD

Contract Section

Contractor*

Baylor College of Medicine Department of Family and Community Medicine

Contract ID #*
2024-0902

Presented To™

¢ Resource Committee
Full Board

Date Presented *
8/20/2024

Parties* ()

Baylor Callege of Medicine Department of Family and Community Medicine

Agenda Item Submitted For: ™ (?)
+ Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)
| Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)
Grant Proposal
Revenue
SOW-Change Order-Amendment#
Other

Procurement Method(s) *

Check all that Apply

| Competitive Bid | Competitive Proposal
| Request for Proposal ' Sole Source
| Request for Application Request for Qualification
_ Request for Quote Tag-On
¥ Interlocal Consumer Driven
Not Applicable (If there are no funds required) Other

Funding Information ™

= New Contract Amendment

Contract Term Start Date ™ (?) Contract Term End Date ™ (9
9/1/2024 8/31/2025

If contract is off-cycle, specify the contract term (?)

Fiscal Year® (?) Amount™ (?)

2025 $ 100,000.00

Funding Source™

General Revenue (GR)

Page 58 of 319



Contract Description / Type ™ (%)

Personal/Professional Services Consultant
Consumer Driven Contract + New Contract/Agreement
| Memorandum of Understanding | Amendment to Existing Contract
.| Affiliation or Preceptor I Service/Maintenance
| BAA/DUA _ IT/Software License Agreement
Pooled Contract ~ Lease
Renewal of Existing Contract Other

Justification/Purpose of Contract/Description of Services Being Provided* (?)

Contractor will provide physical and medical examinations for all patients admitted to the
Crisis Stabilization Unit (CSU).

Contract Owner®

Kim Kornmayer

Previous History of Contracting with Vendor/Contractor®

® Yes No Unknown

Please add previous contract dates and what services were provided ™
Currently under contract; contract ID 7521.

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)*

Yes No ‘= Unknown

Community Partnership™ (?)

~ Yes . No = Unknown

Supporting Documentation Upload (?)

VVendor/Contractor Contact Person

Name*
Linda Tran Dinh, FCM Department Administrator

*
Address
Street Address

One Baylor Plaza

Address Line 2

City State / Province / Region
Houston ™

Postal / Zip Code Country

77030 us

Phone Number®
(713) 798-7777

Email *
It3@bcm.edu

Budget Section

Budget Units and Amounts Charged to each Budget Unit

Page 59 of 319



Budget Unit Number* Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
9209 $ 100,000.00 543011

Budget Manager Secondary Budget Manager

Oshman, Jodel Ramirez, Priscilla

Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if applicable* 9

$8,333.33 per month for physical examinations
2-5 estimated physical examinations per day

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure) ™ (?)

NA

Requester Name Submission Date

Singh, Patricia 7129/2024

Budget Manager Approval(s) A)

Approved by
Approval Date

il sbocse 712912024

Procurement Approval

File Upload (?)

Approved by Approval Date
Sign

Contract Owner Approval

Approved by
Approval Date

/HI« /kﬂF.WﬂfEﬂ— 7129/2024

Contracts Approval

Approve*

* Yes
No, reject entire submission
Return for correction

Approved by s
Approval Date™
Betewder Stuae 713012024

m

Page 60 of 319



8-8('!};}{%".;}@” Annual Renewal Evaluation

Mental Health and IDD

Current Fiscal Year Contract Information

Current Fiscal Year
2024

Contract ID#*
7085

Contractor Name™*
City of El Lago

Service Provided * (?)

Space Rental for the Coffee House Program

Renewal Term Start Date *

Term for Off-Cycle Only (For Reference Only)

Agenda ltem Submitted For: (?)

Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)
Grant Proposal

Revenue

SOW-Change Order-Amendment#

Other

Procurement Method(s‘.}’r
Check all that Apply

Competitive Bid
Request for Proposal
Request for Application
Request for Quote

¢ Interlocal
Not Applicable (If there are no funds required)

Contract Description / Type

Personal/Professional Services
Consumer Driven Contract
Memorandum of Understanding
Affiliation or Preceptor
BAA/DUA
Pooled Contract

+ Renewal of Existing Contract

Yes
¢ No
Unknown

Renewal Term End Date™*
9/1/2024 8/31/2025

+ Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)

Competitive Proposal
Sole Source

Request for Qualification
Tag-On

Consumer Driven

Other

Consultant
New Contract/Agreement

- Amendment to Existing Contract
~ Service/Maintenance

IT/Software License Agreement
Lease
Other

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) (?)

Page 61 of 319



Contract NTE* (2
$ 9,600.00

Rate(s)/Rate(s) Description
$800.00 per month x 12 months

Unit(s) Served®
0000

GI/L Code(s)*
126006

Current Fiscal Year Purchase Order Number®
CT143193

Contract Requestor*
Margo Childs

Contract Owner®

Dr. Evanthe Collins

File Upload (7

Evaluation of Current Fiscal Year Performance

Have there been any significant performance deficiencies within the current fiscal year?*

Yes ¢ No

Were Services delivered as specified in the contract?*
* Yes No

Did Contractor perform duties in a manner consistent with standards of the profession?*

@ Yes No

Did Contractor adhere to the contracted schedule?* (?)

“ Yes No

Were reports, billing and/or invoices submitted in a timely manner?* (?)

* Yes No

Did Contractor provide adequate or proper supporting documentation of time spent rendering services for the
Agency?™* (?)

* Yes No

Did Contractor render services consistent with Agency policy and procedures?™ (?)

* Yes No

Maintained legally required standards for certification, licensure, and/or training?* (7
« Yes No

Renewal Determination

Is the contract being renewed for next fiscal year with this Contractor?™ (7)

* Yes No

Renewal Information for Next Fiscal Year (~]

Page 62 of 319



Budget Units and Amounts Charged to each Budget Unit

Budget Unit Number™® Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
3636 $ 9,600.00 126006
Budget Manager* Secondary Budget Manager*

Johnson, Kenyonika Kerlegon, Charles

Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if applicable* O]

See attachment for rate and rate description.

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure)* 7

N/A
Fiscal Year® (?) Amount™ (?)

2025 $ 9,600.00

Next Fiscal Year Not to Exceed Amount for Master Pooled Contracts
N/A

Contract Funding Source™®
State

Contract Content Changes

Are there any required changes to the contract language? * )

" Yes @ No

Will the scope of the Services change?*
Yes = No

Is the payment deadline different than net (45)?*

Yes = No

Are there any changes in the Performance Targets?*

Yes = No

Are there any changes to the Submission deadlines for notes or supporting documentation?*

Yes = No

File Upload (?)
FY25 Renewal City of El Lago.pdf 164.33KB

Contract Owner

Contract Owner™ (7
Please Select Contract Owner

Dr. Evanthe Collins

Budget Manager Approval(s) ®

Page 63 of 319



Approved by

(tattoa cAtlegon

Contract Owner Approval ®

Approved by

Crianiste (ottend

Contracts Approval

Approve*

® Yes
No, reject entire submission
Return for correction

Approved by *
Approval Date®

tenaer  Stwat 7110/2024

 ————————————

Page 64 of 319



8-@}.%_.\{!;.‘;‘!5_‘ Annual Renewal Evaluation
Mental Health and 1DD

Current Fiscal Year Contract Information

Current Fiscal Year
2024

Contract ID#*
6627

Contractor Name *
Gulf Bend Center, The Community Mental Health and

Service Provided™ (?)
Crisis Intervention Helpline Services

Renewal Term Start Date ™ Renewal Term End Date*
9/1/2024 8/31/2025

Term for Off-Cycle Only (For Reference Only)

Agenda Item Submitted For: (?)
¢ Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)
Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)
Grant Proposal
+ Revenue
SOW-Change Order-Amendment#
- Other

Procurement Method{s)*

Check all that Apply

Competitive Bid Competitive Proposal
_ Request for Proposal Sole Source
Request for Application Request for Qualification
Request for Quote Tag-On
_ Interlocal + Consumer Driven
Not Applicable (If there are no funds required) Other

Contract Description / Type

. Personal/Professional Services Consultant
+ Consumer Driven Contract New Contract/Agreement
Memorandum of Understanding Amendment to Existing Contract
Affiliation or Preceptor Service/Maintenance
| BAA/DUA IT/Software License Agreement
I Pooled Contract Lease
+ Renewal of Existing Contract Other

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) (?)
Yes
No

= Unknown

Page 65 of 319



Contract NTE® (?)
$ 66,000.00

Rate(s)/Rate(s) Description

($5,500.00) for a call volume of 30 | to 500 calls per month.
If, volume of call(s) exceed 10% of current contracted range
the said volume will be billed at Twelve Dollars ($12) per call

Unit(s) Served *
7001

GIL Code(s)*
420015

Current Fiscal Year Purchase Order Number™*
0

Contract Requestor
Millie Wong

Contract Owner*

Jennifer Battle

File Upload (?)

Evaluation of Current Fiscal Year Performance

Have there been any significant performance deficiencies within the current fiscal year?*

Yes ¢ No

Were Services delivered as specified in the contract?”*

* Yes No

Did Contractor perform duties in a manner consistent with standards of the profession?*

@ Yes No

Did Contractor adhere to the contracted schedule?* (7

* Yes  No

Were reports, billing and/or invoices submitted in a timely manner?* (?)

® Yes U No

Did Contractor provide adequate or proper supporting documentation of time spent rendering services for the
Agency?*

® Yes No

Did Contractor render services consistent with Agency policy and procedures?™* (7)

¢ Yes No

Maintained legally required standards for certification, licensure, and/or training?* (?)

® Yes No

Renewal Determination (A ]

Is the contract being renewed for next fiscal year with this Contractor?* (?)

= Yes No

Page 66 of 319



Renewal Information for Next Fiscal Year

Eudget Units and.Armourits Gharged lo aach Budgst bz

Budget Unit Number™® Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
7001 $ 66,000.00 420015
Budget Manager Secondary Budget Manager™

llejay, Kevin Campbell, Ricardo

Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if applicable* 7
N/A

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure)* (?)

N/A
Fiscal Year* (?) Amount™® (?)

2025 $ 66,000.00

Next Fiscal Year Not to Exceed Amount for Master Pooled Contracts

Contract Funding Source®
County

Contract Content Changes

Are there any required changes to the contract Ianguage?* 7

Yes = No

Will the scope of the Services change? *
) Yes @ No
Is the payment deadline different than net (45)? *
~ Yes » No
Are there any changes in the Performance Targets?*
~ Yes = No
Are there any changes to the Submission deadlines for notes or supporting documentation?*
Yes = No

File Upload (7

Contract Owner

Contract Owner™ (?)
Please Select Contract Owner
Jennifer Battle

Budget Manager Approval(s) (4]

Page 67 of 319



Approved by

Contract Owner Approval @
Approved by

SRS

Approve™®

= Yes
No, reject entire submission
Return for correction

Approved by ¥
Approval Date ¥

rtewaee Stue 71312024

Contracts Approval - i

mm——m

Page 68 of 319



s Annual Renewal Evaluation

Mental Health and IDD

Current Fiscal Year Contract Information

Current Fiscal Year
2024

Contract ID#*
2020-0039

Contractor Name *

Harris County

Service Provided ™ (?)

Community Mental Health Grant Program OCR for Coordination of Mental Health and
Intellectual Developmental Disability Services for Harris County. [FY25 Revenue NTE:
$2,115,000.00].

Renewal Term Start Date * Renewal Term End Date*
9/1/2024 8/31/2025

Term for Off-Cycle Only (For Reference Only)

Agenda Item Submitted For: (?)
Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)
¢ Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)
Grant Proposal
| Revenue
SOW-Change Order-Amendment#
Other

Procurement Method(s)*
Check all that Apply

Competitive Bid Competitive Proposal
Request for Proposal Sole Source
Request for Application Request for Qualification
| Request for Quote Tag-On
v Interlocal Consumer Driven
Not Applicable (If there are no funds required) . Other

Contract Description / Type

Personal/Professional Services ' Consultant

Consumer Driven Contract New Contract/Agreement

Memorandum of Understanding Amendment to Existing Contract
| Affiliation or Preceptor I Service/Maintenance

BAA/DUA IT/Software License Agreement

Pooled Contract Lease

+ Renewal of Existing Contract Other

Page 69 of 319



Page 70 of 319

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) (?)
Yes

‘® No
Unknown

Contract NTE* ()
$ 2,115,000.00

Rate(s)/Rate(s) Description
N/A

Unit(s) Served *
N/A

GIL Code(s)*
N/A

Current Fiscal Year Purchase Order Number*
N/A

Contract Requestor*

Priscilla Ramirez

Contract Owner*

Kim Kornmayer

File Upload ()

Evaluation of Current Fiscal Year Performance

Have there been any significant performance deficiencies within the current fiscal year?*

Yes = No

Were Services delivered as specified in the contract? ™

@ Yes No

Did Contractor perform duties in a manner consistent with standards of the profession?*

¢ Yes No

Did Contractor adhere to the contracted schedule? ™ (?)

* Yes No

Were reports, billing and/or invoices submitted in a timely manner?” (?)

= Yes No

Did Contractor provide adequate or proper supporting documentation of time spent rendering services for the
Agency?* ®
e Yes No

Did Contractor render services consistent with Agency policy and procedures?™ (?)
@ Yes No

Maintained legally required standards for certification, licensure, and/or training?* (?)

¢ Yes . No

Renewal Determination




Is the contract being renewed for next fiscal year with this Contractor?* (?)

¢ Yes No

Renewal Information for Next Fiscal Year

Budget Units and Amounts Charged to each Budget Unit

Budget Unit Number® Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
9402 $ 599,761.00 403026

Budget Manager® Secondary Budget Manager*

Ramirez, Priscilla Puente, Giovanni

Budget Unit Number™ Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
9407 $1,515,239.00 403026

Budget Manager* Secondary Budget Manager*

Ramirez, Priscilla Puente, Giovanni

Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if applicable™ (?)

Based on annual revenue contract; reimbursable grant.

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure)* (?

N/A
Fiscal Year™ (?) Amount™ (7)

2025 $ 2,115,000.00

Next Fiscal Year Not to Exceed Amount for Master Pooled Contracts

Contract Funding Source™

County

Contract Content Changes

Are there any required changes to the contract language?* (7

Yes = No

Will the scope of the Services change?*
Yes = No

Is the payment deadline different than net (45)?*

Yes = No

Are there any changes in the Performance Targets?*
Yes = No

Are there any changes to the Submission deadlines for notes or supporting documentation?*
© Yes No

Page 71 of 319



Please Explain™

Invoice was originally due on the 20th, Harris County has
agreed to make the deadline the 25th of the following month.
Need to clarify if the 25th falls on the weekend, does that
impact the deadline due date.

File Upload (?)

Contract Owner

Contract Owner™ (?)
Please Select Contract Owner
Kim Kornmayer

Budget Manager Approval(s)

Approved by

Frcdevitir (. Aoonctes

Contract Owner Approval

Approved by

s papincret

Contracts Approval

Approve*

= Yes
No, reject entire submission
Return for correction

Approved by *
Approval Date®

Bottewaie  Stwcte 7/31/2024

m

Page 72 of 319



8-8 ks Annual Renewal Evaluation

Mental | |[-_.|‘m ad il‘li‘.l

Current Fiscal Year Contract Information

Current Fiscal Year
2024

Contract ID#*
6139

Contractor Name ™

Harris County Community Supervision and Corrections Department

Service Provided* (%)

Dual Diagnosis Residential Program for treatment (138 Beds) at 2312 Atascocita Road,
Humble, Texas for CSCD.

Renewal Term Start Date ™ Renewal Term End Date *
9/1/2024 8/31/2025

Term for Off-Cycle Only (For Reference Only)

Agenda Item Submitted For: (?)
Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)
Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)
Grant Proposal

+ Revenue
SOW-Change Order-Amendment#
Other

Procurement Method(s)*

Check all that Apply

Competitive Bid Competitive Proposal
Request for Proposal Sole Source
Request for Application Request for Qualification
Request for Quote Tag-On

v Interlocal Consumer Driven
Not Applicable (If there are no funds required) Other

Contract Description / Type

Personal/Professional Services Consultant
Consumer Driven Contract New Contract/Agreement
Memorandum of Understanding Amendment to Existing Contract
Affiliation or Preceptor Service/Maintenance
BAA/DUA IT/Software License Agreement
Pooled Contract Lease

¢ Renewal of Existing Contract Other

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) (?)

Yes
¢ No
Unknown

Page 73 of 319



Contract NTE* (?)
$ 5,951,331.00

Rate(s)/Rate(s) Description
N/A

Unit(s) Served
N/A

GIL Code(s)*
N/A

Current Fiscal Year Purchase Order Number™®
N/A

Contract Requestor™®

Sheenia Williams-Wesley

Contract Owner*

Monalisa Jiles

File Upload (?)

Evaluation of Current Fiscal Year Performance

Have there been any significant performance deficiencies within the current fiscal year?*

Yes = No

Were Services delivered as specified in the contract? ™

* Yes No

Did Contractor perform duties in a manner consistent with standards of the profession?*

= Yes No

Did Contractor adhere to the contracted schedule?™ (?)

® Yes No

Were reports, billing and/or invoices submitted in a timely manner?* ()

@ Yes No

Did Contractor provide adequate or proper supporting documentation of time spent rendering services for the
Agency?™ ()

s Yes No

Did Contractor render services consistent with Agency policy and procedures?* ]

e Yes No

Maintained legally required standards for certification, licensure, and/or training?* (%)

¢ Yes No

Renewal Determination

Is the contract being renewed for next fiscal year with this Contractor?* ()

* Yes No

Renewal Information for Next Fiscal Year @

Page 74 of 319



Budget Units and Amounts Charged to each Budget Unit

Budget Unit Number™ Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
6401 $ 5,951,331.00 540000
Budget Manager ™ Secondary Budget Manager ™

Williams-Wesley, Sheenia Jiles, Monalisa

Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if applicable™ (?)
n/a

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure) ™ (?)

n/a
Fiscal Year™ (? Amount® (?)

2025 $ 5,951,331.00

Next Fiscal Year Not to Exceed Amount for Master Pooled Contracts

Contract Funding Source™
County

Contract Content Changes

Are there any required changes to the contract Ianguage?* (7

Yes = No

Will the scope of the Services q::hange'i""r

Yes * No

Is the payment deadline different than net (45)?*

Yes * No

Are there any changes in the Performance Targets? ™
Yes « No

Are there any changes to the Submission deadlines for notes or supporting documentation?

Yes = No

File Upload (7

Contract Owner

Contract Owner™® (?)
Please Select Contract Owner

Monalisa Jiles

Budget Manager Approval(s) ®

Page 75 of 319



Approved by

S G- G ey

Contract Owner Approval ®

Approved by

i@ Contracts Approval ;

Approve*

= Yes
No, reject entire submission
Return for correction

Approved by *
Approval Date™

Betenain  Stece 8/2/2024

'm

Page 76 of 319



Annual Renewal Evaluation

CENTER
Mental Health and [DD

Current Fiscal Year Contract Information (~]

Current Fiscal Year
2024

Contract ID#*
2021-0259

Contractor Name*

Harris County Office of County Administration

Service Provided™® (?)

Request by the Office of County Administration for approval of a three-year interlocal
agreement with The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD in the amount of $8,931,880
for development of a Community Initiated Care program providing behavioral health-related
outreach, training, and services in response to the

mental health impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.

$3,010,700.00 allocated in year 1;
$2,960,590.00 allocated in year 2;
$2,960,590.00 allocated in year 3;

Renewal Term Start Date ™ Renewal Term End Date *
9/1/2024 10/25/2024

Term for Off-Cycle Only (For Reference Only)

Agenda ltem Submitted For: (7)
Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)
Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)
Grant Proposal

¥ Revenue
SOW-Change Order-Amendment#
Other

Procurement Method(s)*

Check all that Apply

_ Competitive Bid | Competitive Proposal
Request for Proposal Sole Source
Request for Application Request for Qualification
Request for Quote ' Tag-On

¥ Interlocal Consumer Driven

Not Applicable (If there are no funds required) Other

Page 77 of 319



Contract Description / Type

Personal/Professional Services Consultant
~ Consumer Driven Contract New Contract/Agreement
| Memorandum of Understanding Amendment to Existing Contract
Affiliation or Preceptor Service/Maintenance
BAA/DUA IT/Software License Agreement
. Pooled Contract | Lease
¥ Renewal of Existing Contract Other

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) (?)
Yes

s No

. Unknown

Contract NTE* (?)
$ 2,960,590.00

Rate(s)/Rate(s) Description

$3,010,700.00 allocated in year 1; $2,960,590.00 allocated
in year 2; $2,960,590.00 allocated in year 3;

Unit(s) Served™
7008

GIL Code(s)*
435060

Current Fiscal Year Purchase Order Number™®
N/A

Contract Requestor™
Millie Wong

Contract Owner®
Jennifer Battle

File Upload (?)

Evaluation of Current Fiscal Year Performance

Have there been any significant performance deficiencies within the current fiscal year?*

Yes * No

Were Services delivered as specified in the contract? ™

= Yes No

Did Contractor perform duties in a manner consistent with standards of the profession?*

* Yes No

Did Contractor adhere to the contracted schedule?* (?)

“ Yes No

Were reports, billing and/or invoices submitted in a timely manner?* (7)

* Yes No

Page 78 of 319



Did Contractor provide adequate or proper supporting documentation of time spent rendering services for the
Agency?* ()

® Yes No

Did Contractor render services consistent with Agency policy and procedures?* (?)

= Yes No

Maintained legally required standards for certification, licensure, and/or training?* ()
® Yes No

Renewal Determination

Is the contract being renewed for next fiscal year with this Contractor? ™ (?)
e Yes No

Renewal Information for Next Fiscal Year

Budget Units and Amounts Charged to each Budget Unit

Budget Unit Number™ Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.®
7008 $ 1,200,000.00 435060
Budget Manager™ Secondary Budget Manager ™

llejay, Kevin Campbell, Ricardo

Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if app!icable* Q)

n/a

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure)™ ()

n/a
Fiscal Year™ (%) Amount® (?)

2025 $ 1,200,000.00

Next Fiscal Year Not to Exceed Amount for Master Pooled Contracts

Contract Funding Source™
Federal Grant

Contract Content Changes

Are there any required changes to the contract Ianguage?* (?)
Yes = No

Will the scope of the Services change?*

Yes = No

Is the payment deadline different than net (45)?*

- Yes ¢ No

Are there any changes in the Performance Targets?*

Yes ¢ No

Page 79 of 319



Are there any changes to the Submission deadlines for notes or supporting documentation?*

Yes = No

File Upload (?)

Contract Owner

Contract Owner™ (?)
Please Select Contract Owner

Jennifer Battle
Budget Manager Approval(s) (~]

Approved by

Contract Owner Approval

Approved by

Ownfer iBwrrte

Contracts Approval

Approve™®

* Yes
- No, reject entire submission
- Return for correction

Approved by *
Approval Date®

Bortenaee Sttt 6/27/2024

Page 80 of 319



Contract ID#*
2022-0438

Contractor Name *
MHMRA of Brazos Valley

Service Provided* (?)
Crisis Intervention Helpline Services

Term for Off-Cycle Only (For Reference Only)

Agenda Item Submitted For: (?)

| Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)
Grant Proposal
Revenue
SOW-Change Order-Amendment#
Other

Procurement Method(s)*

Check all that Apply
Competitive Bid
Request for Proposal
Request for Application
Request for Quote

I Interlocal L4
Not Applicable (If there are no funds required)

Contract Description / Type

Personal/Professional Services
¥ Consumer Driven Contract
Memorandum of Understanding
Affiliation or Preceptor
BAA/DUA
Pooled Contract
¥+ Renewal of Existing Contract

' Yes
" No
= Unknown

Current Fiscal Year Contract Information (~]

Current Fiscal Year
2024

Renewal Term Start Date™ Renewal Term End Date *
9/1/2024 8/31/2025

« Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)

' Competitive Proposal

Sole Source

Request for Qualification
Tag-On

Consumer Driven

| Other

Consultant

New Contract/Agreement
Amendment to Existing Contract
Service/Maintenance

. IT/Software License Agreement

Lease
Other

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) (?)

Page 81 of 319



Contract NTE® (?)
$ 81,000.00

Rate(s)/Rate(s) Description

($6,750.00) for call volume of 501 to 700 calls per month. If,
volume of call(s) exceeds 10% of the current contracted
range then said volume will be billed at Eleven Dollars
($11.00) per call

Unit(s) Served*
0

GI/L Code(s)*
0

Current Fiscal Year Purchase Order Number*
0

Contract Requestor*
Millie Wong

Contract Owner*

Jennifer Battle

File Upload (?)

Evaluation of Current Fiscal Year Performance

Have there been any significant performance deficiencies within the current fiscal year?*

Yes = No

Were Services delivered as specified in the contract?*

* Yes No

Did Contractor perform duties in a manner consistent with standards of the profession? "
o Yes No

Did Contractor adhere to the contracted schedule?™ (%)

* Yes No

Were reports, billing and/or invoices submitted in a timely manner? ™ (?)

¢ Yes No

Did Contractor provide adequate or proper supporting documentation of time spent rendering services for the
Agency?”* (?

= Yes No

Did Contractor render services consistent with Agency policy and procedures?™ (2)

® Yes ' No

Maintained legally required standards for certification, licensure, and/or training?™* ()

® Yes No

Renewal Determination

Is the contract being renewed for next fiscal year with this Contractor?* (?)

* Yes _ No

Page 82 of 319



Renewal Information for Next Fiscal Year

Budget Units and Amounts Charged to each Budget Unit

Budget Unit Number® Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
7001 $ 81,000.00 420015

Budget Manager™ Secondary Budget Manager™

llejay, Kevin Campbell, Ricardo

Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if applicable * (?)
N/A

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure)® (?)

N/A
Fiscal Year® (%) Amount® (?)

2025 $ 81,000.00

Next Fiscal Year Not to Exceed Amount for Master Pooled Contracts

Contract Funding Source™

County

Contract Content Changes
Are there any required changes to the contract Ianguage?* (?)
Yes = No

Will the scope of the Services change?*
" Yes = No

Is the payment deadline different than net (45)?
Yes = No

Are there any changes in the Performance Targets? *

Yes = No

Are there any changes to the Submission deadlines for notes or supporting documentation?®

Yes = No

File Upload (7)

Contract Owner

Contract Owner ™ (?)
Please Select Contract Owner
Jennifer Battle

Budget Manager Approval(s) (~)

Page 83 of 319



Approved by

Approved by

Contracts Approval *

Approve ™

¢ Yes
No, reject entire submission
Return for correction

Approved by*
Approval Date *

Btenaer Stuat 713/2024

Contract Owner Approval (~ M |

m

Page 84 of 319



Page 85 of 319

Jamtls — Annual Renewal Evaluation
Mental Health and IDD

Current Fiscal Year Contract Information

Current Fiscal Year
2024

Contract ID#*
7605

Contractor Name ™

North Texas Behavioral Health Authority

Service Provided™ (?)

Crisis Intervention Helpline Services to Callers

Renewal Term Start Date Renewal Term End Date ™
9/1/2024 8/31/2025

Term for Off-Cycle Only (For Reference Only)

Agenda Item Submitted For: (?)
Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)
Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)
Grant Proposal

¥+ Revenue
SOW-Change Order-Amendment#
Other

Procurement Method(s)*
Check all that Apply

Competitive Bid Competitive Proposal
~ Request for Proposal _ Sole Source
Request for Application Request for Qualification
Request for Quote Tag-On
¥ Interlocal + Consumer Driven
Not Applicable (If there are no funds required) Other

Contract Description / Type

. Personal/Professional Services Consultant
Consumer Driven Contract New Contract/Agreement
Memorandum of Understanding Amendment to Existing Contract
Affiliation or Preceptor Service/Maintenance
BAA/DUA IT/Software License Agreement
Pooled Contract Lease
v Renewal of Existing Contract Other

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) (?)

Yes
No
= Unknown




Contract NTE* (%)
$ 0.00

Rate(s)/Rate(s) Description
$14.00/ per call

Unit(s) Served*
0

GIL Code(s)*
0

Current Fiscal Year Purchase Order Number™®
0

Contract Requestor™*
Millie Wong

Contract Owner®

Jennifer Battle

File Upload (?)

Evaluation of Current Fiscal Year Performance

Have there been any significant performance deficiencies within the current fiscal year? *

Yes ¢ No

Were Services delivered as specified in the contract? ™
= Yes No

Did Contractor perform duties in a manner consistent with standards of the profession?*

* Yes No

Did Contractor adhere to the contracted schedule?* (?)

* Yes No

Were reports, billing and/or invoices submitted in a timely manner? * (%)

* Yes No

Did Contractor provide adequate or proper supporting documentation of time spent rendering services for the
Agency?* ?

* Yes No

Did Contractor render services consistent with Agency policy and procedures?* 4]
* Yes No

Maintained legally required standards for certification, licensure, and/or training? * ()
¢ Yes No

Renewal Determination

Is the contract being renewed for next fiscal year with this Contractor?™ (7)

“ Yes No

Renewal Information for Next Fiscal Year

Page 86 of 319



Budget Units and Amounts Charged to each Budget Unit

Budget Unit Number® Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
7001 $ 186,000.00 420015

Budget Manager* Secondary Budget Manager ™

llejay, Kevin Campbell, Ricardo

Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if applicable * (?)
N/A

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure)™ ()

N/A
Fiscal Year* (?) Amount* (?)
2025 $ 186,000.00

Next Fiscal Year Not to Exceed Amount for Master Pooled Contracts

Contract Funding Source *

County

Contract Content Changes

Are there any required changes to the contract Ianguage?* ()

Yes = No

Will the scope of the Services change?*

Yes = No

Is the payment deadline different than net (45)2*

Yes = No

Are there any changes in the Performance Targets? *

" Yes ¢ No

Are there any changes to the Submission deadlines for notes or supporting documentation?™

Yes = No

File Upload (?)

Contract Owner

Contract Owner™ (?)
Please Select Contract Owner

Jennifer Battle

Budget Manager Approval(s) (]

Page 87 of 319



Approved by

Approved by

Contracts Approval

Approve*

* Yes
No, reject entire submission
Return for correction

Approved by 2
Approval Date™*

Crtewcir Stue 71312024

Contract Owner Approval [~

Page 88 of 319



il Annual Renewal Evaluation
Mental Healthoand Il\J;

Current Fiscal Year Contract Information

Current Fiscal Year
2024

Contract ID#*
2023-0622

Contractor Name™*

Texas Department of Family and Protective Services

Service Provided* (?)

To address the regional referral process, coordination of services and sharing of information
between The Harris Center and Department of Family and Protective Services

Renewal Term Start Date * Renewal Term End Date*
9/1/2024 8/31/2025

Term for Off-Cycle Only (For Reference Only)

Agenda ltem Submitted For: (?)
# Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)
Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)
. Grant Proposal
- Revenue
. SOW-Change Order-Amendment#
Other

Procurement Methot::t(e‘.)"r

Check all that Apply

Competitive Bid Competitive Proposal
Request for Proposal ! Sole Source
Request for Application Request for Qualification
Request for Quote Tag-On

# Interlocal | Consumer Driven
Not Applicable (If there are no funds required) Other

Contract Description / Type

Personal/Professional Services Consultant
Consumer Driven Contract New Contract/Agreement
¢ Memorandum of Understanding Amendment to Existing Contract
Affiliation or Preceptor Service/Maintenance
BAA/DUA IT/Software License Agreement
. Pooled Contract Lease
+ Renewal of Existing Contract Other

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) (?)

Yes
No
= Unknown

Page 89 of 319



Contract NTE® (?)
$ 0.00

Rate(s)/Rate(s) Description

Unit(s) Served*
2200

GIL Code(s)*
0

Current Fiscal Year Purchase Order Number™®
N/A

Contract Requestor ™

Sandra Brock

Contract Owner®

Sandra Brock

File Upload (?)

Evaluation of Current Fiscal Year Performance

Have there been any significant performance deficiencies within the current fiscal year?*

Yes *» No

Were Services delivered as specified in the contract?*

¢ Yes No

Did Contractor perform duties in a manner consistent with standards of the prc:fes.sicm‘i’"r

@ Yes No

Did Contractor adhere to the contracted schedule?™ (?)

® Yes No

Were reports, billing and/or invoices submitted in a timely manner? ¥ (7)

® Yes No

Did Contractor provide adequate or proper supporting documentation of time spent rendering services for the
Agency?* ()

e Yes No

Did Contractor render services consistent with Agency policy and procedures?™ ()

@ Yes No

Maintained legally required standards for certification, licensure, and/or training?’"r (?)

® Yes No

Renewal Determination

Is the contract being renewed for next fiscal year with this Contractor?™* (?)

¢ Yes No

Renewal Information for Next Fiscal Year (~]

Page 90 of 319



Budget Unit Number™ Amount Charged to Unit™ Expense/GL Code No.*
2200 $ 0.00 595000
Budget Manager* Secondary Budget Manager*

Shelby, Debbie Hooper Jr., Michael

Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if applicable™ (?)
No funds required. MOU for referral services only.

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure)* (?)

NA
Fiscal Year™® (7 Amount® (7

2025 $ 0.00

Next Fiscal Year Not to Exceed Amount for Master Pooled Contracts
0

Contract Funding Source™

General Revenue (GR)

Contract Content Changes

Are there any required changes to the contract language? ™ (?)
Yes = No

Will the scope of the Services change?®
. Yes = No

Is the payment deadline different than net (45)?*

Yes = No

Are there any changes in the Performance Targets?*

Yes ¢ No

Are there any changes to the Submission deadlines for notes or supporting documentation? o

Yes = No

File Upload (?)

Contract Owner

Contract Owner™ ()
Please Select Contract Owner

Sandra Brock

Budget Manager Approval(s) @

Page 91 of 319



Approved by

Otitin (Fambors Sttty

Approved by

Swnatta 5tk

Contracts Approval s

Approve*

* Yes
No, reject entire submission
Return for correction

Approved by X
Approval Date ™
Brtewaen  Stuce 7/23/2024

Contract Owner Approval (A0 |

m

Page 92 of 319



ihmts  Annual Renewal Evaluation

Mental Health and DD

Current Fiscal Year Contract Information

Current Fiscal Year
2024

Contract ID#*
6625

Contractor Name™*
The Burke Center

Service Provided* (?)

Crisis Intervention Helpline Services to Callers

Renewal Term Start Date*
9/1/2024

Term for Off-Cycle Only (For Reference Only)

Agenda Item Submitted For: (?)

Renewal Term End Date™
8/31/2025

Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)

| Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)

Grant Proposal

¥ Revenue
SOW-Change Order-Amendment#
Other

Procurement Method(s) ™
Check all that Apply
. Competitive Bid
Request for Proposal
~ Request for Application
Request for Quote
Interlocal

Not Applicable (If there are no funds required)

Contract Description / Type

Personal/Professional Services
Consumer Driven Contract
Memorandum of Understanding
Affiliation or Preceptor

_ BAA/DUA
Pooled Contract

¥ Renewal of Existing Contract

Competitive Proposal
Sole Source

Request for Qualification
Tag-On

Consumer Driven

Other

Consultant

New Contract/Agreement
Amendment to Existing Contract
Service/Maintenance
IT/Software License Agreement
Lease

Other

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) ()

Yes
= No
Unknown

Page 93 of 319



Contract NTE® (?)
$ 66,000.00

Rate(s)/Rate(s) Description
0

Unit(s) Served ™
0

GIL Code(s)*
0

Current Fiscal Year Purchase Order Number®
0

Contract Requestor™
Millie Wong

Contract Owner*
Jennifer Battle

File Upload (7)

Evaluation of Current Fiscal Year Performance

Have there been any significant performance deficiencies within the current fiscal year?*

Yes = No

Were Services delivered as specified in the contract?*
s Yes No

Did Contractor perform duties in a manner consistent with standards of the profession?’r

e Yes No

Did Contractor adhere to the contracted schedule?™® ()

* Yes No

Were reports, billing and/or invoices submitted in a timely manner?”* (?)

¢ Yes No

Did Contractor provide adequate or proper supporting documentation of time spent rendering services for the
Agency?”* ()

“ Yes  No

Did Contractor render services consistent with Agency policy and procedures?™* (?)

¢ Yes No

Maintained legally required standards for certification, licensure, and/or training? * ()

* Yes No

Renewal Determination

Is the contract being renewed for next fiscal year with this Contractor? * (7)

* Yes No

Renewal Information for Next Fiscal Year ()

Page 94 of 319



Budget Units and Amounts Charged to each Budget Unit

Budget Unit Number™* Amount Charged to Unit® Expense/GL Code No.*
7001 $ 66,000.00 420015
Budget Manager® Secondary Budget Manager ™

llejay, Kevin Campbell, Ricardo

Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if applicable™ (?)
N/A

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure) ™ (7)

N/A
Fiscal Year® (?) Amount® (2

2025 $ 66,000.00

Next Fiscal Year Not to Exceed Amount for Master Pooled Contracts

Contract Funding Source %

County

Contract Content Changes

Are there any required changes to the contract Ianguage?* (?

Yes * No

Will the scope of the Services change?™

Yes = No

Is the payment deadline different than net (45)? »
Yes = No

Are there any changes in the Performance Targets? ™

Yes = No

Are there any changes to the Submission deadlines for notes or supporting documentation?*

Yes = No

File Upload (7)

Contract Owner

Contract Owner™ (?)
Please Select Contract Owner
Jennifer Battle

Budget Manager Approval(s) (6]

Page 95 of 319



Approved by

Contract Owner Approval ®
Approved by

Contracts Approval

Approve®

* Yes
No, reject entire submission
Return for correction

Approved by *
Approval Date*

Fortenate  Stuce 71312024

Page 96 of 319



HARRIS Annual Renewal Evaluation

CENTER 7

Mental Health anddDD

Current Fiscal Year Contract Information

Current Fiscal Year
2024

Contract ID#*
5736

Contractor Name *

The University of Texas Health Science Center at Houston on behalf of Harris County
Psychiatric Center

Service Provided™ (7)

Mental health In-Patient Psychiatric Beds, Inpatient Competency Restoration Services and
Voluntary/Involuntary Civic Beds

Renewal Term Start Date ™ Renewal Term End Date ™
9/1/2024 8/31/2025

Term for Off-Cycle Only (For Reference Only)

Agenda ltem Submitted For: (?)
Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)
< Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)
Grant Proposal
| Revenue
SOW-Change Order-Amendment#
Other

Procurement Method(s) %

Check all that Apply

| Competitive Bid Competitive Proposal
Request for Proposal . Sole Source
Request for Application Request for Qualification
Request for Quote Tag-On
+ Interlocal Consumer Driven
Not Applicable (If there are no funds required) . Other

Contract Description / Type

| Personal/Professional Services Consultant

| Consumer Driven Contract New Contract/Agreement
Memorandum of Understanding Amendment to Existing Contract
Affiliation or Preceptor . Service/Maintenance
BAA/DUA IT/Software License Agreement
Pooled Contract Lease

+ Renewal of Existing Contract Other

Page 97 of 319



Page 98 of 319

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) (?)
Yes

@ No

" Unknown

Contract NTE* (?)
$ 47,463,519.20

Rate(s)/Rate(s) Description
$700.00 per bed day

Unit(s) Served *
2186, 2221, 2222, 9300

GIL Code(s)*
543056, 543002

Current Fiscal Year Purchase Order Number™

CT143717-Post-charge Medication, CT143717-Competency
Restoration

Contract Requestor™

Lance Britt

Contract Owner*

Lance Biritt

File Upload (?)

Evaluation of Current Fiscal Year Performance

Have there been any significant performance deficiencies within the current fiscal year?”™

Yes = No

Were Services delivered as specified in the contract? *

¢ Yes No

Did Contractor perform duties in a manner consistent with standards of the profession?*

* Yes  No

Did Contractor adhere to the contracted schedule?* (?)

* Yes No

Were reports, billing and/or invoices submitted in a timely manner?* (?)

® Yes No

Did Contractor provide adequate or proper supporting documentation of time spent rendering services for the
Agency?* (@

® Yes . No

Did Contractor render services consistent with Agency policy and procedures?™* ()

¢ Yes No

Maintained legally required standards for certification, licensure, and/or training?* (7
* Yes ' No

Renewal Determination ®




Is the contract being renewed for next fiscal year with this Contractor?* (?)

° Yes No

Renewal Information for Next Fiscal Year @

Budget Units and Amounts Charged to each Budget Unit

Budget Unit Number™®

Budget Manager™
Shelby, Debbie
Budget Unit Number™®

2221 $ 5,876,500.00

Budget Manager*
Shelby, Debbie

Budget Unit Number™
2222 $ 5,621,000.00

Budget Manager™®
Shelby, Debbie

Budget Unit Number™
9300 $ 1,533,000.00

Budget Manager*
Shelby, Debbie

Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if applicable* )
0.00

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure) ™ (7)
0.00

Fiscal Year™ (7

2025

Amount Charged to Unit*

2186 $ 34,433,019.20

Amount Charged to Unit*

Amount Charged to Unit*

Amount Charged to Unit*

Expense/GL Code No.*
543002

Secondary Budget Manager*
Hooper Jr., Michael

Expense/GL Code No.*
543069

Secondary Budget Manager™
Hooper Jr., Michael

Expense/GL Code No.*
543056

Secondary Budget Manager*

Hooper Jr., Michael

Expense/GL Code No.*
543056

Secondary Budget Manager™

Hooper Jr., Michael

Amount™ (7

$ 47,463,519.20

Next Fiscal Year Not to Exceed Amount for Master Pooled Contracts

Contract Funding Source ™
State

Contract Content Changes

Are there any required changes to the contract language? ™ (?)

Yes = No

Will the scope of the Services change? *

Yes = No

Page 99 of 319



Is the payment deadline different than net (45)?*

" Yes ® No

Are there any changes in the Performance Targets?*

. Yes = No

Are there any changes to the Submission deadlines for notes or supporting documentation?*
- Yes = No

File Upload (?)

Contract Ownher

Contract Owner® (7)
Please Select Contract Owner

Lance Britt
Budget Manager Approval(s) (]

Approved by

Fttir Hamedosa Shettyy

Contract Owner Approval

Approved by

oostce 5 tere

Contracts Approval

Approve*
= Yes
J No, reject entire submission
Return for correction

Approved by A
Approval Date™

Btenair St 8/1/2024

Page 100 of 319




Page 101 of 319

HARRIS Executive Contract Summary

CENTER s

Mental Health and IDD

Contract Section

Contractor®

University of Houston Downtown Marilyn Davies College of Business

Contract ID #*
NA

Presented To ™
» Resource Committee
Full Board

Date Presented ™
8/20/2024

Parties™ (9
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD and University of Houston Downtown Marilyn Davies College of
Business

Agenda Item Submitted For:* (?)
< Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)
Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)
Grant Proposal
| Revenue
SOW-Change Order-Amendmenti#
Other

Procurement Method(s) *
Check all that Apply

Competitive Bid Competitive Proposal
Request for Proposal Sole Source
Request for Application Request for Qualification
Request for Quote Tag-On
Interlocal Consumer Driven

+ Not Applicable (If there are no funds required) Other

Funding Information ™

* New Contract Amendment

Contract Term Start Date * (?) Contract Term End Date ™ (?)
71112024 7/31/2028

If contract is off-cycle, specify the contract term (?)

Fiscal Year™ () Amount® (?)
2024 $ 0.00

Funding Source®

General Revenue (GR)



8-&”}\' s Executive Contract Summary

Mental Health ndll!il

Contract Section

Contractor™

Dallas Theological Seminary

Contract ID #*
NA

Presented To*
# Resource Committee
! Full Board

Date Presented *

8/20/2024

Parties™ (%)
Dallas Theological Seminary & The Harris Center

Agenda Item Submitted For:* (?)
+ Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)

Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)
~ Grant Proposal

Revenue

SOW-Change Order-Amendmenti#

Other

Procurement Method(s)*
Check all that Apply

Competitive Bid Competitive Proposal
Request for Proposal Sole Source
Request for Application Request for Qualification
Request for Quote Tag-On
Interlocal Consumer Driven

+ Not Applicable (If there are no funds required) Other

Funding Information *

@ New Contract Amendment

Contract Term Start Date ™ (?) Contract Term End Date * (7
6/1/2024 6/30/2028

If contract is off-cycle, specify the contract term (?)

Fiscal Year® (7 Amount™ ()
2024 $ 0.00

Funding Source®

General Revenue (GR)

Page 102 of 319




Contract Description / Type™ (%)

Personal/Professional Services Consultant
' Consumer Driven Contract ¥ New Contract/Agreement
~ Memorandum of Understanding . Amendment to Existing Contract
< Affiliation or Preceptor I Service/Maintenance
- BAA/DUA . IT/Software License Agreement
Pooled Contract Lease
Renewal of Existing Contract . Other

Justification/Purpose of Contract/Description of Services Being Provided ™ (?)

This agreement will allow students enrolled in Dallas Theological Seminary to complete
clinical field placements as part of their degree requirements. The students will utilize the
skills gained through education while adhering to agency policy and procedures.

Contract Owner*

Ninfa Escobar

Previous History of Contracting with Vendor/Contractor ™

Yes No = Unknown

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)*

Yes No = Unknown

Community Partnership™ ()

* Yes No Unknown

Specify Name *

Dallas Theological Seminary

Supporting Documentation Upload (?)
2E - Practicum-Site-Application.pdf 166.91KB

Vendor/Contractor Contact Person

Name*

Rocelee Lubina

Address*

Street Address

3909 Swiss Avenue

Address Line 2

City State / Province / Region
Dallas X

Postal / Zip Code Country

75204-6411 us

Phone Number™*
(214) 887-5509.

Email *
rlubina@dts.edu

Budget Section

Budget Units and Amounts Charged to each Budget Unit

Page 103 of 319




Budget Unit Number™ Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
1108 $0.00 NA
Budget Manager Secondary Budget Manager

Campbell, Ricardo Campbell, Ricardo

Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if applicable * (?)
NA

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure)™ (?)

NA
Requester Name Submission Date
Daswani, Bianca 6/13/2024

Budget Manager Approval(s)

Approved by
Approval Date

Gratae Crmobel! 6/13/2024

Procurement Approval

File Upload (7

Approved by Approval Date
Sign

Contract Owner Approval

Approved by
Approval Date

Plnrte cbdeolat 6/20/2024

Contracts Approval

Approve®

* Yes
No, reject entire submission
Return for carrection

Approved by *
Approval Date™
ttescter  Steccte 711712024

Page 104 of 319




88 ks Annual Renewal Evaluation
Mental Health and 10D

Current Fiscal Year Contract Information

Current Fiscal Year
2024

Contract ID#*
7309

Contractor Name®
University of Houston-College of Medicine

Service Provided™* (?)

Physician will provide primary care services to patients at Agency's Clinic (Southeast,

Southwest, Northwest and Northeast).

Renewal Term Start Date ™

Renewal Term End Date ™

9/1/2024 8/31/2025

Term for Off-Cycle Only (For Reference Only)

Agenda Iltem Submitted For: (?)

Information Only (Total NTE Amount is Less than $250,000.00)

< Board Approval (Total NTE Amount is $250,000.00 or more)

Grant Proposal

Revenue

SOW-Change Order-Amendment#
Other

Procurement Method(s) ™
Check all that Apply
Competitive Bid
Request for Proposal
Request for Application
Request for Quote

Interlocal L4

| Not Applicable (If there are no funds required)

Contract Description / Type

Personal/Professional Services
Consumer Driven Contract
I Memorandum of Understanding
Affiliation or Preceptor
BAA/DUA
Pooled Contract
< Renewal of Existing Contract

' Competitive Proposal

Sole Source

Request for Qualification
Tag-On

Consumer Driven

Other

Consultant
New Contract/Agreement

- Amendment to Existing Contract

Service/Maintenance
IT/Software License Agreement
Lease

Other

Vendor/Contractor a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) (?)

Yes
¢ No
Unknown

Page 105 of 319




Contract NTE* (?)
$ 635,000.00

Rate(s)/Rate(s) Description

Unit(s) Served*
2801

GIL Code(s)*
543011

Current Fiscal Year Purchase Order Number®
CT143239

Contract Requestor*

Lance Britt

Contract Owner*
Lance Britt

File Upload (7)

Evaluation of Current Fiscal Year Performance

Have there been any significant performance deficiencies within the current fiscal year?*

Yes ¢ No

Were Services delivered as specified in the contract?*

* Yes No

Did Contractor perform duties in a manner consistent with standards of the profession?*
¢ Yes No

Did Contractor adhere to the contracted schedule?™ (?)

* Yes No

Were reports, billing and/or invoices submitted in a timely manner?* ()

* Yes No

Did Contractor provide adequate or proper supporting documentation of time spent rendering services for the
Agency?™ (?)

* Yes = No

Did Contractor render services consistent with Agency policy and procedures?* (?)

* Yes No

Maintained legally required standards for certification, licensure, and/or training?* )

* Yes No

Renewal Determination

Is the contract being renewed for next fiscal year with this Contractor?™ (?)

* Yes No

Renewal Information for Next Fiscal Year ®

Page 106 of 319




- Budget Units and Amounts Charged to each Budget Unit

Budget Unit Number*
2200

Budget Manager*
Shelby, Debbie

Budget Unit Number*

2120

Budget Manager™®
Shelby, Debbie

Budget Unit Number™*

9261

Budget Manager*
Ramirez, Priscilla

Budget Unit Number™*

9264

Budget Manager*
Ramirez, Priscilla

Budget Unit Number*

9267

Budget Manager®
Ramirez, Priscilla

Budget Unit Number*

9403

Budget Manager®

Ramirez, Priscilla

Budget Unit Number™*

9405

Budget Manager*
Ramirez, Priscilla

Budget Unit Number*

9501

Budget Manager®
Ramirez, Priscilla

Budget Unit Number*

9502

Budget Manager®
Ramirez, Priscilla

Amount Charged to Unit™*

Amount Charged to Unit*

Amount Charged to Unit*

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
$ 236,864.00 543011

Secondary Budget Manager*
Hooper Jr., Michael
Amount Charged to Unit*
$ 306,000.00 543011
Secondary Budget Manager ™
Hooper Jr., Michael

$ 55,407.00 540507

Secondary Budget Manager™®

Puente, Giovanni

Amount Charged to Unit* Expense/GL Code No.*
$ 20,454.00 540507

Secondary Budget Manager™*
Puente, Giovanni

$ 19,272.00 540507
Secondary Budget Manager*
Puente, Giovanni

Amount Charged to Unit*

$ 33,806.00 540507

Secondary Budget Manager™
Puente, Giovanni

$ 61,930.00 540507
Secondary Budget Manager*
Puente, Giovanni

Amount Charged to Unit*

$ 22,726.00 540507
Secondary Budget Manager*
Puente, Giovanni

Amount Charged to Unit*

$ 24,999.00 540507

Secondary Budget Manager*
Puente, Giovanni

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.™

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Expense/GL Code No.*

Page 107 of 319




Provide Rate and Rate Descriptions if applicable * (?)

6160

NP 1.1FTE 2279.2 service hours yearly $89 per hr $202,849
total

MD 0.1FTE 207.2 service hours yearly $173 per hr $35,846
total

Outpatient

NP 1.0FTE 2072 service hours yearly $89 per hr $184,408
total

MD 1.0FTE 2072 service hours yearly $173 per hr $358,456
total

Project WBS (Work Breakdown Structure)® (?)

n/a
Fiscal Year™ (?) Amount™ (7)

2025 $ 781,558.00

Next Fiscal Year Not to Exceed Amount for Master Pooled Contracts

Contract Funding Source ®
Federal Grant

Contract Content Changes
Are there any required changes to the contract language? *™
Yes = No

Will the scope of the Services change‘?*

Yes = No

Is the payment deadline different than net (45)?*

Yes = No

Are there any changes in the Performance Targets?*

Yes = No

Are there any changes to the Submission deadlines for notes or supporting documentation?*
Yes = No

File Upload (?)

Contract Owner

Contract Owner* (?)
Please Select Contract Owner
Lance Britt

Budget Manager Approval(s) [~

Page 108 of 319




Approved by Approved by
Dbt Hamndots Sty ELbesteettin (. Koomertes

Contract Owner Approval [~

Approved by

once &5 err

Approve®

< Yes
No, reject entire submission
Return for correction

Approved by &
Approval Date™®
Doeteneton Stecte 7117/2024

Contracts Approval

Page 109 of 319

m — o — ~



EXHIBIT F-7



Page 110 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStatID 13233616

Origination 06/2013 Owner  Stanley Adams
Last N/A Area  Fiscal
( ) Approved Management
{ ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised 03/2022

Next Review 1 year after
approval

FM.A.15 Corporate Card

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of the Corporate Card is to provide The Harris Center Executive Team with an efficient and
controllable method for making authorized purchases and paying for Harris Center expenses.

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center to issue corporate cards only to personnel who have been approved
by the Chief Executive Officer. The corporate card may only be used for Harris Center- related expenses.
Unauthorized or personal purchases are prohibited and the cardholder will be subject to disciplinary
action up to and including termination and prosecution for any violation of this policy.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all The Harris Center employees and/or staff issued or in possession of a
Corporate Card.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):

Corporate Card Agreement

5. PROCEDURE:

[M.A.15 Corporate Card. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/1 [2[1616/. Page 1 of 2
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Department Review Stanley Adams

Initial Assignment Stanley Adams

[M.A.15 Corporate Card. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/1 [2[1616/.

Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
06/2024
06/2024

Page 111 of 319

Page 2 of 2



EXHIBIT F-8



Page 112 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStat ID 16008926

Origination  02/2019 Owner  Keena Pace: Exec
Last N/A Area  Assessment,
( ) Approved Care & Continuity
t ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised  08/2023

Next Review 1 year after
approval

ACC.A.3 Development and Management for Mental Health
and IDD Service Wait/ Interest List

1. PURPOSE:

To define the policy, the development, and maintenance of waiting/interest lists, when The Harris Center
for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) has reached or exceeded its capacity to provide services.
This is in accordance with the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC) performance
contracts and Texas Administrative Codes (TAC).

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center that the Executive Management Team review the capacity of The
Harris Center's services and will approve the establishment of waiting/ Interest lists for Center services.
These determinations will be consistent with HHSC requirements. The Board of Trustees will be
informed at the first regular board meeting following the establishment of the waiting list.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

The Harris Center programs.

ACC.A.[IDevelopment and Management for Mental Health and IDD Cervice [] ait/ Interest List. Retrieved 08/2024. Official Page 1 of 2
copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/1600826/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and
IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196621
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196621
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81296
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81296
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 113 of 319

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference

only):
5. PROCEDURE:

Development and Management for Mental Health and IDD Services Wait/Interest list

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

+ Information Item R Texas Resilience and Recovery (TRR) Waiting List Maintenance Manual
+ Mental Health Community Standards, 36 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 301, Subchapter G

+ Local Authority Responsibilities, 40 Tex. Admin. Code Ch. 2, Subchapter G

« HCS and TxHmL Interest List Manual effective January 1, 2015 HCS and TxHmL Interest List

Maintenance Attachment J

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Departmental Review Keena Pace: Exec

Initial Assignment Keena Pace: Exec

ACC.A.[IDevelopment and Management for Mental Health and IDD Cervice [] ait/ Interest List. Retrieved 08/2024. Official
copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/1600826/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and

IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
07/2024
07/2024

Page 2 of 2


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13592849/latest

EXHIBIT F-9



Page 114 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStatID 15961221

Origination  03/2000 Owner  Toby Hicks
Last N/A Area  Human
( ) Approved Resources
t ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised  08/2023

Next Review 1 year after
approval

HR.A.3 Drug/Alcohol Testing Pre-Employment

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of the drug and alcohol pre-employment testing policy for The Harris Center for Mental
Health and Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (The Harris Center) is to promote a drug-free, safe
work environment for Harris Center staff and the community we serve.

2. POLICY:

The Harris Center requires all prospective new hires to submit to pre-employment testing for illegal drug
and alcohol usage only after a conditional job offer is made.

All offers of employment with The Harris Center are conditioned upon the prospective new hire
submitting to and receiving a negative drug and alcohol test in accordance with the Harris Center testing
procedures. Should the result of a urine test show diluted, the prospective new hire will be asked to
retest. A diluted sample is not a negative test result.

If the individual has a positive test result reflecting either illegal use of drugs or alcohol usage or a
medication that has not been prescribed, the conditional job offer will be withdrawn, and the individual
will not be considered for further employment.

Any prospective new hire, who refuses to take the test, refuses to sign the consent form, fails to appear
for testing, or tampers with the testing process or sample will be deemed to have withdrawn themselves
from the application process and will be ineligible for hire. All records relating to the individual's drug and
alcohol test results shall be kept confidential and maintained separately from their personnel file.

HR.A.[IDrug/Alcohol Testing Pre[Timployment. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/ Page 1 of 2
policy/15[61221/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7537198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

Page 115 of 319

This policy applies to all The Harris Center employees, staff, contractors, volunteers, and interns.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference

only):

+ Drug Testing Authorization and Chain of Custody Form

+ The Harris Center Employee Handbook

5. PROCEDURES:

Drug/Alcohol Testing Pre-Employment

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §§12101-12134, and §12210

+ Texas Commission on Human Rights Act, Tex. Labor Code Ch. 21

+ Authority to Prescribe Low-THC Cannabis to Certain Patients for Compassionate Use, Tex.

Occupation Code §§169.001-169.005

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Initial Assignment Toby Hicks

Initial Assignment Kendra Thomas: Counsel

HR.A.[IDrug/Alcohol Testing Pre[Timployment. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/

policy/15[61221/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
07/2024
07/2024

Page 2 of 2


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11341655/latest

EXHIBIT F-10



Page 116 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStatID 15738292

Origination  06/2023 Owner  Toby Hicks
Last N/A Area  Human
( ) Approved Resources
t ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised  06/2023

Next Review 1 year after
approval

HR.A.33 Drug Free Workplace

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose is for The Harris Center for Mental Health and Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities
(The Harris Center) to promote a safe, drug-free work environment for both Harris Center staff and the
community we serve.

2. POLICY:

The Harris Center for Mental Health and Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (The Harris Center)
provides a drug-free workplace in compliance with Public Law 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D of the Drug-
Free Workplace Act of 1988. The unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a
controlled substance such as inhalants, illegal drugs, or alcoholic beverages is prohibited on the
premises of The Harris Center or any of its facilities. Any Employee who violates this prohibition is
subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination under Center rules. All employees, as a
condition of employment, must comply with this policy. Employees are prohibited from using or being
under the influence of drugs and/or alcohol when providing services, representing The Harris Center, or
performing any agency activities, except as prescribed by a physician.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all staff employed by The Harris Center, including, direct and contracted
employees.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference

HR.A.[T1Drug [tree [l or[place. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15[182[2/. Page 1 of 2
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7537198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 117 of 319

only):

Drug/Alcohol Testing Pre-Employment

5. PROCEDURES:

Drug-Free Workplace

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2024
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 07/2024
Department Review Joseph Gorczyca 05/2024
Initial Assignment Toby Hicks 05/2024

HR.A.[T1Drug [tree [l or[place. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15[182[2/. Page 2 of 2

Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11875786/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13027590/latest

EXHIBIT F-11



Status ' Pending PolicyStat ID 16136301

Origination

Last

( ‘ Approved

( Effective

J

Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives Last Revised

Next Review

11/2020
N/A

Upon
Approval

09/2023

1 year after
approval

Owner

Area

Document
Type

Page 118 of 319

Toby Hicks

Human
Resources

Agency Policy

HR.A.5 Employee Counseling, Supervision, Progressive
Discipline, and Termination

1. PURPOSE:

This policy provides a mechanism to inform employees of the expected standards of conduct or
performance and the consequences when these expectations are not met. This policy enables Center
transparency so that employees understand what is expected of them, provides supervisors with
guidelines to follow when taking corrective action, provides appropriate documentation of the corrective
action in the employee's Human Resource record and establishes a fair, consistent, and collaborative

approach to policy administration.

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center to provide engaging employment for every employee, however The
Harris Center recognizes that conditions may develop which preclude continued employment. The Harris
Center is equally committed to enforcing Center policies and procedures through a collaborative
approach to discipline that treats people as valued partners, promotes mutual respect and problem
solving, and reinforces accountability while maintaining efficient and effective operations. Any employee
who engages in conduct detrimental to the expressed purpose of The Harris Center or violates its
established and approved policies and procedures is subject to disciplinary action up to and including

termination.

While The Harris Center wishes to help employees experiencing performance problems. The Harris
Center reserves the right to terminate employees at its discretion. In general, The Harris Center follows a
progressive disciplinary procedure beginning with a verbal warning; however, discipline may begin at any

HR.A.5 Umployee Counseling[ T upervision Progressive Disciplineand Termination. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 1 of [
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/161601/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7537198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 119 of 319

step in the process up to and including immediate termination depending upon the seriousness of the
infraction.

Federal and state law prohibit The Harris Center from taking adverse employment action (like
disciplinary actions, demotion, change in compensation, and termination) against employees who
participate in legally protected activity. Also, federal and state law prohibit The Harris Center from taking
adverse employment actions against employees on the basis of race, creed, color, national origin,
religion, sex, pregnancy, childbirth or a related medical condition, age, veteran status, disability, or any
characteristic as protected by law. The Harris Center shall enforce discipline uniformly so that
employees have reasonable expectations about the consequences of their actions, and so that The
Harris Center reduce their risk of discrimination claims. The Harris Center's exercise of discretion shall
always be based on legitimate business and legal considerations and shall never be discriminatory or
retaliatory.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all staff employed by The Harris Center including, both direct and contracted
employees.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS:

Notice of Disciplinary Action

5. PROCEDURE:

6. REFERENCE: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

+ The Harris Center's Employee Handbook

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending

Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2024

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 07/2024

Department Review Joseph Gorczyca 07/2024
HR.A.5 Umployee Counseling[ T upervision Progressive Disciplineand Termination. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 2 of [

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/161601/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 120 of 319

Initial Assignment Toby Hicks 07/2024

HR.A.5 Umployee Counseling[ T upervision Progressive Disciplineand Termination. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page [of [
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/161601/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



EXHIBIT F-12




Page 121 of 319

Status ' Pending PolicyStat ID 16089129

Origination  03/2000 Owner  Toby Hicks
Last N/A Area  Human
( ) Approved Resources
t ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised  09/2023

Next Review 1 year after
approval

HR.A.9 Employment Eligibility Verification for Worker in the
United States

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to ensure compliance with the provisions for employment eligibility
verification in accordance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act (IRCA).

2. POLICY:

All employees and contract consultants of The Harris Center for Mental Health and Intellectual and
Developmental Disability (The Harris Center) will be required to furnish to the Department of Human
Resource Services copies of documentation indicating their legal authorization to work in the United
States. Failure to produce such documents will prevent the person from working with The Harris Center.
The Harris Center will follow all requirements established in the Immigration Reform and Control Act of
1986.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all staff employed by The Harris Center including, both direct and contracted
employees.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS:

+ Employment Eligibility Verification (Form 1-9) Attachment

A

HR.A.[JCmployment [ligibility Cerification for [] orler in the [Inited [tates. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 1 of 2
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/160812[/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7537198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

+ List of Acceptable Documents which Establish Identity and Employment

Eligibility

Employment

5. PROCEDURES:

Page 122 of 319

Attachment
B

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986

+ The Harris Center's Employee Handbook

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Department Review Joseph Gorczyca

Initial Assignment Toby Hicks

HR.A.[JCmployment [ligibility Cerification for [] orler in the [Inited [tates. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/160812[/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
07/2024
07/2024

Page 2 of 2


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12432688/latest

EXHIBIT F-13



Page 123 of 319

Status ' Pending PolicyStat ID 15783331

Origination 06/2023 Owner  Nina Cook: Dir
Last N/A Area  Fiscal
( ) Approved Management
( ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised  06/2023

Next Review 1 year after
approval

FM.A.12 Guidelines for The Use of Purchase Orders for
Goods and Non-Community Services

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to establish the use of purchase orders (PO) as a legally binding contract
between The Harris Center and a business entity that obligates the business entity to provide goods or
services in exchange for money or other consideration.

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center to promote effective, professional, and consistent procurement for
The Harris Center in compliance with applicable local, state, and federal laws. The Harris Center shall
establish procedures related to the use of purchase orders to complete purchases of goods or non-
community services.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all Harris Center employees.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):
Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and Services Policy

The Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and/ or Services Dollar Limit Threshold & Requirements
Policy

[M.A.12 [luidelines for The [Ise of Purchase Orders for [loods and [Jon[Community [ervices. Retrieved 08/2024. Official Page 1 of [
copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/158[TT1/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and
IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195585
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195585
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12504621/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13711494/approve
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13711494/approve

5. PROCEDURES:

Guidelines for The Use of Purchase Orders for Goods and Non-Community Services

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

Contracts Management for Local Authorities, 25 Tex. Admin. Code Ch. 412, Subchapter B

Contracts Management for Local Authorities, 40 Tex. Admin. Code Ch. 2, Subchapter B

Texas Grant Management Standards (TXGMS)

Code of Federal Regulation: 2 C.F.R. Part 200

Texas Government Code: Title 10, Subtitle D, Chapter 2155 - 2158 Purchasing General
Rules and Procedures, Subchapter A, General Provisions

Professional Services Procurement Act, Texas Government Code Chapter 2254

Texas Government Code Chapter 2269

Page 124 of 319

Texas Health & Safety Code, Chapter 250, §533.007, §533.035, §534.052, §534.055, §534.061,

§534.065, and §534.066

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Department Review Stanley Adams

Initial Assignment Nina Cook: Dir

[M.A.12 [luidelines for The [Ise of Purchase Orders for [loods and [Jon[Community [ervices. Retrieved 08/2024. Official
copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15[8TT1/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and

IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
07/2024
07/2024

Page 2 of [J


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13437679/latest

Older Version Approval Signatures

Management of Board

Approval

CEO Approval

Legal Review
Compliance Review
Department Review

Initial Assignment

[M.A.12 [uidelines for The [Ise of Purchase Orders for [loods and [on[Community Lervices. Retrieved 08/2024. Official
copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15[8TT1/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and

IDD

Christopher Webb: Audit

Wayne Young: Exec
Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Anthony Robinson: VP
Steve Evans: Controller

Nina Cook: Dir

06/2023

05/2023
05/2023
05/2023
05/2023
04/2023

Page 125 of 319

Page [of [J



EXHIBIT F-14




Page 126 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStatID 16214789

Origination  03/2005 Owner Mustafa
Last N/A Cochinwala: Dir
( ) Approved Area  Information
| ) Effective  Upon Management
Mental Health and IDD Approval Document Agency Policy
Transforming Lives Last Revised 09/2023 Type

Next Review 1 year after
approval

HIM.IT.A.3 Incident Response Policy

1. PURPOSE:

This policy establishes that The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD will maintain incident response
capabilities and procedures.

2. POLICY:

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD will ensure that information security incidents are reported,
investigated, and responded to according to regulatory requirements and to limit damages.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

All Harris Center staff, volunteers, contractors, programs, and services.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):

Breach Notification

5. PROCEDURES:

Incident Response Procedure

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

HIM.IT.A.OIncident Response Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/ Page 1 of 2
1621418[/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195560
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195560
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11587249/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958972/latest

Page 127 of 319

STANDARDS:

* NIST SP 800-53 Rev. 4 CP-2, IR-8

- HIPAA Security Rule 45 C.F.R. §§ 164.308(a)(6), 164.308(a)(7),
164.310(a)(2)(i),164.312(a)(2)(ii)

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date
Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2024
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 07/2024
Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 07/2024
Initial Assignment Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 07/2024

Older Version Approval Signatures

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit 09/2023
Approval
CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2023
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 08/2023
Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 08/2023
Initial Assignment Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 08/2023
Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit 09/2022
Approval
CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2022
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 08/2022
Compliance Review Anthony Robinson: VP 08/2022
Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 08/2022
Initial Assignment Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 08/2022
HIML.IT.A. DIncident Response Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http:/theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/ Page 2 of 2

1621418[/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



- EXHIBIT F-15



Status | Pending PolicyStatID 16214792

Page 128 of 319

Origination 08/2014 Owner  Mustafa
Last N/A Cochinwala: Dir
C ) Approved Area  Information
GAD Effective  Upon Management
Mental Health and IDD Approval Document Agency Policy

Transforming Lives Last Revised

Next Review

09/2023 Type

1 year after

HIM.IT.A.2 Information [ecurity Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

approval

HIM.IT.A.2 Information Security Policy

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to promote effective information security practices at The Harris Center for
Mental Health by defining and implementing information security standards.

2. POLICY:

It is The Harris Center's policy to identify and evaluate the likelihood and consequences of threats to the
security of confidential information and implement reasonable and appropriate measures to safeguard
the Confidentiality, Availability, and Integrity of that information. The Center's information policy and
procedures are based on NIST SP 800-53 and the HIPAA Security Rule.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all Harris Center Employees/Staff. All independent contractors who provide
services that require access to the Computer Network will be required to adhere to this policy, as well as
to any procedures established to support this policy.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):
Breach Notification

Workforce Member Network Internet Use

Off-Premises Equipment Usage

Page 1 of 2

16214[12/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195560
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195560
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11587249/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11438283/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12226009/latest

5. PROCEDURES:

Information Security procedures

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

Page 129 of 319

+ HIPAA Security & Privacy-Security Standards for Protection of Electronic Protected Health

Information, 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C
+ NIST SP 800-53 Rev. 4 PM-1, PS-7
+ CARF: Section 1., Subsection J., Technology

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir
Initial Assignment Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir

HIM.IT.A.2 Information [ecurity Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

16214[12/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
07/2024
07/2024

Page 2 of 2


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11438285/latest

EXHIBIT F-16



Page 130 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStatID 16214779

Origination 04/2016 Owner  Kia Walker: Chief
Last N/A Nursing Officer
¢ } Approved Area  Medical Services
( ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised 08/2023

Next Review 1 year after
approval

MED.NUR.A.1 - Least Restrictive Interventions and
Management of Aggressive Behavior

1. PURPOSE:

To prevent incidents and manage aggressive behavior at The Harris Center for IDD and Mental Health
facilities.

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center to minimize the number of incidents of aggressive behavior through
staff training in the use of least restrictive interventions to manage behavioral emergencies. Further, it is
the policy of the Harris Center to reduce the use of restraint and seclusion as much as possible and to
ensure, (a) that the least restrictive methods of interventions are used and that, wherever possible,
alternatives are first attempted and determined ineffective to protect patients, staff members or others
from harm; and (b) the rights and well-being of individuals are protected during the use of restraint or
seclusion.

It is the policy of The Harris Center to support each patient’s right to be free from restraint or seclusion
and, therefore limit the use of these interventions to emergencies in which there is an imminent risk of a
patient physically harming him/herself or others. Restraint or seclusion may only be used when less
restrictive interventions have been determined to be ineffective in protecting the patient or others from
harm. The patient has a right to be free from restraint/seclusion imposed as a means of coercion,
punishment, discipline, or retaliation by staff. Restraint/seclusion will not be based on the history of past
use or dangerous behavior, as a convenience for staff, or a substitute for adequate staffing.

The patient’s rights, dignity, privacy, safety, and well-being will be supported and maintained. Restraint or

MLD.UUR.A.1 [least Restrictive Interventions and Management of Aggressive Lehavior. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at ~ Page 1 of [
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16214TT/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=6751604
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=6751604
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 131 of 319

seclusion will be discontinued as soon as possible. Patients in restraints/seclusion will be closely
monitored and evaluated and immediately assisted if a potentially dangerous situation exists, i.e.
choking, seizure, etc. PRN orders may not be used to authorize the use of restraint or seclusion.

The Harris Center is committed to preventing, reducing, and striving to eliminate the use of restraints and
seclusion, as well as preventing emergencies that have the potential to lead to the use of these
interventions. The Harris Center leadership supports these efforts through ongoing staff training and
performance improvement activities.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

All staff employed by The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD, including contracted employees.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):
+ Seclusion and Restraints Physician Order Form
Registered Nurse Seclusion/Restraint Progress Note
Registered Nurse/License Vocational Nurse Emergency Injection Note
+ Seclusion/Restraint Monitoring Form
Consultation Request Form

Debriefing Form

5. PROCEDURES:

Least Restrictive Intervention and Management of Aggressive Behavior Psychiatric Emergency
Services (PES) Procedure

Jail - Monitoring Assaultive Inmates/Patients
MH - Managing Disruptive Behaviors

DDRP
POC-06 Psychiatric Emergency Care
POC-07 Use of Force
POC-09 Behavioral Emergency
POC-SR-01 Restraint and Seclusion
POC-11 Special Precautions

CPEP

« PES Least Restrictive Intervention and Management of Aggressive Behaviors Procedure
CSU Least Restrictive Intervention and Management of Aggressive Behaviors Procedure

Elopement of Consumer

MLD.UUR.A.1 [least Restrictive Interventions and Management of Aggressive Lehavior. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at ~ Page 2 of [
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16214TT/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13161495/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13161495/latest

Emergency overhead paging

Levels of Monitoring and Precautionary Measures
+ Observation of Minors in PES
+ Visual Skin Inspection and Contraband Search

Milieu Management Procedure

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

+ Rights Relating to Treatment, Tex. Health & Safety Code Chapter 576, Subchapter B

Page 132 of 319

Rights of Persons Receiving Mental Health Services, 25 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 404,

Subchapter E

Development, Implementation & Monitoring of Effectiveness of Behavior Therapy Programs, 40

Tex. Admin. Code §5.406
+ Use of Restraint, 40 Tex. Admin. Code §5.408

Interventions in Mental Health Services, 25 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 415, Subchapter F

« CARF Section 2.F: Promoting Nonviolent Practices
+ TXMHMR MH Community Standards Section 7

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit

Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec

Final Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel

Department Review Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr
(1101 1817)

Initial Assignment Kia Walker: Chief Nursing
Officer

MID.R.A.1 [keast Restrictive Interventions and Management of Aggressive [lehavior. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16214TT/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
07/2024

07/2024

Page [of [J



EXHIBIT F-17



Page 133 of 319

Status = Pending PolicyStat ID 16214800

Origination  11/2012 Owner  Mustafa
Last N/A Cochinwala: Dir
C ) Approved Area  Information
GAD Effective  Upon Management
Mental Health and IDD Approval Document Agency Policy

Transforming Lives Last Revised = 09/2023 Type

Next Review 1 year after
approval

HIM.IT.A.4 Off-Premises Equipment Usage

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to ensure proper assignment and return of all property and equipment
owned, leased, or in possession of The Harris Center for Mental Health and Intellectual and
Developmental Disabilities (The Harris Center) employees for both temporary and permanent use.

2. POLICY:

All property and equipment owned, leased, or in the possession of The Harris Center are assigned to a
unit, a location, and an employee. Most properties will not leave the assigned unit. In the event that it is
essential for property or equipment to be used off-premises, written approval must be obtained from the
Unit Director. Property and/or Equipment may either be signed out to an employee on a temporary basis
to complete a specific assignment or on a longer-term basis if the location of the property or equipment
is essential for day to day performance of the job. Property and/or equipment signed out to an employee
becomes the financial responsibility of that employee. All property and equipment shall be returned to
The Harris Center upon termination of employment or completion of a special assignment, internship, or
volunteer experience. Workforce members must report all instances of equipment damage, loss, or theft
via The Harris Center incident reporting system.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all interns, volunteers, and staff employed by The Harris Center, including, both
direct and contracted employees. Property and equipment covered by this policy include 1) all property
and equipment with The Harris Center numbered inventory tags on it, including laptop computers, and 2)
leased equipment or other equipment that represents a financial obligation of The Harris Center.

HIM.IT.A.4 OffPremises [ uipment [Isage. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/ Page 1 of 2
16214800/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195560
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195560
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 134 of 319

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):
Information Security Policy

Request to Transfer Property Form

5. PROCEDURES:

Property Inventory

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

A. CARF: Section 1., Subsection J., Technology

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date
Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2024
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 07/2024
Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 07/2024
Initial Assignment Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 07/2024

HIM.IT.A.4 OffPremises [ uipment [Isage. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/ Page 2 of 2
16214800/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121254/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11321653/latest

EXHIBIT F-18




Status = Pending PolicyStat ID 16089119

Origination
Last
( ! Approved
{ Effective
/
Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives Last Revised

Next Review

03/2000
N/A

Upon
Approval

08/2024

1 year after
approval

Owner

Area

Document
Type

Page 135 of 319

Toby Hicks

Human
Resources

Agency Policy

HR.A.18 Payment of Accrued Leave Upon Separation

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to define employee payment of accrued leave upon separation from The
Harris Center for Mental Health and Intellectual and Developmental Disability (The Harris Center).

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center to pay employees for accrued time upon separation, in accordance
with applicable laws and the Harris Center's Paid Time Off Plan Summary, and to maintain the required
supporting documents and records. Payment of accrued paid time off may be withheld if the employee
fails to return The Harris Center property (e.g. electronic devices) upon voluntary separation. Involuntary
terminations will result in no payout of accrued paid time off. However, an involuntary termination due to
reduction in force (RIF) or layoff is paid out subject to the Paid Time Off Plan Summary and return of The

Harris Center property.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all staff employed by The Harris Center.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS:

« HR.B.20 Recording Employee Time Worked and Maintaining PER:8

+ Paid Time Off Plan Summary

HR.A.18 Payment of Accrued [eave [lpon [eparation. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/1608 11 [/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7537198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11155153/latest/

Page 136 of 319

5. PROCEDURES:

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

The Harris Center's Employee Handbook

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2024
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 07/2024
Department Review Joseph Gorczyca 07/2024
Initial Assignment Toby Hicks 07/2024

HR.A.18 Payment of Accrued [eave [lpon [eparation. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 2 of 2

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/1608 11 [/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



EXHIBIT F-19



Status ' Pending PolicyStat ID 14433301

Origination

Last

( ‘ Approved

( Effective

J

Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives Last Revised

Next Review

11/2022
N/A

Upon
Approval

11/2022

1 year after
approval

Owner

Area

Document
Type

Page 137 of 319

Kendra Thomas:
Counsel

Leadership
Agency Policy

LD.A.7 Performance Reporting and Monitoring of Service
Contracts

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to ensure The Harris Center establishes a process for the ongoing

evaluation and monitoring of Service contracts.

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center to assess and monitor the business value, financial
performance, productivity and promptly identify potential problems and compliance issues related
to Service contracts. All Service contracts must be audited at least once during the terms of the
contract. Additional audits may be required as the need arises. Service Contractors will be
required to file monthly reports with the Harris Center, providing information specified by the Chief
Executive Officer for use in monitoring performance under contracts.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all Harris Center employees, programs, and all contracts for Goods and/or

Services.

4. PROCEDURES:

Performance Reporting and Monitoring of Service Contracts

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference

[D.A.JPerformance Reporting and Monitoring of [ervice Contracts. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/144[T101/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4197055
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4197055
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81303
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11192354/latest/

Page 138 of 319

only):

State Service Contract Monitoring and Performance Reporting

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

Contracts Management for Local Authorities, Title 25 Tex. Admin. Code, Chapter 412, Subchapter B

Contracts Management for Local Authorities, Title 40 Tex. Admin. Code, Chapter 2, Subchapter B,

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 07/2024
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 06/2024
Initial Assignment Shannon Fleming: Counsel 10/2023

[CW]
[D.A.JPerformance Reporting and Monitoring of [ervice Contracts. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 2 of 2

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/144[T101/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13103468/latest

EXHIBIT F-20



Page 139 of 319

Status = Pending PolicyStatID 15663668

Origination 06/2008 Owner  Tanya White: Mgr
Last N/A Area  Medical Services
f ' Approved ;
PP Document Agency Policy
t ). Effective  Upon Type
Mental Health and IDD Approval
Transforming Lives Last Revised  06/2023

Next Review 1 year after
approval

MED.PHA.A.5 Pharmacy Services and Outpatient
Prescription Purchase Plan

1. PURPOSE:

To provide pharmaceutical services to the Harris Center patients via The Harris Center or contractual
pharmacies.

2. POLICY:

It is the goal of The Harris Center to ensure all consumers in need of "all medications" or "psychoactive
and other medications" receive those medications. To this end, The Harris Center shall maintain
pharmacy services, which will be available either at The Harris Center program sites or through
contractual agreements. The Harris Center Pharmacies shall be licensed by the Texas State Board of
Pharmacy and shall operate in accordance with all applicable state and federal laws. A licensed
pharmacist will staff The Harris Center Pharmacies. Medication prescribed by an Agency or contract
prescriber will be provided to the consumer at a cost based on the consumer's ability to pay.

The Harris Center pharmacy program will primarily dispense prescriptions written by The Harris Center
prescribers or contractual prescribers based on The Harris Center Formulary(s).

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

The Harris Center Pharmacies and contracted pharmacies.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference

MIID.PHA.A.5 Pharmacy [ervices and Outpatient Prescription Purchase Plan. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 1 of 2
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/1566668/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=5637438
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=5637438
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

only):

The Harris Center Fee Manual

Harris Center Prescription Form PHAR: 2.001

5. PROCEDURES:

Pharmacy Services and Outpatient Prescription Purchase Plan

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

Page 140 of 319

General Provisions. Pharmacy and Pharmacists, Title 3. Tex. Occ. Code, Subtitle J, Chapters 551-569

Administrative Practice and Procedures. Title 22. Tex. Admin. Code, Chapters 281-315

Texas Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. Title 6. Tex. Health & Safety Code, Chapters 431-486

CARF Section 2E

Approval Signatures

Step Description

Management of Board
Approval

CEO/Board Approval
Legal 2nd Review

Pharmacy &Therapeutic
Committee

Pharmacy Department Review
Legal 1st Review

CMO Review

Initial

MIID.PHA.A.5 Pharmacy [ervices and Outpatient Prescription Purchase Plan. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/1566668/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Approver

Christopher Webb: Audit

Wayne Young: Exec
Kendra Thomas: Counsel

Angela Babin: Dir

Tanya White: Mgr
Obiajulu Enaohwo

Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr
(1101 1817)

Tanya White: Mgr

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
06/2024

06/2024
06/2024
05/2024

04/2024

Page 2 of 2


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13592843/latest/

EXHIBIT F-21



Page 141 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStatID 16020734

Origination 07/2023 Owner  Danyalle Evans
Last N/A Area  Medical Services
¢ \ Approved A i
Document Agency Policy
( ) Effective  Upon Type
Mental Health and IDD Approval
Transforming Lives Last Revised 07/2023

Next Review 1 year after
approval

COM.A.5 Professional Practice Evaluation Policy

1. PURPOSE:

To establish a systematic process to evaluate and confirm the current competency of practitioners’
performance of privileges and professionalism at The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD.

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center to ensure that licensed and unlicensed providers meet the minimum
credential and performance standards, as applicable. Professional practice evaluation will be the
process for ensuring credentialing and performance standards.

Professional Practice Evaluation is conducted monthly during a provider's first three (3) months of
employment. Focused Professional Practice Evaluation ( FPPE) will transition to Ongoing Professional
Practice Evaluation (OPPE) after a minimum of three (3) months of FPPE. The reviews are performed by
members of the Professional Practice Evaluation Committee. Each service evaluates and recommends
its service-specific performance targets and thresholds.

The Chief Medical Officer or designee also evaluates and recommends service-based OPPE indicators.
Focused Professional Practice Evaluation (FPPE) may be triggered through concerning practice trends,
events, or incidents identified through FPPE, OPPE, and medical peer review activities. FPPE will be
implemented when there are concerns regarding the provision of safe, high-quality patient care by a
current medical staff member or issues of professionalism.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

The policy applies to all licensed or non-licensed providers providing services to clients at the Harris

COM.A.5 Professional Practice [valuation Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/ Page 1 of 2
policy/16020[14/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7649937
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7649937
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 142 of 319

Center.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):

5. PROCEDURE:

Professional Practice Evaluation Committee

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

Staff Member Competency. 1 Tex. Admin. Code §353.1413

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2024
Final Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 07/2024
Department Review Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr 06/2024

(1101 1817)
Initial Assignment Danyalle Evans 06/2024
COM.A.5 Professional Practice [valuation Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/ Page 2 of 2

policy/16020[14/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13638133/latest

EXHIBIT F-22




Page 143 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStatID 16136279

Origination  08/2022 Owner  Toby Hicks
Last N/A Area  Human
( ) Approved Resources
t ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised  09/2023

Next Review 1 year after
approval

HR.A.28 Sexual Harassment Policy

1. PURPOSE:

To ensure all staff, contractors, volunteers, and interns of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
respond immediately and take immediate and appropriate corrective action in response to sexual
harassment in the workplace.

2. POLICY:

The Harris Center is committed to providing a work environment free from sexual harassment. In pursuit
of this goal, the Harris Center adheres to all relevant federal, state, and local laws and regulations
regarding sexual harassment. The Harris Center strictly prohibits and does not tolerate any form of
sexual harassment and any other conduct that creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work
environment based on sex. In addition, the Harris Center prohibits harassing conduct against anyone for
involvement in reporting or investigation of sexual harassment claims.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

All Harris Center Staff, contractors, volunteers, and interns.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):

The Harris Center Compliance PlanLD11A Corporate Compliance

HR.A.28 [e[ual Harassment Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/ Page 1 of 2
161062[1/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7537198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12167871/latest

Page 144 of 319

5. PROCEDURE:

Sexual Harassment Procedure

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

+ Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VII), 42 U.S.C. §§2000e-2000e-17
+ Unlawful Employment Practices, Texas Labor Code Chapter 21, Subchapter B

» Guidelines on Discrimination Because of Sex, 29 CFR Part 1604.011-

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2024
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 07/2024
Department Review Joseph Gorczyca 07/2024
Initial Assignment Toby Hicks 07/2024

HR.A.28 [e[ual Harassment Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/ Page 2 of 2

161062[1/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958982/latest

EXHIBIT F-23



Page 145 of 319

Status = Pending PolicyStat ID = 14982550

Origination 01/2023 Owner  Nina Cook: Dir
Last N/A Area  Fiscal
( ) Approved Management
{ ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised  01/2023

Next Review 1 year after
approval

FM.A.7 The Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and /
or Services

1. PURPOSE:

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD supports a purchasing environment that recognizes the
unique purchasing needs of agency departments. This policy is provided to facilitate the purchase of
goods and services needed to meet these requirements in a timely, efficient, and cost-effective manner.

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center to utilize standard guidelines in acquiring quality goods and / or
services in a timely and professional manner while ensuring the best use of funding from all sources at
“best value” to The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD.

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD is committed to increasing business opportunities for
minority and women-owned businesses within the community. Historically Underutilized Businesses,
including Minority-Owned Businesses and Women-Owned Businesses, are encouraged to participate in
any competitive procurement request(s) for Goods and or Services.

Procedures associated with this policy establish a systematic and fiscally sound method for procuring
goods and services that allows departments within divisions agency-wide to function smoothly by
providing needed materials and equipment, including servicing/maintenance of all equipment
purchased.

It is the responsibility of the Purchasing Department to ensure that procedures are compliant with
applicable rules, laws, and standards in the purchase of all goods or services for The Harris Center

[M.A.[The Reluisitioning and Purchasing of [loods and / or [ervices. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 1 of [
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/1482550/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195585
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195585
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 146 of 319

according to the Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Texas Health and Human Services Commission
(HHSC), Texas Grant Management Standards (TXGMS), Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Purchasing
Best Practices and standards set by the Chief Executive Officer.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

To be used by The Harris Center. This policy will allow departments agency-wide to function smoothly by
providing needed materials and equipment, including servicing all equipment purchased while operating
at the highest standards of ethical conduct. This policy applies to all agency departments, and staff
engaged in the process of securing goods or services on behalf of the agency.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):
The Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and/or Services

Purchasing Card

5. PROCEDURES:

A. The Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and Services
B. The Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and/or Services Dollar Limit Threshold & Requirements

C. Guidelines for The Use of Contracts and Stand-Alone Purchase Orders

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

A. Texas Grant Management Standards (TXGMS)

B. Texas Procurement and Contract Management Guide
C. Federal Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200
D

. Contracting and Delivery Procedures for Construction Projects, Texas Government Code
Chapter 2269

E. Purchasing: General Rules and Procedures, Texas Government Code Chapter 2155, Subchapter
A

F. Purchasing Methods, Texas Government Code Ch. 2156

G. Purchasing: Purchase of Automated Information Systems, Texas Government Code Chapter
2157

H. Purchasing: Miscellaneous Provisions for Purchase of Certain Goods and Services, Texas
Government Code Chapter 2158

I. Contract Management for Local Authorities, Title 25 Texas Administrative Code, Part 1,
Chapter 412, Subchapter B

[M.A.[The Reluisitioning and Purchasing of [loods and / or [ervices. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 2 of [
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/1482550/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12504621/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12031836/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11326963/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11340752/latest

Page 147 of 319

J. Statewide Procurement and Support Services, Texas Administrative Code, Title 34, Part 1,

Chapter 20

K. Professional Services Procurement Act, Texas Government Code (TGC) Chapter 2254

Historically Underutilized Businesses, Texas Government Code (TGC) Chapter 2161

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Department Review Stanley Adams

Initial Assignment Nina Cook: Dir

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
07/2024
07/2024

[M.A.[The Relnisitioning and Purchasing of [Joods and / or Lervices. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/1482550/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page [of [J



EXHIBIT F-24




Page 148 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStat ID 16020733

Origination 07/2023 Owner  Nina Cook: Dir
Last N/A Area  Fiscal
( ) Approved Management
t ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised  07/2023

Next Review 1 year after
approval

FM.A.8 The Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and /
or Services Dollar Limit Threshold & Requirements

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to provide a Board approved dollar limit threshold and requirements for The
HARRIS CENTER for the Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and / or Services.

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center to promote effective, professional, and consistent procurement for
The Harris Center in compliance with The Harris Center's established Board approved dollar limit
threshold and requirements.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This Policy applies to all Harris Center employees.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):
Purchasing Card

The Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and/or Services Policy

Guidelines for The Use of Purchase Orders for Goods and Non-Community Services Policy

[M.A.8 The Reluisitioning and Purchasing of [Joods and / or [ervices Dollar [imit Threshold [ Reluirements. Retrieved 08/ Page 1 of 2
2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16020[1T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental
Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195585
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195585
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12031836/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12504621/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13437764/latest

Page 149 of 319

5. PROCEDURES:

The Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and / or Services Dollar Limit Threshold & Requirements

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

Contracts Management for Local Mental Health Authorities, 25 Tex. Admin. Code, Part 1, Chapter 412,
Subchapter B

Contracts Management for Local Authorities, 40 Tex. Admin. Code Ch. 2, Subchapter B
Texas Grant Management Standards (TXGMS)

2 C.F.R. Part 200

Texas Government Code: Title 10, Subtitle D, Chapter 2155 - 2158 Purchasing General
Rules and Procedures, Subchapter A, General Provisions

Professional Services Procurement Act, Texas Government Code Chapter 2254

Texas Government Code Chapter 2269

Texas Health & Safety Code, Chapter 250, §533.007, §533.035, §534.052, §534.055, §534.061,
§534.065, and §534.066

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date
Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2024
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 07/2024
Department Review Stanley Adams 07/2024
Initial Assignment Nina Cook: Dir 07/2024

[M.A.8 The Reluisitioning and Purchasing of [Joods and / or [ervices Dollar [imit Threshold [ Reluirements. Retrieved 08/ Page 2 of2
2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16020[1T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental
Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11340752/latest

- EXHIBIT F-25



Page 150 of 319

Status = Pending PolicyStat ID 16214783

Origination  02/2019 Owner  Todd
Last N/A McCorquodale:
( Approved Dir
( Effective  Upon Area  Environmental
f Management
Mental Health and IDD Approval ) o
Transforming Lives Last Revised 09/2023 Document gency Folicy

Type
Next Review 1 year after

approval

EM.A.1 The Use of Service and Assistance Animals in the
Harris Center Facilities Pertaining to Patients and Visitors

1. PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance concerning the rights of individuals with disabilities to
utilize service or assistance animals in agency facilities, as defined under the Americans with Disabilities
Act and state law.

2. POLICY

It is the policy of The Harris Center that individuals with disabilities shall be permitted to be
accompanied by their service animals in all areas of The Harris Center's facilities where members of the
public, participants in services, programs or activities, or invitees, where applicable, are allowed to go.
Therapy Animals, emotional support or comfort animals, and companion animals are not considered
service animals and are therefore not permitted in agency facilities. The Harris Center does not "certify"
animals as Service Animals.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE

All of The Harris Center facilities.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS:

None

[M.A.1 The [se of [ervice and Assistance Animals in the Harris Center [acilities Pertaining to Patients and [Jisitors. Page 1 of 2
Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16214[8[/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris
Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195036
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195036
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81299
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81299
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

5. PROCEDURE:

EM.B.T The Use of Service and Assistance Animals in the Harris Center Facilities

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

+ City of Houston Ordinance Sec 6-86

+ Texas Human Resources Code, Title 8, Chapter 121

Page 151 of 319

+ Title Il Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. 12.101, et. seq.; 28 CFR Part 36.101, et. seq.

+ Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. 794

Approval Signatures
Step Description

Management of Board
Approval

CEO Approval
Legal Review

Initial Assignment

[M.A.1 The [se of [ervice and Assistance Animals in the Harris Center [acilities Pertaining to Patients and [Jisitors.
Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16214[8/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris

Center for Mental Health and IDD

Approver

Christopher Webb: Audit

Wayne Young: Exec
Kendra Thomas: Counsel

Todd McCorquodale: Dir

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
07/2024

Page 2 of 2


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233636/latest/

EXHIBIT F-26



Page 152 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStat ID 16020726

Origination  11/2020 Owner  Todd
Last N/A McCorquodale:
( ) Approved Dir
i Effective  Upon Area  Environmental
v
Management

Mental Health and IDD Approval K o

Transforming Lives Last Revised 07/2023 Document gency Folicy

Type
Next Review 1 year after

approval

GA.A.1 Vehicle Operations

1. PURPOSE:

To establish requirements and guidelines for employees who operate motor vehicles while performing
their job duties.

2. POLICY:

The Harris Center will maintain standards and procedures for the operation of vehicles used for
sanctioned business for The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center). To the extent
possible, procedures and standards will cover Agency Owned Vehicles (AOVs) and personal vehicles
used while conducting business on behalf of The Harris Center.

The Harris Center promotes safety and quality care, and employees are encouraged to adopt this spirit
by being familiar with all related procedures and being in good standing with all applicable training
requirements along with local, state, and federal laws that govern driving activities.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to employees of The Harris Center who drive a vehicle to conduct Agency business.
The scope of this policy includes the use of personal vehicles and/or Agency-Owned Vehicles while in
the scope of sanctioned work.

[JA.A.1 [ehicle Operations. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16020.26/. Page 1 of 2
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195036
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195036
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81299
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81299
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 153 of 319

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference

only):
5. PROCEDURES:

Vehicle Operations

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

« Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities;

+ Texas Transportation Code 521.143 and 521.029

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec

CEO Approval Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Initial Assignment Todd McCorquodale: Dir

[JA.A.1 [ehicle Operations. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16020.26/.

Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
07/2024
06/2024

Page 2 of 2


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13421421/latest

EXHIBIT F-27



Page 154 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStatID 16214797

Origination  03/2005 Owner Mustafa
Last N/A Cochinwala: Dir
C ) Approved Area  Information
{ ) Effective  Upon Management
Mental Health and IDD Approval Document Agency Policy
Transforming Lives Last Revised 09/2023 Type

Next Review 1 year after
approval

HIM.IT.A.1 Workforce Member Network Internet Use Policy

1. PURPOSE:

The Harris Center recognizes that the use of the agency's network, Internet, and email has many benefits
and can make conducting Harris Center business and workplace communication more efficient and
effective. Therefore, workforce members are encouraged to use the Internet and email systems for job-
related purposes, in accordance with Workforce Member Network and Internet Use Procedures.
Unacceptable use of the Internet and e-mail can place The Harris Center and others at risk and is
prohibited. The Harris Center complies with all applicable federal, state, and local laws as they concern
the employer/employee relationship and nothing contained herein should be construed to violate any of
the rights or responsibilities contained in such laws.

2. POLICY:

It is the Harris Center's policy to provide employees with access to The Harris Center's computers,
network communication system, and other IT resources for business purposes only, which includes
access to the Internet, email, intranet services, and internal & external web services. All communication,
data, and information created, transmitted by, received from, stored, or processed on The Harris Center
network and computing devices is Harris Center property and, as such, is intended to be used for job-
related purposes. Therefore, employees shall have no expectation of privacy whatsoever in any
message, file, data, document, facsimile, or any kind or form of information or communication
transmitted to, received, printed from, stored, or recorded on the Harris Center's electronic information
and communication systems.

HIM.IT.A.1 [J or[force Member [JetJor[IInternet [Ise Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 1 of [
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16214TT/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195560
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195560
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 155 of 319

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy must be followed in conjunction with other Harris Center policies governing appropriate
workplace conduct and behavior. This policy applies to all Harris Center employees, interns, contractors,
volunteers, and partners who access our network and computers. This policy governs all IT resources
and communications systems owned by or available at The Harris Center, and all use of such resources
and systems when accessed using personally owned resources, including but not limited to:

Email systems and accounts

Internet and Intranet access

+ Telephones, cell phones, voicemail systems
Printers, photocopiers, and scanners
Face machines, e-fax machines

+ All other associated computer, network, and communication systems, hardware, and software
INAPPROPRIATE USE OF HARRIS CENTER IT RESOURCES AND COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS

The Harris Center management and its employees, interns, contractors, volunteers, and partners with
access to the Harris Center IT system will cooperate fully with Human Resources, the Harris Center
Information Security team, and local, state, or federal officials in any investigation concerning or relating
to any illegal activities allegedly conducted through the Harris Center's IT system.

DISCIPLINE

In the event there is an allegation that an employee has violated The Harris Center Network and Internet
Use Policy, the employee will be provided with a written notice of the alleged violation and an opportunity
to present an explanation to Harris Center management. Employee violations of this policy will be
handled in accordance with currently established disciplinary procedures. Violations of this policy can
lead to disciplinary action, up to and including, revocation of access and/or termination.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):

5. PROCEDURE:

Workforce Member Network Internet Use Procedure

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

HIPAA-SecurityStandardsforthe Protection of Electronic Protected Health Information, 45 CFR
Part 164, Subpart C

* NIST SP 800-53 Rev. 4 AT-2, PM-13

HIM.IT.A.1 [J or[force Member [JetJor[IInternet [Ise Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 2 of [
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16214TT/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11321660/latest

« CAREF: Section 1., Subsection J., Technology

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir
Initial Assignment Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir

HIM.IT.A.1 C orlforce Member LletUor[Internet Lse Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16214TT/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
07/2024
07/2024

Page 156 of 319

Page [of [J



EXHIBIT F-28




Page 157 of 319

Status = Pending PolicyStat ID 16341388

Origination  N/A Owner  Eunice Davis: Dir
Last N/A Area  Environmental
( ) Approved Management
{ ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised  N/A

Next Review 1 year after
approval

Accident Reporting Policy

PURPOSE:

The purpose of this accident reporting policy is to provide guidelines on how and when to report
workplace accidents, from minor incidents to severe injuries. It ensures timely investigation and
implementation of safety measures.

POLICY:

On-the-job accidents that employees must report include any events that have caused minor or severe
injuries or incidents resulting from negligence or inadequate safety precautions.

APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy pertains to all center staff and relief workers. This policy includes employees who were
injured while performing their duties on center premises or off-site locations, in course and scope of
employment, and in center-owned or privately-owned vehicles.

RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):

Employee Handbook

PROCEDURE:

Workers' Compensation Notice of Injury procedure

Accident Reporting Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16[4188/. Page 1 of 2
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195640
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195640
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81299
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81299
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

Texas Department of Insurance

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Initial Assignment Eunice Davis: Dir

Accident Reporting Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16[4188/.

Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
08/2024
08/2024

Page 158 of 319

Page 2 of 2



EXHIBIT F-29



Page 159 of 319

Status ' Pending PolicyStat ID 16030522

Origination  N/A Owner  Evelyn Locklin:
Last N/A Dir
QOr || \| RIS Approved Area  General
( Y ( |\l|l||\' Effective  Upon Administration
Mental Health and IDD Approval Document Agency Policy
Transforming Lives Last Revised N/A Type

Next Review 1 year after
approval

Crisis Stabilization Unit- Workplace Violence Prevention

1. PURPOSE:

To protect all staff contractors, volunteers and interns of The Harris Center for Mental Health and
Intellectual and Developmental Disability (The Harris Center) from violent behavior and threats of
violence behavior occurring at Ageney-facilitiesthe Crisis Stabilization Unit.

2. POLICY:

It is The Harris Center’s policy to prohibit and prevent workplace violence or threats of violence behavior
by any person en-Theat the Harris Centers-property Crisis Stabilization Unit. The Harris Center will-not

tolerateshall adopt and implement a workplace violence-Any-person-found-in-violation-of this-pelicy-will
be—Femeved—ﬁFem—the-pFeFmses-and preventlon plan to protect all staff#—appheab#e—may—be—subfeet—te

interns from violent behavior or threats of violent behavior occurring at Fhethe CI’ISIS Stabilization Unit.
The workplace violence prevention plan shall be reviewed annually. All Harris Center_staff will be

ermitted to provide confidential information on workplace violence to the Workplace Violence
Prevention Committee without facing retaliation or disciplinary action.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

All Harris Center staff, contractors, volunteers and interns.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference

Crisis [tabililation [Init[)[] or[place [Jiolence Prevention. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 1 of 2
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16000522/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196306
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196306
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81302
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81302
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

only):

NAA

5. PROCEDURE:

Crisis Stabilization Unit-Workplace Violence Plan

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

Page 160 of 319

Workplace Violence Prevention, Tex. Health & Safety Code §Ch 331;Werkplace-Violence-Prevention

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Initial Assignment Kendra Thomas: Counsel

Crisis [tabililation [Init[)[] or[place [Jiolence Prevention. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16000522/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
07/2024

Page 2 of 2



EXHIBIT F-30



Status = Pending PolicyStat ID 15361262

Origination

¢ )

\ J
Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives

Next Review

Approved

Effective

Last Revised

N/A
N/A

Upon
Approval

N/A

1 year after
approval

Owner
Area

Document
Type

Page 161 of 319

Danyalle Evans

Medical Services

Agency Policy

Delegation of Medical Acts for Nurses, Licensed Vocational
Nurses, Licensed Social Workers, and Unlicensed Staff

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to define the process by which The Harris Center complies with rules
established by the Texas Medical Board delegating or assigning certain medical acts_to non-licensed
individuals. Physicians are responsible for ensuring compliance with the Texas Medical Board, Texas
Occupational Code and 22 Tex-AdminTexas Administrative Code Section 193.4. It is not the intent to
describe every situation in which an act may be delegated, but the precedurepolicy is designed to
provide the framework necessary to delegate and £er-assign certain acts in a safe and appropriately

supervised manner.

2. POLICY:

TheA credentialed, actively practicing Harris Center physician may delegate to a qualified aand properly

trained person-acting-underthephysician’ssupervisionindividual any medical act thatareasenable-and
prudent-physician-wouldfind-within the scope of sound medical judgment to delegate. ActMedical acts

that can be delegated “must comply with the requirements of the Texas Medical Board, Texas
Occupational Code, Texas Administrative Code, and other applicable laws”. The delegated acts must be

performed by qualified and properly trained person, and each of the conditions specified at section

157.001 of the Texas Occupations SdeCode must be met. The-general delegation-clause,containing-the

required-conditionsis-asfollows:

Delegation of Medical Acts for Uurses_ Licensed Uocational Uurses'Licensed Locial [l orlersLand [nlicensed Ltaff. Retrieved ~ Page 1 of [
08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/1561262/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for

Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7649937
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7649937
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 162 of 319

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

The general delegation clause, containing the required conditions, is as follows:

§157-001-General-Authority of Physician-to-DelegateGeneral Authority of Physician to Delegate

A. A physician may delegate to a qualified and properly trained person acting under the
physician’s supervision any medical act that a reasonable and prudent physician would find
within the scope of sound medical judgment to delegate if, in the opinion of the delegating
physician:

I. The act

a. Can be properly and safely performed by the person to whom the medical
act is delegated.

b. Is performed in its customary manner; and

c. Isnoin violation of any other statue; and

B. The Person to whom the delegation is made does not represent to the public that the person is
authorized to practice medicine
The delegating Physician remains responsible for the medical acts of the person performing
the delegated medical acts.

C. The board may determine whether:
An act constitutes the practice of medicine, not inconsistent with this chapter; and
A medical act may be properly or safely delegated by physicians.

I. An act constitutes the practice of medicine, not inconsistent with this chapter; and

Il. A medical act may be properly or safely delegated by physicians.

The scope of what a physician may delegate to a renphysiciannon-physician, be that person a registered
nurse (RN), licensed vocational nurse (LVN), physiciancertified medical assistant{PA),-ormedical
assistant (MA), licensed social worker (LCSW, LMSW), psychiatric technicians, single accountable

individuals (SAls), is governed by this general rule-and-regardless. Regardless of that person’s title, the
law specifies that the person to whom the act is delegated must be “qualified and properly trained.” The

|nd|V|duaI s title merely provides some indication that the person has met some set of quallﬁcatlons and

The physician must nevertheless determine if the skill set underlying those certifications or licenses

makes the person qualified and trained to perform the delegated medical activity. Conversely, persons
without licenses or certifications may have the qualifications and training to perform some delegated
medical acts.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):

Delegation of Medical Acts for [urses[ [licensed [Jocational [urses[[icensed [ocial []orlersCand [Inlicensed [taff. Retrieved Page 2 of [
08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/1561262/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for
Mental Health and IDD



Page 163 of 319

5. PROCEDURE:

See Procedure on Delegation of Duties by a Physician to a-Nen-Physician{in-process-of being
developed)Nurses, Licensed Vocational Nurses, Licensed Social Workers, and Unlicensed Staff

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

1.- Texas Medical Board Rules

2.- Texas Administrative Code, Title 26, Part 1, Chapter 301, Subchapter G, Division 3, Rule 301.355
3.- Texas Occupational Code $157.001

4 .- 22 Tex. Administrative Code $193.

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date
Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 07/2024
Final Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 06/2024
Department Review Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr 06/2024

(1101 1817)
Initial Assignment Danyalle Evans 04/2024

Delegation of Medical Acts for Lurses_ Licensed Uocational Uurses Licensed Locial [l orlersLand [nlicensed Ltaff. Retrieved ~ Page [Jof [
08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/1561262/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for
Mental Health and IDD



EXHIBIT F-31



Page 164 of 319

Status = Pending PolicyStat ID 14996032

Origination  N/A Owner  Tanya White: Mgr
Last N/A Area  Medical Services
¢ ) Approved :
PP Document Agency Policy
{ ) Effective  Upon Type
Mental Health and IDD Approval
Transforming Lives Last Revised  N/A

Next Review 1 year after
approval

Drug Diversion Reporting and Response Policy

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to properly identify, report and investigate suspected drug diversion.
Examples of drug diversion include, but are not limited to medication theft, using or taking possession of
a medication without a valid order or prescription, forging or inappropriately modifying a prescription and
using or taking possession of medication waste.

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD to provide a systematic, coordinated, and
timely approach to identification, reporting and investigation of suspected drug diversion by The Harris
Center for Mental Health and IDD employees, patients and visitors.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD employees, patients and visitors.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):
Pharmacy and Unit Medication/Drug Inventory Policy

Pharmacy Operations and Prescription Processing Policy

5. PROCEDURE:

Drug Diversion Reporting and Response Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/ Page 1 of [
policy/14[160[2/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=5637438
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=5637438
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Pharmacy Texas PMP (Prescription Monitoring Program) Review Procedure

Pharmacy Prescription Forgery Procedure
Pharmacy Security Procedure

Pharmacy Drug Destruction Procedure
Pharmacy Controlled Substances Procedure

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

USDOJ DEA Diversion Control Division Pharmacists Manual Appendix D
EO-DEA154RT,

DEA-DC-046R1

Code of Federal Regulations 21 Part 1300_and CFR §1306.04 (a)
Controlled Substance Act 21 U.S.C Parts 802 & 803.§§827, 842, 958(d)

Texas State Board of Pharmacy Rules and Regulations DEA Pharmacist Manual, Section IX

Texas Health & Safety Code §481.067, §481.074 and § 481.075

The Controlled Substances Act, DEA United States Drug Enforcement
Administration.https://www.dea.gov/ drug-in formation/csa

Texas Administrative Code §291.17
The Harris Center's Policy and Procedure Handbook CARF Section 2E

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date
Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending
Approval

CEO/Board Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2024
Legal 2nd Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 07/2024
Pharmacy &Therapeutic Angela Babin: Dir 07/2024
Committee

Pharmacy Department Review Tanya White: Mgr 05/2024

Drug Diversion Reporting and Response Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/
policy/14[160[2/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 165 of 319

Page 2 of [J


http://www.dea.gov/

Page 166 of 319

Legal 1st Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 05/2024
CMO Review Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr 05/2024
(1101 1817)
Initial Tanya White: Mgr 04/2024
Drug Diversion Reporting and Response Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/ Page [lof [

policy/14[160[2/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



EXHIBIT F-32




Status = Pending PolicyStat ID 16341273

Page 167 of 319

Origination  N/A Owner  Eunice Davis: Dir
Last N/A Area  Environmental
¢ ) Approved Management
{ ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Plan
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Last Revised N/A

Transforming Lives

Next Review

1 year after
approval

Harris Center Disaster & Emergency Response Plan

A. Purpose

HARRIS CENTER DISASTER & EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

This section contains a written description of the Harris Center Disaster & Emergency
Response Plan ("Plan") including information on how The Harris Center will act or proceed in
the event a disaster occurs, the response duties of The Harris Center management, and
coordination plans with staff and the public. For the purposes of this Plan a disaster and/or
emergency is defined as a natural disaster or anticipated natural disaster, threat to public
safety, or national security emergency. Disaster events may include fires, essential equipment
failures, epidemic/ pandemic and terrorism. Each Harris Center program will develop a
disaster and emergency plan specific to their operations, which shall be incorporated by
reference to this Plan. The program specific plans, as outlined in Section I, shall complement
the Harris Center's Plan for detailed actions specific to the service unit and physical location.

. Scope

The information in the document effects all operations and programs of The Harris Center.
While the Plan may be of interest to contractors of The Harris Center, it does not obligate
them. The Harris Center, however, expects all program contracts to have disaster and
emergency plans developed and available for review. This program specific plans will be
posted for public view, and The Harris Center Disaster & Emergency Response Plan will be
posted on The Harris Center's external website. The Plan will also be shared with Texas Health
and Human Services upon request during any audit or review. Harris Center staff are required
to be trained on the program specific plan within thirty (30) days of hire and at least annually
thereafter. Just in time training may occur as a result of a response to specific emergency
and/or disaster event. This Plan incorporates the program specific emergency plans and
procedures, Safety Program and The Harris Center Risk Management Plan by reference.

The information in the Plan is reviewed and revised as needed.

Harris Center Disaster L [imergency Response Plan. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/  Page 1 of 11
policy/16[412[T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195640
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195640
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81299
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81299
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=114203

Page 168 of 319

C. National Incident Management System (NIMS) Overview

The National Incident Management System (NIMS) is a comprehensive, nationwide systematic approach
to incident management. NIMS is flexible due to its application to any incident regardless of cause, size,
location or complexity. In addition, its principles are to be utilized in order to develop all-hazard plans and
procedures. Lastly, NIMS provides an organized set of scalable and standardized operational structures.
This standard is critical for allowing various organizations and agencies to work together in a
predictable, coordinated manner.

One major component of NIMS is the Incident Command System (ICS). ICS is a management tool that
includes 14 key features that has become the standard for managing emergencies across the country.
ICS may be used for planned events, natural disasters, and acts of terrorism. This response plan is in
compliance with NIMS and the 14 features of ICS.

One key feature of ICS is "Management by Objectives." Objectives and initial decisions for any emergency
should be based on the following three (3) priorities:

1. Life Safety
2. Incident Stabilization
3. Property Preservation

These priorities are utilized to establish objectives. General Emergency Planning Objectives include:

1. Save lives and prevent injuries
2. Promote an effective action in responding to emergencies

3. Minimize loss of campus property
Restore conditions to normal and with minimal disruption
D. Disaster Command Staff (DCS)

The role of The Harris Center's Disaster Command Staff is to direct preparedness and response
activities on behalf of The Harris Center. This is a decision-making body for the sole purpose of disaster
preparation and response.

1.The Disaster Command Staff shall be organized as follows:
* Incident Command

Operations

o o

Logistics

e

Planning

d. Finance

2.Scope of Responsibilities

Incident Command:

Harris Center Disaster L [imergency Response Plan. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/  Page 2 of 11
policy/16[412[T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 169 of 319

+ Incident Command Officer: Makes decisions in response to disasters and emergencies.
Decisions to respond to emergencies should be made, if possible, after consultation with the
Liaison Officer. The Incident Command Officer is responsible for assuring coordinated and
effective emergency response plans are developed and maintained throughout The Harris
Center. The Incident Commander is responsible for activating plans when a crisis has been
declared and establishing the internal command center.

+ The Liaison Officer serves as liaison to city, county, and state emergency management teams.
The Liaison Officer provides the Incident Commander with updates on national weather
advisories, updates from community partners, and responses from local human service
agencies. The Liaison Officer ensures that critical incident response personnel are trained and
available as needed in disaster situations and as required by the Texas Health and Human
Services (HHS) Performance Contract.

+ The Information Officer serves as the internal and external communication source for The
Harris Center. The Information Officer communicates with the Incident Command Officer to
determine communications that will be sent on behalf of The Harris Center.

A. Operations: The Operations Division assures administrative functions and personnel are available to
support operations, including physicians, clinicians, and nurses. Operations is responsible for developing
a tactical organization and directing resources to carry out the incident Action Plan, including personnel
resource coordination to shelters to assure operational objectives for service provision are achieved.
Assures that contracts and grants concerning disaster responder personnel are implemented as
necessary; providing management and oversight of them.

B. Logistics: Responsible for ensuring emergency communication systems are operational, with
emphasis on assisting internet platforms and Help to maintain lines of communication for internal and
external information. Also assures that the information technology component of The Harris Center
operations is protected as much as possible against possible disruption. Logistics will coordinate with
other divisions for safe removal of employees and consumers and maintain supply chain.

C.Planning: Develops Incident Action Plan to accomplish the Agency's objectives. Provide planning
services for both current and future activities. Provide a safe operating environment within all parts of
the incident organization, to include power and water utilities.

D.Finance: Provides overall fiscal guidance. Provide cost assessment, time recording, and procurement
control necessary to support the incident and the managing of claims. Finance will be responsible for an
emergency process to expedite purchases critical to the overall response to an incident.

E.Determination of Inminent Danger and Call Down Sequence for Emergency Notification
1.Disaster Notification

The Liaison Officer will monitor emergency notifications from local, state and federal authorities,
including the National Weather Service, and participate in invited conference calls. Upon learning of a
disaster, the Liaison Officer will notify the Incident Command Officer and Disaster Command Staff. See
Pre Disaster Checklist in Attachment A.

2.Disaster Call Down Sequence

Harris Center Disaster L [imergency Response Plan. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/  Page [lof 11
policy/16[412[T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 170 of 319

a. The Incident Commander will determine when to activate The Harris Center's Disaster and
Emergency Plan. When this determination has been made, the Incident Commander will notify
the designated Disaster Command Staff that an emergency exists and will direct Disaster
Command Staff to initiate steps to activate the disaster plans.

F.Emergency Communication
1.Staff Notification

a. Inthe event of a local emergency due to weather or other natural disaster,
employees will receive notification via e-mail, text, and social media by the
Information Officer to alert them of The Harris Center's status. The Public
Information Officer will establish working relationships with local media outlets.

b. Once a center response has been made by the Incident Commander to close a building, the
Public Information Officer will communicate to employees via e-mail and text.

c. Staff are expected to tune in to local news and check The Harris Center communications for
information pertaining to local response.

1. Community Notification

a. The Public Information Officer will coordinate with Incident Command Staff to review external
communications and pertinent information for distribution to consumers and family members,
as appropriate.

b. The Public Information Officer will then inform the Houston area media, with particular
attention paid to The Harris Center's public and internal websites and other electronic media,
regarding the Center's emergency plans. The media information will include open/close
information and the appropriate telephone numbers where employees and consumers can call
for information: (713) 970-7000. The message will list sites closed and will then transfer to
Help Line staff, if available, for further questions or concerns.

G. Securing Vital Systems

1. Medical Records
All medical records shall be secured in the event of a disaster. Residential programs shall
follow their unit-specific disaster plan for medical records disposition. On-site non-residential
programs are to store records in a designated medical records room. In the event of an
anticipated or actual disaster, the unit Directors of non-residential programs shall assure that
paper records are placed on higher shelves, as conditions permit

2. Data Systems
The Logistics Division will coordinate with Information Technology Services staff to maintain
specific procedures for securing Center data systems. To the extent possible, Information
Technology Services should work to establish common equipment, communications, and data
interoperability resources with local public health and emergency management that will be
used during incident response.
NOTE: In securing vital systems, the safety of consumers, staff and other people is
paramount. These steps are to be undertaken only to the degree that conditions permit.
Implementing these procedures should not jeopardize the safety of consumers, staff, and
others.

3. Medication and PPE

Harris Center Disaster L [imergency Response Plan. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/  Page 4 of 11
policy/16[412[T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 171 of 319

Medication, supplies and equipment (i.e. personal protective equipment (PPE), patient care supplies)
that will be used in excess during an incident response should be determined (based on amount of staff,
potential consumers, usage time, etc.), ordered, and stocked on-site or in Central Supply Room prior to
an incident. Residential programs shall take all medications and PPE with them should the residence be
evacuated. Vocational and other day programs shall send medications home with the consumer(s) or
staff will transport the medications with the consumers in the event of an evacuation.

H.Securing Vehicles

Twenty-four to Forty-eight hours prior to anticipated landfall of a tropical disturbance, Logistics will
coordinate moving all agency vehicles not in use to the upper covered level floors of Southwest clinic
parking garage to prevent flooding and debris damage. Vehicles shall be locked and secured, with
Agency equipment removed from the vehicles.

I. Response to Disasters in the Community

1. City/County
The Liaison Officer or designee will maintain information related to the City and County
emergency response system. For non-FEMA emergencies, The Harris Center may provide
emergency mental health services on a case-by-case basis as requested by civil authorities
within the community (i.e., City of Houston Office of Emergency Management), as required by
Annex H of Harris County and Annex O of the City of Houston. These requests are to be
implemented by the Liaison Officer upon approval by the Incident Command Officer. The Harris
Center may also provide emergency mental health services requested by community partners
and other non-profit organizations (i.e. The Red Cross).

2. Texas Health and Human Services (HHS)

The Liaison Officer or designee will maintain communications with the Director of Behavioral Health
Services at HHS for assistance and coordination of Local Mental Health Authority resources in the
region during the disaster. Communication will include details of the emergency, actions taken by The
Harris Center, and any future plans involving individuals served by The Harris Center.

J.Component Specific Disaster Plans

Operational Division are responsible for the development and implementation of a disaster response
plan that addresses all components within the division. Each division/component must retain a disaster
plan on site with a copy to the Director of Risk Management.

1. Mental Health Services

a. Clinical Component - individual site plans
b.Contract Service Providers Component - individual site plans
c.Residential Component - individual site plans
d.Vocational Component - individual site plans

1. 2.Comprehensive Psychiatric Emergency Program

Harris Center Disaster L [imergency Response Plan. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/  Page 5 of 11
policy/16[412[T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 172 of 319

NeuroPsychiatric Center - individual site plans

o o

Mobile Crisis Outreach - follow designated home office site plan

e

Crisis Help Line - individual site plans

d. Crisis Residential Unit - individual site plans

1. IDD Services

a. Clinical Component - individual site plans
c.Contract Service Providers Component - individual site plans
d.Residential Component - individual site plans
e.Vocational Component - individual site plans

1. Forensic Services

Adult Jail Services - individual site plans

T o

Jail Diversion Center —individual site plans

o

New START - individual site plans
d. Dual Diagnosis Residential Program - individual site plans

e. Children's Forensic Services - individual site plans
1. Support and Administration (9401 Southwest Freeway)

The emergency plan for this building is maintained by the Director of Risk Management.

A. Content of Component Specific Plans

Each component specific plan should contain at least the following information:

1. How consumers will be managed during an emergency, e.g., contacting guardians;
2. Floor-specific site plan for multi-level buildings;

3. Alternative relocation sites for consumers if evacuation is required, with an agreement from
alternative site that they are willing to provide this service;

4. Alternative relocation sites for programs if the emergency is localized to a specific area;

5. A call down mechanism for staff and consumers to communicate emergency plans, to include
scheduling changes;

6. Securing of all medical records;

7. Closing of all window blinds and drapes;

8. Securing all medications;

9. Implementing a Shelter-in-Place procedure;
10. Locking and securing all facilities being vacated,;
11. Securing and delivering all vehicles as instructed,;

12. Notifying the appropriate Deputy Director that the building is secured;

Harris Center Disaster L [imergency Response Plan. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/  Page 6 of 11
policy/16[412[T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 173 of 319

13. Coverage for reduced staffing;

14. Medication refills for outpatients;

15. Which units are to remain open

16. Determination of supports needed from non-clinical units;

17. Types of positions expected to remain;

18. Addressing family and personal issues in advance of the event, when possible;
19. Establishing the annual emergency responders rotation schedule;

20. Ensuring adequate water, food, medication supplies for a minimum of three days;
21. Determination of position-specific responders;

22. Ensure consumer transportation issues are addressed.

23. Incorporate into staff job descriptions information about the expectations of the position in the
event of a disaster.

24. Specify essential and non-essential staff and how the staffing pattern will be implemented;
specify staff breaks, etc.

25. Specify how staff will be trained in emergency response; and

26. ldentify whether or not the facility is located on a flood plain.

L. Ancillary Support

A. Disaster Preparedness and Response Committee: The Committee, chaired by the Director of
Risk Management, functions to ensure compliance with state regulatory standards in regard to
disaster preparedness and response. The Committee also provides on-going planning and
implementation of Harris Center disaster programs and provides training opportunities to
Harris Center staff to prepare them for critical incident response.

B.Disaster Response Floor Wardens: When support and administrative services are located in multi-level
facilities, Disaster Response Floor Wardens, identified to The Harris Center's Incident Commander, shall
coordinate Disaster and Response planning for support and administrative components.

M.After Action Report

A debriefing will occur after each emergency or disaster event and will be documented in a report. See
Attachment B

The Harris Center Important Numbers

For EMERGENCIES: 911

Environmental Health and Safety Manager 713-970-3012
Risk Management Director 713-970-3492
Infection Control 713-970-7372
Facilities Service 713-970-7380
Main Line 713-970-7000

Harris Center Disaster L [imergency Response Plan. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/  Page [lof 11
policy/16[412[T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 174 of 319

Attachment A

Pre Disaster Checklist for Storm

96 HOURS BEFORE LANDFALL
Initial Discussion/Meetings Regarding the Incident and Potential Action
Fuel - Emergency Generators (non-natural gas)/ Vehicles
Review Emergency and Continuity Plans and Procedures
Monitor OEM calls
Review and update Contact Lists (also update Ping Board)
Review and Replenish if necessary the Emergency Supplies (Food/Water/etc.)
Secure Facilities (Security personnel; weatherize buildings)
Place Ride Out Team on Notice (If Applicable)
Ensure IT Systems are Backed Up

Human Resources Department initiate Disaster Timesheet policy

72 HOURS BEFORE LANDFALL
Monitor OEM calls
Update Incident Command
Ensure Supplies including water and food are in place
Check Building/s for Readiness

Connect with strategic partners — County/ City OEM, Public Health, NBHA, Red Cross — Review
Annex

Notify IT for robocall to supply bridge medications to patients
Evacuation of Center Programs and IDD Residential if necessary

P10 to notify HHSC and local Emergency Operation Centers of center status

48 HOURS BEFORE LANDFALL
Move vehicles to second floor of 9401
Dir. of Facilities place Internal/External Dependencies (Contractors, Etc.) on notice
Monitor OEM calls
Update Incident Command
Begin Securing Facilities
Component decisions about coverage, alternate service sites.
Ensure access to necessary systems for personnel to work from home (if applicable).

P10 send media alerts

Harris Center Disaster L [imergency Response Plan. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/  Page 8 of 11
policy/16[412[T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 175 of 319

24 HOURS BEFORE LANDFALL
Send Ride-Out Team Members Home — Make Family Arrangements & Gather Go Kits
Monitor County OEM call
Confirm facilities has been secured: windows, doors, pipes (if applicable)
Cover and Secure Vulnerable Equipment and Files with Plastic
Move Vulnerable Equipment, Subject to Flooding/Damage, to Secured Area
Move medications to secure area
Update Incident Command Team

P10 send media alerts

12 HOURS BEFORE LANDFALL
Monitor weather, County notices
Ride-Out Team make final preparations
Ensure the Battery Powered Devices are Operational
Update Incident Command team

P10 send media alerts

4 HOURS BEFORE LANDFALL
Ride-Out Team arrives
Facility and Security Services announce status checks
Update Incident Command team

PIO send media alerts
Attachment B
. ' DA D, :
< HARRIS

W/ \J CENTER 7
Mental Health and IDD

Harris Center Disaster L [imergency Response Plan. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/  Page [lof 11
policy/16[412[T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



EVENT
DATE(S)

After Action Report/Improvement Plan

Emergency Overview

Event Name
Date(s) of Event
[Affected Area(s)]

[Incident/Exercise]
Threat or Hazard

INTRODUCTION

Page 176 of 319

[Include a brief synopsis of incident/exercise and sequence of events here]

STRENGTHS

1. [Strength 1]
2. [Strength 2, etc]

AREAS OF IMPROVEMENT

1. [Improvement 1]

2. [Improvement 2, etc]

APPENDIX A - IMPROVEMENT MATRIX

Improvement Plan

# Area of Improvement/ Corrective
Category Action

1

2

3

# Area of Improvement/ Corrective
Category Action

4

6

Responsible
Party

Responsible
Party

Status Estimated Completion
Date

Status Estimated Completion
Date

APPENDIX B — AFTER ACTION REPORT - PARTICIPATING DEPARTMENTS

Harris Center Disaster [] [imergency Response Plan. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at

Page 10 of 11

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16[412[T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 177 of 319

[If other departments or buildings were involved during this incident and completing the AAR, list them

here]

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Initial Assignment Eunice Davis: Dir

Harris Center Disaster [ [imergency Response Plan. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16[412[T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
08/2024
08/2024

Page 11 of 11



EXHIBIT F-33



Status ' Pending PolicyStat ID 16321058

Origination  N/A Owner  Toby Hicks
Last N/A Area  Human
( ) Approved Resources
'\ ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised N/A

Next Review 1 year after
approval

HR.A.40.0ut of State Employment

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to define work arrangements for all Harris Center staff, volunteers,

Page 178 of 319

contractors, and interns who reside and work outside the State of Texas to ensure compliance with state

and federal laws.

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center that all staff, volunteers, interns, and contractors hired to perform
services on behalf of the Harris Center are required to complete their duties within Texas. Out-of-

state work arrangements may be granted on an exception basis to meet the business operation
needs of the Harris Center and are not intended to be long term telecommuting assignments.

Prior to informing or approving any request from a current or former employee, advance approval
from the Division Chief and VP, Human Resources is required. This applies to any form of Out-of-
state working arrangements, including hiring an employee to work at a location outside of Texas, the

assigning of current staff to work at a location outside of Texas and the use of a Harris Center
approved telecommuting work arrangement outside of Texas.

Out-of-state work arrangements shall be limited to mission critical projects that are necessary to

meet the business needs of the Harris Center and not as a method to fill vacant positions. Relief

Staff that resides in the state of Texas should be utilized. In reviewing the request for an out-of-state

work arrangement, the Division Chief, Legal Counsel and VP, Human Resources will evaluate the

Harris Center’s business needs and the compliance requirements. In most cases, however, out-of-

state work arrangements are not a viable option.

HR.A.40.0ut of Ltate Lmployment. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16[21058/.  Page 1
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

of [J


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7537198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 179 of 319

Employees approved to work outside of Texas are responsible for verifying that appropriate state tax
deductions are withheld from their pay. Additionally, all employees are responsible for updating their
home and mailing addresses to reflect the out of state residential address.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all Harris Center staff, volunteers, contractors and interns. This policy applies
to the hiring of staff. This policy does not apply to an out-of-state work arrangement for a temporary
period and will be reviewed on a case by case basis.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):

Out of State Employee Exception Request Form

5. PROCEDURE:

HR.B.XX.Out of State Employees

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

HR.A.8 Employment Policy

HR.A.10 Equal Employment Opportunity

HR.A.25 Transfers — Promotions - Demotions
HR.A.14 Licensure, Certification, and Registration

HIM.IT.A.4 Off-Premises Equipment Usage

Attachments

Out of State Employment Request.pdf

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date
Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending
Approval

HR.A.40.0ut of Ltate Lmployment. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16.21058/.  Page 2 of [
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/public/5b6252c81d47b2659d3997e5f9ecbe91242399f39c728c01cf0ff33d/Out%20of%20State%20Employment%20Request.pdf

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Department Review Joseph Gorczyca

Initial Assignment Toby Hicks

HR.A.40.0ut of [tate [imployment. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16[21058/.

Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

08/2024
07/2024
07/2024
07/2024

Page 180 of 319

Page [of [J



EXHIBIT F-34




Status = Pending PolicyStat ID 15691134

Origination

\ V
Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives

Next Review

Approved

Effective

Last Revised

N/A
N/A

Upon
Approval

N/A

1 year after
approval

Owner
Area

Document
Type

Pharmacy Hazardous Drugs Policy

1. PURPOSE:

Page 181 of 319

Tanya White: Mgr

Medical Services

Agency Policy

To ensure that all healthcare personnel (employed and contracted) by The Harris Center understand the
USP General Chapter <800> requirements and responsibilities of handling hazardous drugs.

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center to ensure that all healthcare personnel (employed and contracted)
who receive, prepare, administer, transport or otherwise come in contact with hazardous drugs
understand the USP General Chapter <800> requirements including responsibilities of handling
hazardous drugs; facility and engineering controls; procedures for deactivating, decontaminating and
cleaning; spill control; and documentation in all the environments in which they are handled.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all units, programs, and services of the Harris Center where medications are
prescribed and administered by licensed practitioners and staff who have been trained and found the be
competent and to all units and programs that provide supervision of medication self-administration or

medication administration by non-licensed staff.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference

only):

Pharmacy Halardous Drugs Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/156 [11[4/. Page 1 of 2

Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=5637438
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=5637438
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 182 of 319

5. PROCEDURE:

Pharmacy Hazardous Drugs Procedure

Pharmacy and Unit Medication/Drug Inventory Procedure

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

NIOSH List of Antineoplastic and Other Hazardous Drugs in Healthcare Settings, 2016.
2019 USP General Chapter<800> Hazardous Drugs-Handling in Healthcare Settings.

CARF 2E1-2E5

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending

Approval

CEO/Board Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2024

Legal 2nd Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 07/2024

Pharmacy &Therapeutic Angela Babin: Dir 07/2024

Committee

Pharmacy Department Review Tanya White: Mgr 05/2024

Legal 1st Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 05/2024

CMO Review Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr 05/2024
(1101 1817)

Initial Tanya White: Mgr 04/2024

Pharmacy Halardous Drugs Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/156[11[4/.

Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2



- EXHIBIT F-35



Page 183 of 319

Status = Pending PolicyStat ID 15944695

Origination  N/A Owner  Tanya White: Mgr
Last N/A Area  Medical Services
¢ ) Approved :
PP Document Agency Policy
{ ) Effective  Upon Type
Mental Health and IDD Approval
Transforming Lives Last Revised  N/A

Next Review 1 year after
approval

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee Policy

1. PURPOSE:

The Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee is responsible for the effective and efficient operation of the
formulary system to optimize patient outcomes, quality and safety, and financial stewardship. The
Committee is responsible to the Medical Staff as a whole, and its policy recommendations are subject to
approval by the Professional Review Committee. The Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee is
responsible for the formulation of broad professional policies relating to medications in inpatient and
outpatient settings, including their evaluation, selection, procurement, storage, distribution,
administration, and use.

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of the Harris Center to set forth checks and balances related to formulary decisions and
medication monitoring utilizing a Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

The Harris Center Medical Staff, Pharmacy, Nursing

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):

Professional Review Committee

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/ ~ Page 1 of 2
15044605/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=5637438
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=5637438
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 184 of 319

5. PROCEDURE:

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Procedure

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

TSBP

American Society of Health-System Pharmacists (ASHP) Endorsed Document: Principles of a Sound

Drug Formulary System (2011)

ASHP Guidelines on the Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee and the Formulary System (2021)

Texas HHSC Psychiatric Executive Formulary Committee Conflict of Interest Policy

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending

Approval

CEO/Board Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2024

Legal 2nd Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 07/2024

Pharmacy &Therapeutic Angela Babin: Dir 07/2024

Committee

Pharmacy Department Review Tanya White: Mgr 06/2024

Legal 1st Review Obiajulu Enaohwo 06/2024

CMO Review Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr 06/2024
(1101 1817)

Initial Tanya White: Mgr 06/2024

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

15044605/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2



EXHIBIT F-36



Page 185 of 319

Status = Pending PolicyStat ID 15691043

Origination  N/A Owner  Tanya White: Mgr
Last N/A Area  Medical Services
¢ ) Approved :
PP Document Agency Policy
{ ) Effective  Upon Type
Mental Health and IDD Approval
Transforming Lives Last Revised  N/A

Next Review 1 year after
approval

Pharmacy Staff Training Policy

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to define the process for supervision and delegation of training of Harris
Center Pharmacy Staff.

2. POLICY:

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (Harris Center) employs Pharmacists, Pharmacy Interns,
Pharmacy Students, Pharmacy Technicians, Pharmacy Technicians in Training and Pharmacy Clerks
Registered by the Texas State Board of Pharmacy. They work under the delegated authority of a
Pharmacist in Charge licensed by the Texas State Board of Pharmacy (TSBP). The Harris Center will
comply with all rules and regulations that govern this arrangement including those set forth by the Texas
State Board of Pharmacy (TSBP) as applicable.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

All Harris Center Pharmacies

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):
Pharmacy Training Checklist

Job Description

Pharmacy Operations and Prescription Processing Policy

Pharmacy [taff Training Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/156 104 (/. Page 1 of 2
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=5637438
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=5637438
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Employee Handbook

5. PROCEDURE:

Pharmacy Technician Use and Supervision Procedure

Pharmacy Staffing Procedure

Pharmacy Technician Training Program Procedure

Pharmacy APPE Student/Intern Procedure

Pharmacist Training Checklist

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

Texas State Board of Pharmacy:

Page 186 of 319

Pharmacy Technicians and Pharmacy Technician Trainees, 22 Texas Administrative Code, Rule §297.1 -

297.7

Approval Signatures
Step Description

Management of Board
Approval

CEO/Board Approval
Legal 2nd Review

Pharmacy &Therapeutic
Committee

Pharmacy Department Review
Legal 1st Review

CMO Review

Initial

Pharmacy [taff Training Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/156 104 (/.

Approver
Christopher Webb: Audit

Wayne Young: Exec
Kendra Thomas: Counsel

Angela Babin: Dir

Tanya White: Mgr
Obiajulu Enaohwo

Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr
(1101 1817)

Tanya White: Mgr

Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
07/2024

06/2024
06/2024
06/2024

05/2024

Page 2 of 2



EXHIBIT F-37



Status | Pending PolicyStatID 16201711

\

Origination  N/A Owner  Christina
Last N/A Gerardo:
, Approved Paralegal

Effective  Upon

J
Management
Mental Health and IDD Approval ooy po
Transforming Lives Last Revised  N/A Document geney roley

1.

2.

3.

.

Type
Next Review 1 year after

approval

Tenant Selection Policy

PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to establish a tenant selection process to determine applicants’
eligibility to reside in subsidized housing to comply with the rules governing tenancy.

POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) to strongly
support the goals of equal access to housing and will comply with all applicable federal laws
and any state or local law prohibiting discrimination in housing. All applicants of subsidized
housing must meet eligibility criteria established in the tenant selection plan to qualify for
tenancy. The Harris Center will provide a copy of the Tenant Selection Plan to each applicant
before their application is processed.

APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all applicants of Harris Center’s subsidized housing programs.

RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference

only):

5.

Tenant [election Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16201[11/. Copyright

Tenant Selection Plan

REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

© 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Area  Environmental

Page 187 of 319

Page 1 of 2


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195851
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195851
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81299
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81299
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 188 of 319

STANDARDS:

+ The Fair Amendments Act of 1988, 42 U.S.C.A. §§3601-3620, as modified by the Housing for
Older Americans Act of 1995

+ 42 U.S.C.A §3607(b)(2)(C), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
+ 29 U.S.C.A §794 et seq.

+ The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C.A. §§12101-12213
+ Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C.A §2000d

+ the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 42 U.S.C.A. §§6101-6107

+ Texas Fair Housing Act, Texas Property Code Ch. 301

+ Executive Order 11063

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date
Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2024
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 07/2024
Initial Assignment Christina Gerardo: Paralegal 07/2024

Tenant [election Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16201[11/. Copyright Page 2 of 2
© 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



EXHIBIT F-38




Status = Pending PolicyStat ID 16020737

Origination
Last
¢ ) Approved
Effective
\ #

Mental Health and IDD
Transforming Lives Last Revised

Next Review

09/2022
N/A

Upon
Approval

07/2024

1 year after
approval

Owner
Area

Document
Type

Page 189 of 319

Danyalle Evans

Medical Services

Bylaws

MED.B.5 Bylaws of The Professional Review Committee of
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD with Signature

¢ )

\ J

Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives

MLID.[1.5 Uylalls of The Professional Revie[! Committee of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD [lith [ignature.

Page 1 of [J

Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16020[ T T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris

Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7649937
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7649937
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=29441

Page 190 of 319

( )

A I
Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives

Bylaws of the Professional Review Committee
of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Article One

Creation and Purpose of the Professional Review Committee.

1.1 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD, is a Community Center, an agency of the state, a
governmental unit and a health care facility that provides medical or health-care services and follows a
formal peer review process for the purpose of furthering quality medical and/or health-care.

m1.2 The Professional Review Committee, or PRC, is created as a permanent Committee of The Harris
Center for Mental Health and IDD, a health care entity which provides health care services within its
geographical region. The Committee is formed in order to institute and implement a formal peer review
process to further quality medical care or health care to the patients and clients of The Harris Center for
Mental Health and IDD Center pursuant to the provisions of Texas Occupations Code §151.001 et. seq.,
§160.001 et. seq., and the Health Care Quality Improvement Act of 1986, 42 U.S.C. § 11101 et. seq.. Itis
the responsibility of the Professional Review Committee of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Center to perform professional review actions involving the evaluation of medical and health care
services, including evaluation of qualifications and professional conduct of professional health care
practitioners and of patient care provided by those practitioners. The term "professional review action”
includes, but is not limited to, evaluation of the following:

1. Merits of a complaint relating to health care practitioner and a determination or
recommendation regarding a complaint;

2. Accuracy of a diagnosis;
Quality of the care provided by health care practitioners;

4. Report made to a Professional Review Committee and its subcommittees and ad hoc
committees concerning activities under the Committee's review authority;

MLID.[1.5 Uylalls of The Professional Revie[! Committee of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD [lith [ignature. Page 2 of [
Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16020[ T T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris
Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 191 of 319

5. Report made by a Professional Review Committee, any of its subcommittees or ad hoc
committees or to the Board of Trustees as permitted or required by law; and

6. Implementation of the duties of a Professional Review Committee and the PRC
subcommittees and ad hoc committees by a member, agent, or employee of the Committee.

1.3 Nature of the Committee.

The Professional Review Committee is established to serve as a "professional review body" as that term
is defined in the Texas Medical Practices Act. The Nursing Peer Review Committee as defined in Texas
Occupations Code is a sub-Committee of the Professional Review Committee; The Closed Records
Review Committee as defined in Title 25 Texas Administrative Code Ch. 405, Subchapter K, is a sub-
Committee of the Professional Review Committee. The Pharmacy Peer Review Committee as defined
§8§564.001-564.006; 564.101-564.106 is a subcommittee of the Professional Review Committee. The
Pharmacy & Therapeutics and the Medical Peer Review Committees are "medical peer review
committees” as defined by the Texas Occupations Code and are
subcommittees of the Professional Review Committee. As a Committee of The Harris Center for Mental
Health and IDD Center, a health care entity, all references to the Professional Review Committee include
within its scope the governing Board of Trustees of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD Center
and the medical staff of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD Center. The term "Professional
Review Committee" also includes an employee or agent of the Committee or of The Harris Center for
Mental Health and IDD, including an assistant, investigator, intervener, attorney and any other person or
organization that serves the Committee.

Article Two

Meetings

2.1 Time and Place. The PRC shall hold at least quarterly meetings throughout the calendar year. The
meetings of the Committee shall take place at The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Administration Building located at 9401 Southwest Freeway, Houston, Texas, or such other place as may
be designated in writing from time to time by the PRC chair or designee of The Harris Center for Mental
Health and IDD.

2.2 Quorum. Fifty percent (50%) of members plus one (1) of the Professional Review Committee shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The quorum requirement for Urgent Case Reviews
is waived and the staff identified in Article 4, Section 4.03 are required to attend.

2.3 Action without Meeting. Action may be taken without a meeting if each member of the Committee
entitled to participate signs a written consent to the action and such written consents are filed with the
Chair of the Professional Review Committee.

2.4 Conference Call Meetings. Meetings of the Committee may also take place by conference call or
video conference with attempted notice to all members, and with the conference call or video
conference to include all available members of the Committee.

MLID.[1.5 Uylalls of The Professional Revie[! Committee of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD [lith [ignature. Page [of [
Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16020[ T T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris
Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 192 of 319

Article Three

Composition or the Committee

3.01 Powers. The Committee shall act only as a body, and no individual member of the Committee shall
have any power to bind the Committee, absent written resolution of consent of more than a quorum of
the Committee granting such authority.

3.02 Qualification of Members. Members of the Committee shall hold office as members of the
Committee until their respective successors are named, or until the death, resignation as an employee or
agent of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD or as a member of the Committee, or removal of
any Committee member.

3.03 Membership. The Professional Review Committee of The Harris Center shall be comprised of the
following permanent members: The Chief Medical Officer who will serve as the chair, the Chief Nursing
Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Legal Counsel, Chief Administrative Officer, the Division Vice Presidents
of Medical Services, VP of Clinical Transformation and Quality, Director of Pharmacy, and the Chief
Executive Officer. In addition, the appropriate Program Director, and any other staff members having
relevant information and expertise may participate, but may not vote, in Committee meetings. The
Medical Services Administrator will provide administrative support and coordinating functions but will
not be a voting member of the Committee.

3.04 Vacancies. Vacancies on the Committee may be filled by the Chief Executive Officer or Chief
Medical Officer or designee of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD.

3.05 Removal of Members. Any member of the Committee may be removed from the Committee with or
without cause by the decision of the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Medical Officer of The Harris Center
for Mental Health and IDD.

3.06 Custodian of Records. The custodian of the records and documents of the Committee shall be the
Chief Medical Officer, Chair of the PRC, who shall be responsible for secure and confidential safekeeping
of all patient records and privilege and confidential records of the Committee.

Article Four

Peer Review Authority of the Professional Review Committee

4.01 The Professional Review Committee (PRC), acting under the written Bylaws approved by the Board
of Trustees of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD is authorized and directed to evaluate the
quality of medical and health care Services and/or the competence of physicians and other health care
providers including the evaluation of the performance of those functions specified by §85.204 of the
Health and Safety Code. Likewise, the proceedings, actions, records and decisions of the Professional
Review Committee are covered by the provisions of the Health Care Quality Improvement Act of 1986, 42
U.S.C. §11101 et seq..

4.02 Duties of the Committee. The primary duties of the PRC is to implement a formal peer review

MLID.[1.5 Uylalls of The Professional Revie[! Committee of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD [lith [ignature. Page 4 of [
Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16020[ T T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris
Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 193 of 319

process to further quality medical care or health care to the patients. In that function, the PRC's duties
may include, but are not limited to, the following:

« To investigate all incidents involved or potentially involved in claims or lawsuits against the healthcare

providers;

To prepare reports, evaluating such incidents, claims, or lawsuits;

To assist The Harris Center's Legal Counsel in the evaluation of patient care that is the subject
of an incident, claim, or lawsuit against a health care practitioner and/or The Harris Center; and
to recommend disposition of a claim or lawsuit including settlement of defense of a lawsuit;

To identify broader risk management, quality care and patient safety issues within The Harris
Center departments or divisions that may result in claims, or incidents that may involve
potential claims, and to serve as liaison with the designated Director of Risk Management,
Vice President of Clinical Transformation & Quality and Safety Officers within their respective
departments or divisions to initiate corrective action, if necessary;

To appoint subcommittees as necessary to carry out the duties of the Committee, and to
review subcommittee investigations, peer review activities and final actions;

To conduct peer review of the quality of patient care involved in incidents, claims, or lawsuits
against The Harris Center and its health care practitioners;

To discuss policy issues arising from incidents, claims, or lawsuits; and/ or

To communicate with theLegal Counsel, Vice President of Enterprise Risk-Management-and
Complianece VicePresident-of-Clinical Transformation & Quality and Division heads of clinical

departments of The Harris Center as needed to inform them of policies or practices within
their departments related to incidents, claims, or lawsuits concerning professional liability.

4.03 Urgent Case Review

Urgent Case Review Definition: Cases that have urgency due to the reporting nature of the event

Time line:

Potential patient rights violation (suspected patient abuse or neglect)
Elopement
Cases requiring urgent review due to legal/risk implications

Significant concern about patient or staff safety warranting rapid review

The Professional Review Committee shall review urgent cases within 5 business days from

receiving notice of the incident to the Chief Medical Officer. Whenever possible, the Professional Review
Committee will attempt to conduct the urgent case review within 24 hours of notification.

Required Attendees:

Required: CMO, CNQ, Clinical Leaders

Ad-hoc: Applicable team leaders, Legal Counsel (depending on nature of case being review),
VP-of Enterprise-Risk Management, Compliance and Patient Safety

Recommendations and Action Steps: The Professional Review Committee shall consider the following
recommendations or actions steps

MLID.[1.5 Uylalls of The Professional Revie[! Committee of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD [lith [ignature. Page 5 of [
Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16020[ T T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris
Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 194 of 319

+ ldentify improvement opportunities for follow-up & associated owner

- Identify need for referral to Patient Safety, Peer Review (medical, nursing, licensed provider or
pharmacy), or Case Closure

« Communicate meeting minutes and action steps to appropriate parties within 2 business days
of completion of urgent case review (anyone not involved in urgent case review that need to
know about urgent case review outcomes)

4.04 Sentinel Events Process

+ Sentinel Events Process

A. Within 1 working day of knowledge of incident:

+ A Sentinel Event is an unexpected occurrence involving death or serious physical injury or
psychological injury, or the risk thereof. Serious injury specifically includes loss of limb or
function. The phrase "or the risk thereof" includes any process variation for which a recurrence
would carry a significant chance of a serious adverse outcome. Serious events include the
death of a client, delay in care, alleged abuse/neglect, or other incident as determined by the
Chief Medical Officer. The "appropriate person” is defined as the Quality Management Director
or designee(s)

* Procedures:

1. Area Director or designee(s) contacts the appropriate person to notify of the incident.

2. The appropriate person completes incident report and other forms as needed and notifies the
Chief Medical Officer or designee(s).

3. The Chief Medical Officer determines if the incident, as identified in the report, is considered to
be a Sentinel Event.

4. Once the incident is determined to be a Sentinel Event, Chief Medical Officer designates an
investigating officer to gather information surrounding Sentinel Event.

5. The Investigating Officer presents the findings at Sentinel Event Review, which is conducted by
the Professional Review Committee.

+ The Sentinel Review Committee is formed, facilitated by the Chief Medical Officer or
designee(s). Examples of Committee members may include: Investigating Officer,
Attending Physician, Other Quality Management personnel, Physician external to
Center, and other professionals deemed appropriate.

6. B.Sentinel Event Review:

+ The Investigating Officer presents the review findings as required.

+ The Committee identifies the areas of risk for the Center, determines if an action plan is
necessary, and assigns responsibility for the implementation of the action plan, if needed.

« If the Sentinel Event reports the death of a client, the Center adheres to TAC chapter 405,
Subchapter K, by completing and faxing the "Report of the Death of a Person Served," as
directed by the Professional Review Committee.

+ The person responsible for implementation of the Action Plan reviews and reports the status
of the implementation of the Action Plan to the Professional Review Committee.

MLID.[1.5 Uylalls of The Professional Revie[! Committee of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD [lith [ignature. Page 6 of [
Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16020[ T T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris
Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 195 of 319

Article Five

Sub-Committees and Standing Agenda Items of Professional Review Committee
5.01 The Professional Review Committee has the following standing Sub-Committees:

a. Medical Peer Review Committee
b. Nursing Peer Review Committee

c. Closed Records Review Committee

d. Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee

e. System Quality, Safety and Experience Committee
f. Pharmacy Peer Review Committee

g. Licensed Provider Peer Review Committee

5.02 Appointments may be made, from time to time, as determined by the Chair of the Professional
Review Committee for Ad Hoc Sub-Committees. Each Sub-Committee shall operate in accordance with
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD policies and procedures and applicable state and federal
laws and regulations.

5.03 A standing agenda item of every Professional Review Committee meeting is the explanation and
signed acknowledgment of confidentiality and privilege of the Committee, in the form of the advisory
statement from The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD Legal counsel as to privilege nature of the
Committee.

Article Six

Confidentiality of Records
6.01 Confidential and Privileged Communications-

All proceedings and records of the Committee, and all written or oral communications made to the
Committee, shall be confidential and privileged records, exempt from disclosure under the Open Records
Act, or in response to a subpoena, or other legal process. The PRC shall direct the assembly and
preparation of information, records and documents to assist in the discharge of its responsibilities to
preserve the privilege of the PRC proceedings. Waiver of any privilege may only be established if it is
executed in writing by the Chair of the PRC. Confidential and privileged information, oral or written
communications, records, or proceedings includes, but is not limited to:

A. Minutes of all Committee and sub-Committee meetings;

B. Correspondence and memoranda between Committee members, staff, consultants,
employees, agents, and servants of the Committee, the Center, its subsidiaries, or its contract
providers;

C. All other documents, records, communications, or memoranda involved in the deliberative
process of the Committee;

D. Any preliminary or final Committee report(s), product(s), or recommendation(s); and

MLID.[1.5 Uylalls of The Professional Revie[! Committee of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD [lith [ignature. Page [of [
Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16020[ T T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris
Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 196 of 319

E. Written or oral communications received from another Professional Review Committee or
professional review sub-Committee.

6.02 Protection from Disclosure.

All records, communications, notes, documents, books, and other property held by the Committee, and
its Sub-Committees, in conjunction with its responsibility for conducting of an investigation and the
making of specific recommendations for the improvement of patient services and the maintenance of
the highest standards of patient care, shall be strictly privileged and confidential and protected from
disclosure to the maximum extent provided by both federal and state law. All reports, documents, and
minutes of the PRC, PRC subcommittees and PRC ad hoc committees shall be clearly identified as
confidential information prepared at the request of the PRC. No members of the Committee, or its Sub-
Committees, shall be at liberty to disclose or discuss the content of any record or investigation which
comes before the Committee. Violation of such shall be grounds for adverse employment action. It shall
be the responsibility of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD legal counsel to advise Committee
members of the privileged and confidential nature of the records, communications, notes, documents,
books, and other property held by the Committee, and its Sub-Committees, at the commencement of
each Committee meeting.

Article Seven

7.01 Amendment of Bylaws.

Amendments to these By-laws may be proposed by any member of the PRC. Amendments to these
bylaws requires the approval of the Board of Trustees of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD.

The Board of Trustees of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD on the April 25, 2018.

The AMENDED bylaws are hereby ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Harris Center for Mental
Health and IDD on this ___thdayof _____ 20222024.

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Board of Trustees

Shaukat Z ia_Chai

Dr. Robin Gearing, Chairman

: 5 Chairof Qual L :

Attachments

MLID.[1.5 Uylalls of The Professional Revie[! Committee of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD [lith [ignature. Page 8 of [
Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16020[ T T/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris
Center for Mental Health and IDD



Bylaws for Professional Review Committee-Amended signature pg.pdf

image3.jpg

Approval Signatures
Step Description

Management of Board
Approval

CEO Approval
Legal Review

Initial Assignment

MLD.[.5 Cylals of The Professional Revie[] Committee of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD Uith Cignature.
Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16020[ 1T /. Copyright © 2024 The Harris

Center for Mental Health and IDD

Approver

Christopher Webb: Audit

Wayne Young: Exec
Kendra Thomas: Counsel

Danyalle Evans

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
06/2024

Page 197 of 319

Page [of [J


https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/public/86e7464e3aa03a0729bd015deb48ff9ec858817b10393a1ede2ae0c4/Bylaws%20for%20Professional%20Review%20Committee-Amended%20signature%20pg.pdf
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/public/9121dba5994e8b953141285458bcccf03b47d18aa3447fab1f79daca/1651609291-image3.jpg

EXHIBIT F-39



Status | Pending PolicyStat ID 12434429

Origination
Last
¢ ) Approved
Effective
\ #

Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives Last Revised

Next Review

04/1987
N/A

Upon
Approval

08/2024

1 year after
approval

Owner

Area

Document
Type

Page 198 of 319

Stanley Adams

Fiscal
Management

Agency Policy

FM.A.14 Cash Receipts & Bank Deposits

1. PURPOSE:

To establish The Harris Center policy for the handling of all cash receipts, to include currency, coin,
checks, ACH transactions, and credit card transactions. To ensure all cash received and deposited are

recorded, processed and secured appropriately.

2. POLICY:

The Harris Center clinics (Clinics) will establish proper and adequate controls to ensure the safeguarding
of cash and checks received by the Center for payment of consumer services. Deposits will be made tn a
timely basis to allow for more efficient use of Agency funds. Reports will be prepared timely and
consistently to allow for accurate financial reporting. Finance will maintain all related procedures.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all Harris Center staff, contractors, visitors, and individuals served.

[M.A.14 Cash Receipts [ [lan[1Deposits. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

12474427]. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

4. PROCEDURES

Page 199 of 319

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (forreference

only):RELATED POLICES/FORMS:

7. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Department Review Stanley Adams

Initial Assignment Stanley Adams

[M.A.14 Cash Receipts [l Uan[IDeposits. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

12474421]. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
06/2024
06/2024

Page 2 of 2



EXHIBIT F-40




Page 200 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStat ID 15055284

Origination  02/2023 Owner  Wesley Farris:
Last N/A ITSecOfcr
QI P TARRIS Approved Area  Information
JO CENTER, Effective Upon nenagenen
Mental Health and IDD Approval Document Agency Policy
Transforming Lives Last Revised 06/2024 Type

Next Review 1 year after
approval

HIM.IT.A.6 Cellular Phone Distribution and Management

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this document is to define Harris Center Cellular and Smartphone management policies.

2. POLICY:

The Harris Center will ensure that Center-issued Smartphones are distributed appropriately and that the
data contained therein is securely managed.

+ Smartphones intended for workforce member use must have mobile device management
enforced priertobefore distribution.

Cellular phones intended for consumer use must not be smartphones unless approved by the
Chief Information Officer (CIO) and Information Security Officer (ISO) on a per-pregramuse-
case basis.

+ The Harris Center staff members must not distribute/provide smartphones configured with
Center staff credentials to other staff members, even for temporary/single-use cases.

+ The Harris Center staff members must not distribute/provide smartphones configured with
Center staff credentials to consumers, even for temporary/single-use cases.

+ The Harris Center smartphones must be assigned to the intended user by the Information
Technology (IT) Department. The CIO and ISO must approve exceptions.

+ The assigned smartphone user is responsible for the device and the information on the device
and must return the device to the IT department for service/reassignment, etc.

HIM.IT.A.6 Cellular Phone Distribution and Management. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 1 of 2
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15055284/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195746
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195746
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

+ End-user departments shall not assign/reassign cellular phones.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

Page 201 of 319

All employees, staff, contractors, interns, and volunteers with-aassigning or using Harris Center-issued

cellular phenephones.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference

only):

Information-Seecurity PolieyHIM.IT.A.2 Information Security Policy

5. PROCEDURES:

Cellular Phone Distribution and Management Procedure

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

« NIST Special Publication 800-53 Rev. 5: AC-19
+ CARF: Section 1., Subsection J., Technology

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir
Initial Assignment Wesley Farris: ITSecOfcr

HIM.IT.A.6 Cellular Phone Distribution and Management. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15055284/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
06/2024
06/2024

Page 2 of 2


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121254/latest

EXHIBIT F-41



Page 202 of 319

Status = Pending PolicyStat ID = 13421423

Origination  06/2022 Owner  Stanley Adams
Last N/A Area  Fiscal
( ) Approved Management
{ ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised  08/2024

Next Review 1 year after
approval

FM.A.4 Center related Meeting Expense

1. PURPOSE:

EnsureTo ensure all expenses related to meals at the meetings hosted by Harris Center staff are
accounted for, relevant to agency priorities; and represent good stewardship.

2. POLICY:

The Center will assume the expense for certain meals provided at Center-related meetings with approval
from the appropriate Vice President and or Chief Executive Officer, or designee.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all Harris Center staff, contractors, visitersvistors, and people served.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only)::

FM.A.5: Purchasing Card_(P Card)

6. PROCEDURE:

FM.B.4 Center Related Meeting Expense Procedure

FM.A 4 Center related Meeting Expense. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/ Page 1 of 2
13421423/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12031836/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11340777/latest

Purchasing-Gard
Genterrelated Meeting-ExpenseFM.B.5 Purchasing Card Procedure

7. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Department Review Stanley Adams

Initial Assignment Stanley Adams

FM.A 4 Center related Meeting Expense. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

13421423/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
06/2024
06/2024

Page 203 of 319

Page 2 of 2


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11341270/latest/
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11525039/latest/latest/
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11321668/latest

EXHIBIT F-42




Status = Pending PolicyStat ID 14121266

Origination

Last

¢ Approved

2 HARRIS
7 \J CENTER -
Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives

Effective

Last Revised

Next Review

08/2022
N/A

Upon
Approval

06/2024

1 year after
approval

Owner

Area

Document
Type

FM.A.11 Charity Care Policy

1. PURPOSE:

Page 204 of 319

Stanley Adams

Fiscal
Management

Agency Policy

The Harris Center (the Center) is committed to providing charity care to persons who have healthcare
needs and are uninsured, underinsured, or otherwise unable to pay, for medically necessary care based
on their individual financial situation. The Center strives to ensure that the financial capacity of clients
who need quality healthcare services does not prevent them from seeking or receiving care.

2. POLICY:

FM.A.11 Charity Care Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121266/.

Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 3


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 205 of 319

To manage its resources responsibly and to allow the Center to provide the appropriate level of
assistance to the greatest number of people in need, the Board of Trustees establishes the following
guidelines for the provision of client charity care.

Clients are expected to cooperate with the Center’s procedures for obtaining charity care or other forms
of payment or financial assistance, and to contribute to the cost of their care based on their individual
ability to pay subject to the rules, regulations, and contractual requirements of the Center's various
funding agencies

+ Includes eligibility criteria for financial assistance — free and discounted (partial charity care)

+ Describes the basis for calculating amounts charged to clients served eligible for financial
assistance under this policy

+ Describes the method by which clients served may apply for financial assistance
+ Describes how the Center will widely publicize the policy to the Communit

Limits the amounts that the Center will charge for eligible services provided to clients
ualifying for financial assistance to the amount generally billed (received by) the Center for

private and public insurance (Medicaid, Medicare, etc.).

3. APPLICABILITY/ SCOPE:

This applies 1o all persons served who meet the eligibility criteria and have a financial need.

4.-4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS(forreference
only):
ACC.A.11 Financial Assessment

5. PROCEDURES:

FM.B.11 Charity Care-Procedure

6--6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

Health and Human Services Commission

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date

FM.A.11 Charity Care Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121266/. Page 2 of 3
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12434430/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14496191/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12187503/latest

Management of Board
Approval

CEO Approval
Legal Review
Department Review

Initial Assignment

FM.A.11 Charity Care Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121266/.

Christopher Webb: Audit

Wayne Young: Exec
Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Stanley Adams

Stanley Adams

Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
07/2024
06/2024

Page 206 of 319

Page 3 of 3



EXHIBIT F-43



Page 207 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStatID 15101826

Origination 06/2000 Owner  Rita Alford: Dir
Last N/A Area  Information
¢ } Approved Management
( ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised  07/2024

Next Review 1 year after
approval

HIM.EHR.A.3 Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/
Individual Health Information

1. PURPOSE:

The Harris Center shall protect the privacy of all patients'/individuals_individual's health information and
safeguard such information against loss, damage, alteration; or impermissible disclosure. Uses and
disclosures will be made only as permitted or required by law and will consist of only the relevant or
minimal amount necessary to satisfy the purpose of the use or disclosure.

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center that the patient/ individual records are the property of the Harris
Center and may be removed from the Harris Center premises only in accordance with a court order,
subpoena or statute, or signed written authorization from-the patient/ individual or legally authorized
representative. Proven privacy violations of-the patient/ individual health information by any employee or
business associate may be cause for disciplinary actions, including termination of employment or
contract. Violations will also be mitigated in accordance with privacy regulations.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all departments, divisions, facilities; and/or programs within The Harris Center,
including contractors, volunteers, interns, and Business-Associatesbusiness associates.

HIM.EHR.A.3 Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/ Individual Health Information. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 1 of 4
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15101826/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195246
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195246
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 208 of 319

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS(forreference
only):

Policies and Procedures

+ HIM.EHR.A.5 Content of Patient/ Individual Records

+ HIM.EHR.A.7 Faxing and Emailing Patient/Individual Identifying Information

+ HIM.EHR.A.8 Patient/ Individual Access to Medical Records

+ HIM.EHR.A.9 Patient/Individual Records Administration

+ HIM.EHR.A.11 Sanctions for Breach of Security and/or Privacy Violations of Health
Information

LD.A.1 Business Associate

Forms

+ Authorization Request Cover Letter

« Emergency Verification for Disclosure of Protected Health Information

+ Media Consent Form

+ Authorization to Disclose Patient/Individual Health Information

+ Revocation for-Bisclosure-ofof Authorization to Disclose Consumer Health Information

Attachments

+ Release of Information Log

HIM.EHR.A.3 Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/ Individual Health Information. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 2 of 4
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15101826/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121250/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121249/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958987/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121251/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958974/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12880433/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121250/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121249/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958987/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958987/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958974/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958974/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12880433/latest

Page 209 of 319

+ Release of Information Grid

+ Verification Checklist for Processing Authorizations

+ Release of Information Cover Letter

+ Confidentiality Statement

+ Release of Information Processing Fee

+ Release of Information Invoice

« Subpoena Information Sheet

+ Employee Statement of Information Security and Confidentiality
+ Emergency Verification for Disclosure of Protected Health Information
+ Confidentiality Awareness Guidelines

+ Guidelines for Releases

+ Business Records Affidavit

+ No Records Affidavit

5. PROCEDURES:PROCEDURES

HIM.EHR.B.3 - Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/ Individual Health Information

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

HIM.EHR.A.3 Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/ Individual Health Information. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 3 of 4
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15101826/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11321673/latest

Page 210 of 319

+ Privacy Act of 1974, 5U.S.C. Ch. 5 §552a

+ Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 1996, Part 160 and 164
+ Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 CFR Part 2

+ Investigations and Protective Services for Elderly Persons and Persons with Disabilities, Texas
Human Resources Codes Ch. 48

+ Medical Records Privacy, Tex. Health & Safety Code Ch. 181

+ Mental Health Records, Texas Health and Safety Codes Ch. 611

+ Consent to Treatment of Child by Non-parent or Child, Texas Family Code Ch. 32

+ Inter-agency Sharing of Certain Noneducational Records, Texas Family Code Sec 58.0052
+ Physician-Patient Communication, Texas Occupations Code Ch. 159

+ Physician-Patient Privilege, Texas Rules of Civil Evidence Rule 509

+ Mental Health Information Privilege in Civil Cases, Texas Rules of Civil Evidence, Rule 510
+ Resident Rights, 42 CFR 483.10(e)

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending

Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2024

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 07/2024

Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 06/2024

Initial Assignment Rita Alford: Dir 03/2024
HIM.EHR.A.3 Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/ Individual Health Information. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 4 of 4

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15101826/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



EXHIBIT F-44




Page 211 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStat ID 13958980

Origination  10/2005 Owner  Stanley Adams
Last N/A Area  Fiscal
( ) Approved Management
'\ ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised  08/2024

Next Review 1 year after
approval

FM.A.2 Disposal of Fixed Assets

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to establish Agency requirements related to maintaining an accurate record
of equipment owned by or in the custody of Fhethe Harris Center and the disposal of equipment.

2. POLICY:

Each Unit Manager is accountable for all the fixed asset equipment items assigned to their unit(s).
Therefore, it is necessary to properly record and account for the disposal of all fixed assets. The Harris
Center for Mental Health and Intellectual and Developmental Disability (The Harris Center) has set forth
guidelines for deleting and disposing of equipment:

1. The Harris Center fixed assets that are obsolete, worn-out, or unusable tangible property can
be disposed-ef.

2. Unit Managers are responsible for ensuring the retention of the property while the equipment
is in the department's custody.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

The Harris Center

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS-(forreference
only):

FM.A.7 The Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and / or Services

FM.A.2 Disposal of Fixed Assets. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958980/. Page 1 of 2
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12504621/latest

6. PROCEDURE:

Disposal-of Fixed-AssetsFM.B.2 Disposal of Fixed Assets

7. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

CAREF: Section 1. Subsection F.6.a., Financial Planning and Management

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Department Review Stanley Adams

Initial Assignment Vanessa McKeown

FM.A 2 Disposal of Fixed Assets. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958980/.

Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
06/2024
10/2023

Page 212 of 319

Page 2 of 2


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11321655/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13817221/latest

- EXHIBIT F-45



Page 213 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStatID 13233617

Origination 03/1976 Owner  Thania Gonzalez
Qf)r DIQ Approved Management
< HARRIS _ .
W/ J CENTER /o Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised 07/2024

Next Review 1 year after
approval

FM.A.16 Dues and Membership Fees

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to determine responsibility for payment of dues and membership fees.

2. POLICY:;

As a general rule, the Agency will not assumecover the cost of any-dues and professional memberships
for employees, unless exceptionismadeapproved by the Chief Executive Officer. FheHowever, the
Agency will assume the expense for Agency memberships when appropriate. Whereln cases where an
Agency memberships-are-not-available formedia-purposes,ete;membership cannot be assigned to the
Agency itself but must be vested-inassigned to an individual, the Chief Executive Officer will designate
the appropriate individual-shall-be-designated-by-the Chief Executive Officer.

H-thereEmployees are responsible for any licenses, dues, or membership fees whichthat are conditions

of their employment.If a specific fee is not a condition of employment but arises due to additional job
dutles the emp#eyee—assumes—theAgency will cover this expense—Ln—eases—whe;e—a—speemeﬁee—us—nei—a

assre|4:ne—the—eaqae{cvse—f-eJC one (1) time only. AI—the—Hme—eiUpo renewal, the employee mustassume-the
expenseis responsible for covering the cost.

DuesApproval of dues and membership fees-foran-individual, whether for individuals or Agency
membership-are-approved-atmemberships, rests with the discretion of the Chief Executive Officer.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

The Harris Center employees, contractors, interns and volunteers.

FM.A.16 Dues and Membership Fees. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/ Page 1 of 2
13233617/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9905024
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9905024
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 214 of 319

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS(forreference

only):

None

5. PROCEDURE:

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

None

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Department Review Stanley Adams

Initial Assignment Thania Gonzalez

FM.A.16 Dues and Membership Fees. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

13233617/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
07/2024
07/2024

Page 2 of 2



EXHIBIT F-46



Page 215 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStatID 15964629

Origination  N/A Owner  Vanessa Miller:
Last N/A Mgr

QTP . Approved Area Infection Control

HARRIS _
(JVU CENTER ; Effective  Upon Document Agency Plan
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type

Transforming Lives Last Revised  N/A
Next Review 1 year after
approval
Infection Control Plan/Airborne Precautions
Purpese

Infection Control Plan/Airborne Precautions

The purpose of this procedureplan is to formalize and document the Infection Control Plan. The Infection
Control Nurse Manager shall review and update the Plan annually. The Plan will comply with the
Department of State Health Services (DSHS), Center for Disease Control (CDC), and Occupational Safety
and Health Authority (OSHA) regulations. The Harris Center is committed to providing a safe and healthy
workplace for all our employees.

The Harris Center has developed a COVID-19 Plan ("Covid Plan"). The Covid Plan includes policies and
procedures aimed at minimizing the risk of transmission of COVID-19. The Covid Plan was developed
and continuously adapted to stay compliant with local, state, and federal guidelines. The
recommendations in this Plan are derived from analysis of current epidemiological and microbiologic
information. This Plan assures that infection control education, preventative activities that occur within
the Agency, and measures to address identified instances related to exposures are responded to in an
effective manner.

2 Applicability/S

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD employees and all volunteers and contractors.

Infection Control Plan/Airborne Precautions. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/ Page 1 of 4
15964629/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196452
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196452
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81297
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81297
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=114203

Page 216 of 319

Communicable Disease:

Communicable Disease:-An illness due to an infectious agent or its toxic products which is transmitted
directly to a well person from an infected person or animal or indirectly through an intermediate plant or
animal host, vector or the inanimate environment. Communicable diseases may spread by physical
contact with an infected person, contact with a contaminated surface or object, bites from insects or
animals capable of transmitting the disease and travel through the air. Bacteria, fungi, parasites and
viruses may cause communicable diseases.

5.-Control of Airborne Pathogens

Use Airborne Precautions for patients known to or suspected to be infected with pathogens transmitted
by the airborne route (e.g., tuberculosis, measles, chickenpox, disseminated herpes zoster).

Practice source control: Put a mask on the patient.

Ensure appropriate patient placement in an airborne infection isolation room (AlIR) constructed
according to the Guideline for Isolation Precautions. In settings where Airborne Precautions cannot be
implemented due to limited engineering resources, masking the patient, and placing the patient in a
private room with the door closed will reduce the likelihood of airborne transmission until the patient is
either transferred to a facility with an AlIR or returned home.

Restrict susceptible health care personnel from entering the room of patients known or suspected to
have measles, chickenpox, disseminated zoster, or smallpox if other immune health care personnel are
available.

Use personal protective equipment (PPE) appropriately, including a fit-tested NIOSH-approved N95 or
higher-level respirator for health care personnel.

Limit transport and movement of patients outside of the room to medically necessary purposes. If
transport or movement outside an AlIR is necessary, instruct patients to wear a surgical mask, if
possible, and observe Respiratory Hygiene/Cough Etiquette. Health-care personnel transporting patients
who are on Airborne Precautions do not need to wear a mask or respirator during transport if the patient
is wearing a mask and infectious skin lesions are covered.

Immunize susceptible persons as soon as possible following unprotected contact with vaccine-
preventable infections (e.g., measles, varicella, or smallpox).

6-Control of Infection occurs by:

Identifying consumers and/or staff with communicable or potentially communicable infections.

Infection Control Plan/Airborne Precautions. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/ Page 2 of 4
15964629/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


http://www.apic.org/
http://www.cdc.gov/
http://www.dshs.state.tx.us/

Implementing appropriate Infection Control measures.

Educating staff on Infection Control procedures and standards.

Providing information to all departments related to managing on site Infection control issues.
7-Disease Prevention:

The prevention of infection in staff and consumers occurs through:
Dissemination of Infection Control guidelines.

Ongoing updates of Infection control procedures and practices-

Monitoring of Infection Control practices within the Departments.
8-Exposure

Condition of being exposed to an infectious agent.

9-Investigation and Surveillance Involves the following:

Systematic Data collection.

Analysis of the data with determination of specific events to be monitored.
Development and implementation of measurable quality improvement plans.
Evaluation of the quality improvement plans.

10-Reporting of infections occurs by:

Staff reporting possible exposures to infectious diseases.

Page 217 of 319

Reporting to the DSHS notifiable conditions and isolates. Communicable Diseases. 25 TAC Part 1,

Chapter 97, Subchapter A

11--Disease Prevention occurs by the Infection Control Manager:

Identifying consumers or staff with communicable or potentially communicable infections.
Implementing appropriate Infection Control measures.

Partnering with local pharmacies to provide vaccine clinics to employees.

Educating staff on Infection Control procedures, standards, and continued updates.

Providing information to all departments related to managing on-site Infection Control issues.
Monitoring of Infection Control Practices within the Department-

12-Investigation and Surveillance Involves the following:

Systematic Data collection-

Analysis of the data with a determination of specific events to be monitored.

Infection Control Plan/Airborne Precautions. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/
15964629/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 3 of 4



Development and implementation of measurable quality improvement plans:

Evaluation of quality improvement plans-

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit

Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec

Final Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel

Department Review Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr
(1101 1817)

Initial Assignment Vanessa Miller: Mgr

Infection Control Plan/Airborne Precautions. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

15964629/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
06/2024

06/2024

Page 218 of 319

Page 4 of 4



EXHIBIT F-47



Page 219 of 319

Status ' Pending PolicyStat ID 13233621

Origination  10/2017 Owner  Stanley Adams
Last N/A Area  Fiscal
( ) Approved Management
'\ ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised  07/2024

Next Review 1 year after
approval

FM.A.17 Investment Policy

|. PURPOSE

The purpose of this investment policy is to comply with Chapter 2256 of the Government Code ("Public
Funds Investment Act"), which requires each entity to adopt a written investment policy regarding the
investment of its funds and funds under its control. The Investment Policy addresses the methods,
procedures and practices that must be exercised to ensure effective and judicious fiscal management of
The Harris Center's funds.

Il. POLICY

It is the policy of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (formerly MHMRA of Harris County, and
The Harris Center for short) that after allowing for its anticipated cash flow requirements all available
funds shall be invested in conformance with these legal and administrative guidelines, seeking to
preserve the principal and optimize interest earnings to the maximum extent possible.

Effective cash management is recognized as essential to good fiscal management. Investment income
is a source of revenue to The Harris Center. The investment portfolio shall be designed and managed to
maximize this revenue source, to be responsive to the public trust, and to be in compliance with legal
requirements and limitations.

lll. SCOPE

This Investment Policy shall govern the investment of all financial assets of The Harris Center. These
funds are accounted for in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and include:

General Fund

FM.A.17 Investment Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233621/. Page 1 of 15
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 220 of 319

« Any new fund created by The Harris Center unless specifically exempted from this Policy by
the Board of Trustees (Board) or by law.

This Investment Policy shall apply to all transactions involving the financial assets and related activity
for the foregoing fund. However, this policy does not apply to the assets administered for the benefit of
The Harris Center by outside agencies under deferred compensation programs.

IV. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

The Harris Center shall manage and invest its cash with four primary objectives, listed in order of priority:
safety, liquidity, public trust, and yield, expressed as optimization of interest earnings. The safety of the
principal invested always remains the primary objective. All investments shall be designed and managed
in a manner responsive to the public trust and consistent with state and local laws.

The Harris Center shall maintain a comprehensive cash management program, which includes collection
of account receivables, vendor payments in accordance with invoice terms, and prudent investment of
available cash. Cash management is defined as the process of managing monies in order to insure
maximum cash availability and maximum earnings on short-term investment of idle cash.

A. Safety [PFIA 2256.005(b) (2)]

Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. Investments shall be undertaken
in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The objective will be
to mitigate credit and interest rate risk.

+ Credit Risk - The Entity will minimize credit risk, the risk of loss due to the failure of the issuer
or backer of the investment, by:

o Limiting investments to the safest types of investments

o Pre-qualifying the financial institutions and broker/dealers with which the Entity will
do business

o Diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual issuers
will be minimized.

* Interest Rate Risk - the Entity will minimize the risk that the interest earnings and the market
value of investments in the portfolio will fall due to changes in general interest rates, by:

o Structuring the investment portfolio so that investments mature to meet cash
requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to liquidate
investments prior to maturity.

o Investing operating funds primarily in certificates of deposit, shorter-term securities,
money market mutual funds, or local government investment pools functioning as
money market mutual funds.

o Diversifying maturities and staggering purchase dates to minimize the impact of
market movements over time.

FM.A.17 Investment Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233621/. Page 2 of 15
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 221 of 319

B. Liquidity (PFIA 2256.005(b) (2)]

The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating requirements that may be
reasonably anticipated. This is accomplished by structuring the portfolio so that investments mature
concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated demands. Because all possible cash demands cannot
be anticipated, a portion of the portfolio will be invested in shares of money market mutual funds or local
government investment pools that offer same-day liquidity. In addition, a portion of the portfolio will
consist of securities with active secondary or resale markets.

C. Public Trust

All participants in The Harris Center's investment process shall seek to act responsibly as custodians of
the public trust. Investment officers shall avoid any transaction that might impair public confidence in
the entity's ability to govern effectively.

D. Yield (Optimization of Interest Earnings) [PFIA
2256.005(b) (3)]

The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return
throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the investment risk constraints and
liquidity needs. Return on investment is of secondary importance compared to the safety and liquidity
objectives described above.

E. Investment Strategy [PFIA 2256.005 (d)]

As an integral part of this investment policy, the Board shall adopt a separate written investment strategy
for each of the funds or group of funds under its control. This investment strategy shall describe the
investment objectives of the particular fund using the following priorities in order of importance:
suitability of the investment to the financial requirements of The Harris Center;

preservation and safety of principal;

liquidity;

marketability of the investment if the need arises to liquidate the investment before maturity;

diversification of the investment portfolio; and

o o w N~

. yield

V. RESPONSIBILITY AND CONTROL
A. Delegation of Authority [PFIA 2256.005(f)]

In accordance with The Harris Center's policy and the Public Funds Investment Act, the Board designates

the Chief Financial Officer and the Aceounting-& Freasury-ManagerController as the entity's Investment
Officers. An Investment Officer is authorized to execute investment transactions on behalf of The Harris

FM.A.17 Investment Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233621/. Page 3 of 15
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 222 of 319

Center. No person may engage in an investment transaction or the management of The Harris Center's
funds except as provided under the terms of this Investment Policy as approved by the Board. The
investment authority granted to the investing officers is effective until rescinded by the Board.

B. Quality and Capability of Investment Management
[PFIA 2256.005(b) (3)]

The Harris Center shall provide periodic training in investments for the designated investment officers

and other investment personnel through courses and seminars offered by professional organizations,

associations, and other independent sources in order to insure the quality and capability of investment
management in compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act.

C. Training Requirement (PFIA 2256.008)

In accordance with The Harris Center's policy and the Public Funds Investment Act, designated
Investment Officers shall attend an investment training session no less often than once every two years
commencing September 1,1997 and shall receive not less than 10 hours of instruction relating to
investment responsibilities. A newly appointed Investment Officer must attend a training session of at
least 10 hours of instruction within twelve months of the date the officer took office or assumed the
officer's duties. The investment training session shall be provided by an independent source. For
purposes of this policy, an "independent source" from which investment training shall be obtained shall
include a professional organization, an institution of higher education or any other sponsor other than a
business organization with whom The Harris Center may engage in an investment transaction. An
institution of higher education that would be considered an "independent source" is the Center for Public
Management at the University of North Texas. A professional organization that would be considered an
"independent source is the Government Treasurer's Organization of Texas. Any other sponsor that would
be considered an "independent source" is the Texas State Board of Public Accountancy and any of its'
related continuing professional education sponsors.

The training shall include instruction relating to the officer's responsibilities and education in
investment controls, security risks, strategy risks, market risks, diversification of investment portfolio,
and compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA),

D. Internal Controls (Best Practice)

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure
designed to ensure that the assets of the entity are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The internal
control structure shall be designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met. The
concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits
likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

Accordingly, the Chief Financial Officer shall establish a process for annual independent review by an
external auditor to assure compliance with policies and procedures. The internal controls shall address
the following points:

FM.A.17 Investment Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233621/. Page 4 of 15
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 223 of 319

+ Control of collusion.

+ Separation of transactions authority from accounting and record keeping.
+ Custodial safekeeping.

+ Avoidance of physical delivery of securities.

+ Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members.

+ Written confirmation for telephone (voice) transactions for investments and wire transfers.
Development of a wire transfer agreement with the depository bank or third-party custodian.

E. Prudence (PFIA 2256.006)

The standard of prudence to be applied by the Investment Officer shall be the "prudent investor" rule.
This rule states that "Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under prevailing
circumstances, that a person of prudence, discretion and intelligence would exercise in the management
of the person's own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of
their capital and the probable income to be derived." Investment of funds shall be governed by the
following investment objectives, in order of priority:

+ Preservation and safety of principal;
+ Liquidity; and
* Yield

In determining whether an Investment Officer has exercised prudence with respect to an investment
decision, the determination shall be made taking into consideration:

+ The investment of all funds, or funds under The Harris Center's control, over which the officer
had responsibility rather than a consideration as to the prudence of a single investment; and

+ Whether the investment decision was consistent with the written approved investment policy
of The Harris Center.

F. Indemnification

The Investment Officer, acting in accordance with written procedures and exercising due diligence, shall
not be held personally responsible for a specific investment's credit risk or market price changes,
provided that these deviations are reported immediately and the appropriate action is taken to control
adverse developments.

G. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest [PFIA 2256.005(1)]

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity
that would conflict with the proper execution and management of the investment program, or that would
impair their ability to make impartial decisions. Employees and Investment Officers shall disclose any
personal business relationship in financial institutions with which they conduct business. They shall
further disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the performance of
the investment portfolio. Employees and officers shall refrain from undertaking personal investment

FM.A.17 Investment Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233621/. Page 5 of 15
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 224 of 319

transactions with the same individual with which business is conducted on behalf of The Harris Center.

An Investment Officer of The Harris Center who has a personal business relationship with an
organization seeking to sell an investment to The Harris Center shall file a statement disclosing that
personal business interest. An investment Officer who is related within the second degree by affinity or
consanguinity to an individual seeking to sell an investment to The Harris Center shall file a statement
disclosing that relationship. A statement required under this subsection must be filed with the Board and
the Texas Ethics Commission.

An investment officer has a personal business relationship with a business organization if:
+ The investment officer owns 10% or more of the voting stock or shares of the business
organization or owns $5,000 or more of the fair market value of the business organization;

+ Funds received by the investment officer from the business organization exceeds 10% of the
investment officer's gross income for the previous year; or

+ The investment officer has acquired from the business organization during the previous year
investments with a book value of $2,500 or more for the personal account of the investment
officer.

VI. SUITABLE AND AUTHORIZED
INVESTMENTS

A. Portfolio Management

The Harris Center currently has a "buy and hold" portfolio strategy. Maturity dates are matched with cash
flow requirements and investments are purchased with the intent to be held until maturity. However,
investments may be liquidated prior to maturity for the following reasons:

+ Aninvestment with declining credit may be liquidated early to minimize loss of principal.

+ Cash flow needs of The Harris Center require that the investment be liquidated.

B. Investments [PFIA 2256.005(b) (4) (A)]

The Harris Center funds governed by this policy may be invested in the instruments described below, all
of which are authorized by Chapter 2256 of the Government Code (Public Funds Investment Act).
Investment of The Harris Center funds in any instrument or security not authorized for investment under
the Act is prohibited. The Harris Center will not be required to liquidate an investment that becomes
unauthorized subsequent to its purchase.

1. Authorized

a. Obligations issued or guaranteed as to principal and interest by the Government of
the United States of America, its agencies and instrumentality's including;

i. Federal Farm Credit Banks (FFCB) Consolidated System-wide Discount
Notes and Bonds;

ii. Federal Home Loan Banks {FHLB) Consolidated System-wide Discount

FM.A.17 Investment Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233621/. Page 6 of 15
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 225 of 319

Notes and Bonds;

iii. Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA or "Fannie Mae") Discount
Notes and Debentures. Pass-through securities are unauthorized unless
acquired through a repurchase agreement;

iv. Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC or "Freddie Mac")
Discount Notes and Debentures. Pass-through securities are unauthorized
unless acquired through a repurchase agreement;

v. Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA or "Ginnie Mae")
Notes, Bonds and Participation Certificates. Pass-through securities are
unauthorized unless acquired through a repurchase agreement;

vi. Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA or "Sally Mae") Discount
Notes and Bonds;

vii. Letters Of Credit

b. Certificates of Deposit issued by a bank organized under Texas law, the laws of
another state, or federal law, that has its main office or a branch office in Texas, or by
a savings and loan association or a savings bank organized under Texas law, the
laws of another state, or federal law, that has its main office or a branch office in
Texas and that is guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance or its
successor or the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund or its successor; or
secured by obligations in a manner and amount provided by law for deposits of The
Harris Center. An investment in negotiable certificates of deposits issued by a bank
that has a certificate of deposit rating of at least 1 or the equivalent by a nationally
recognized credit rating agency.

c. Fully collateralized direct repurchase agreements with a defined termination date
secured by obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities.
These shall be pledged to The Harris Center, held in it's name, and deposited at the
time the investment is made with The Harris Center or with a third party selected and
approved by The Harris Center. Repurchase agreements must be purchased through
a primary government securities dealer, as defined by the Federal Reserve, or a
financial institution doing business in Texas. A Master Repurchase Agreement must
be signed by the bank/dealer prior to investment in a repurchase agreement. All
repurchase agreement transactions will be on a delivery vs. payment basis.
Securities received for repurchase agreements must have a market value greater
than or equal to 102 percent at the time funds are disbursed. (Sweep Accounts and/
or Bond Proceeds)

d. Money Market Mutual funds that are 1) no load money market mutual funds that are
registered and regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, no load
mutual funds are authorized if these are registered with the SEC; 2) have a weighted
average stated maturity of less than 2 years, invested exclusively in obligations
approved by the PFIA 3) is continuously rated as to investment quality by at least
one nationally recognized investment rating firm, 4) has a duration of one year or
more and is invested exclusively in obligations approved by this subchapter or has a
duration of less than one year and the investment portfolio is limited to investment
grade securities, excluding asset-backed securities, 5) complies with SEC Rule 2a-7

FM.A.17 Investment Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233621/. Page 7 of 15
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 226 of 319

(17C.F.R. Section 270.2a-7) and 6) of not less than the highest liquidity rating given
to United States Treasury obligations and conforms to the requirements set forth in
section 2256.016 (b) and (c) relating to the eligibility of investment pools to receive
and invest funds of an investing entity. The Harris Center shall be provided with a
prospectus and other information required by the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934 (15 USC Section 781 et esq.) or the Investment Company Act of 1940 (15 USC
Section 80a-l et esq.).

e. Eligible Local Government Investment Pools-Public funds investment pools which
invest in instruments and follow practices allowed by the current law and which 1)
meet the requirements of Chapter 2256.016 of the Public Funds Investment Act, 2)
an Investment Pool must be continuously rated no lower than the highest liquidity
rating given to United States Treasury obligations by at least one nationally
recognized rating service, 3) seek to maintain a $1.00 net asset value, the governing
body of the public funds investment pool shall take action as the body determines
necessary to eliminate or reduce to the extent reasonably practicable any dilution or
unfair result to existing participants, including a sale of portfolio holdings to attempt
to maintain a $1.00 net asset value, and the pool marks its portfolio to market daily;
4) are authorized by resolution or ordinance by the Board 5) the pool shall have
furnished the Investment Officer an offering circular containing the information
required by Section 2256.016(b) of the Texas Government Code 6) the pool shall
furnish the Investment Officer investment transaction confirmations with respect to
all investments made with it, 7) the pools shall furnish to the Investment Officer
monthly reports containing the information required under Section 2256.016(c) of
the Texas Government Code, 8) the pool's investment philosophy and strategy are
consistent with this Policy, and 9) the pool's policy regarding holding deposits in
cash.

f. Direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities.

g. Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political subdivisions of
any state rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating
firm and having received a rating of not less than A or its equivalent.

h. Prime Domestic Bankers Acceptances with stated maturities of 270 days or less
from date of issuance that will be liquidated in full at maturity, that are investment-
grade and insured by FDIC. They will be eligible for collateral for borrowing purposes
from a Federal Reserve Bank and is accepted by a bank organized under Texas law,
the laws of another state or federal law.

i. Deposits in savings banks, cooperative banks, federal savings and loan institutions,
credit unions and interest-bearing banking deposits or other obligations. They will be
guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its successor
or the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund or its successor. They will be
secured by obligations that are described by PFIA 2256.0089 (a), including mortgage
backed securities issued directly by a federal agency or instrumentality that have a
market value of not less than the principal amount of the deposit but excluding
those mortgage backed sureties of the nature described by PFIA 2256.009 (b).

j. Commercial paper with a stated maturity of 365 days or less from the date of its
issuance and are rated A-l or P-1 or an equivalent rating by at least two nationally

FM.A.17 Investment Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233621/. Page 8 of 15
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 227 of 319

recognized credit rating agencies; or one nationally recognized credit rating agency
and is fully secured by an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a bank organized and
existing under the laws of the United States or any state.

All prudent measures will be taken to liquidate an investment that is downgraded to less than
the required minimum rating. (PFIA 2256.021)

2. Not Authorized (PFIA 2256.009(b) (1-4)]
Investments including interest-only or principal-only strips of obligations with underlying
mortgage-backed security collateral, collateralized mortgage obligations with an inverse
floating interest rate or a maturity date of over 10 years are strictly prohibited. The following
transactions or securities are either prohibited or restricted as indicated:

a. Futures Contracts. A futures contract is an agreement calling for a fixed-price;
delivery of standardized securities, usually Treasury and Agency issues and is a
prohibited investment;

b. Zero-Coupon Bonds. They have an extreme degree of price volatility and are a
prohibited investment;

c. Inverse Floaters. The value of this security moves in the opposite direction of
interest rates. They have an extreme degree of price volatility and are a prohibited
investment;

d. Residuals. This security is the excess cash flow from a mortgage-backed security
after all other payments have been satisfied. They are a prohibited investment;

e. Interest-only (1 Os) and Principal-only (POs) are stripped mortgage-backed
securities. They have an extreme degree of price volatility and are a prohibited
investment.

f. Forward Contract - Standby Commitment. This calls for the sale of a security ata
future date whereby the buyer is required to accept delivery at the option of the
seller. The use of this contract is limited to hedging the risk associated with
packaging mortgage loans and is a prohibited investment.

g. Forward Contract - Cash Forward. This is an agreement to purchase or sell a security
at a future date with mandatory delivery and acceptance. This is a prohibited
investment.

VIil. INVESTMENT PARAMETERS
A. Maximum Maturities [PFIA 2256.005(b) (4) (B)]

The longer the maturity of investments, the greater their price volatility. Therefore, it is The Harris
Center's policy to concentrate its investment portfolio in shorter-term securities in order to limit principal
risk caused by changes in interest rates.

The Harris Center attempts to match its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. The
Harris Center will not directly invest in securities maturing more than five (5) years from the date of
purchase; however, the above described obligations, certificates, or agreements may be collateralized

FM.A.17 Investment Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233621/. Page 9 of 15
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 228 of 319

using longer dated investments. In addition, the average maturity of the overall portfolio may not exceed
three (3) years. This dollar-weighted average maturity will be calculated using the stated final maturity
dates of each security. [PFIA 2256.005(b) (4) (C)j.

Because no secondary market exists for repurchase agreements, the maximum maturity shall be 120
days except in the case of a flexible repurchase agreement for bond proceeds. The maximum maturity
for such an investment shall be determined in accordance with project cash flow projections and the
requirements of the governing bond ordinance.

B. Diversification [PFIA 2256.005(b) (3)]

The Harris Center recognizes that investment risks can result from issuer defaults, market price changes
or various technical complications leading to temporary illiquidity. Risk is controlled through portfolio
diversification that shall be achieved by the following general guidelines:

+ Limiting investments to avoid over-concentration in investments from a specific issuer or
business sector (excluding U.S. Treasury & Agency securities, and certificates of deposit that
are fully insured and collateralized in accordance with state and federal law),

+ Limiting investment in investments that have higher credit risks
+ Investing in investments with varying maturities, and

« Continuously investing a portion of the portfolio in readily available funds such as local
government investment pools (LGIPs), money market funds or overnight repurchase
agreements to ensure that appropriate liquidity is maintained in order to meet ongoing
obligations.

VIll. SELECTION OF BROKER DEALERS
A. Authorized Brokers/Dealers (PFIA 2256.025)

The Harris Center shall, at least annually Request for Information to prospective brokers/dealers, review,
evaluate and rate their responses according to pre-established criteria, and recommend to the Board a
list of qualified brokers/dealers. Nonetheless, the Investment Officers shall review and recommend
annually to the Board a list of qualified brokers/dealers that are authorized to engage in investment
transactions with The Harris Center. Those firms that request to become qualified bidders for securities
transactions will be required to provide a completed broker/dealer questionnaire that provides
information regarding creditworthiness, experience and reputation. Authorized firms may include primary
dealers or regional dealers that qualify under Securities & Exchange Commission Rule 15C3-1 (Uniform
Net Capital Rule), and qualified depositories. All investment providers, including financial institutions,
banks, money market mutual funds, and local government investment pools must review The Harris
Center's investment policy to ensure reasonable procedures and controls have been implemented to
preclude investment transactions that are not authorized by the entity's policy. In addition to this
requirement, all government pools must also sign a certification acknowledging that the organization
has received and reviewed The Harris Center's investment policy [PFIA 2256.005(k-1)]. All investment
providers stated above may perform an analysis of the makeup of The Harris Center's entire portfolio or

FM.A.17 Investment Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233621/. Page 10 of 15
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 229 of 319

an interpretation of subjective investment standards.

B. Competitive Bids

It is the policy of The Harris Center to require competitive bidding for all individual security purchases
and sales except for: a) transactions with money market mutual funds and local government investment
pools and b) treasury and agency securities purchased at issue through an approved broker/dealer or
financial institution. At least 3 competitive offers or bids for all individual security purchases and sales
shall be solicited. At least annually, the Investment Officers shall review, revise, and recommend to the
Board a list of qualified brokers/dealers that are authorized to engage in investment transactions with
The Harris Center. [PFIA 2256.025]

C. Delivery vs. Payment [PFIA 2256.005(b) (4) (E)]

Securities shall be purchased using the delivery vs. payment method with the exception of investment
pools and mutual funds. Funds will be released after notification that the purchased security has been
received. The following policies will be followed:

1. U.S. Treasury & Agency securities will be held in safekeeping by the securities custodian.

2. When physical delivery of securities is made, payment for investments will be made against
delivery, and for sales of investments, delivery will be made against payment.

3. When an investment is purchased, evidence of the wire transfer of the funds shall be retained
until the instrument matures and the funds are returned.

IX. SAFEKEEPING OF SECURITIES AND
COLLATERAL

A. Safekeeping and Custodian Agreements

The Harris Center shall contract with a bank or banks for the safekeeping of securities purchased by the
agency or held as collateral to secure demand or time deposits. Securities owned by the Agency shall be
held in the name of The Harris Center as evidenced by safekeeping receipts of the institution holding the
securities.

Collateral for deposits will be held by a third-party custodian designated by The Harris Center and
pledged to them as evidenced by safekeeping receipts of the institution with which the collateral is
deposited. Original safekeeping receipts shall be obtained. Collateral may be held by the depository
bank's trust department, a Federal Reserve Bank or branch of a Federal Reserve Bank, a Federal Home
Loan Bank, or a third-party bank approved by The Harris Center.

B. Collateral Policy (PFCA 2257.023)

Consistent with the requirements of the Public Funds Collateral Act, it is the policy of The Harris Center
to require full collateralization of all entity funds on deposit with a depository bank, other than
investments. In order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for all funds, the

FM.A.17 Investment Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233621/. Page 11 of 15
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 230 of 319

collateralization level will be 102% of market value of principal and accrued interest on the deposits or
investments less an amount insured by the FDIC. At its discretion, The Harris Center may require a higher
level of collateralization for certain investment securities. Securities pledged as collateral shall be held
by an independent third party with whom The Harris Center has a current custodial agreement. The Chief
Financial Officer is responsible for entering into collateralization agreements with third party custodians
in compliance with this Policy. The agreements are to specify the acceptable investment securities for
collateral, including provisions relating to possession of the collateral, the substitution or release of
investment securities, ownership of securities, and the method of valuation of securities. A clearly
marked evidence of ownership (safekeeping receipt) must be supplied to The Harris Center and retained.
Collateral shall be reviewed at least monthly to assure that the market value of the pledged securities is
adequate.

C. Collateral Defined

The Harris Center shall accept only the following types of collateral:

+ Obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities
+ Direct obligations of the state of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities

+ Collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a federal agency or instrumentality of
the United States, the underlying security for which is guaranteed by an agency or
instrumentality of the United States

+ Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political subdivisions of any state
rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized rating firm not less than A or its
equivalent with a remaining maturity often (10) years or less

« A surety bond issued by an insurance company rated as to investment quality by a nationally
recognized rating firm not less than A

A letter of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank

D. Subject to Audit

All collateral shall be subject to inspection and audit by the Chief Financial Officer, Internal Audit
Department, or The Harris Center's independent auditors.

X. PERFORMANCE

A. Performance Standards

The Harris Center's investment portfolio will be managed in accordance with the parameters specified
within this policy. The portfolio shall be designed with the objective of obtaining a rate of return through
budgetary and economic cycles, commensurate with the investment risk constraints and the cash flow
requirements of the entity.

FM.A.17 Investment Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233621/. Page 12 of 15
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 231 of 319

B. Performance Benchmark

It is the policy of The Harris Center to purchase investments with maturity dates coinciding with cash
flow needs. Through this strategy, the entity shall seek to optimize interest earnings utilizing allowable
investments available on the market at that time. Market value will be calculated on a quarterly basis on
all securities owned and compared to current book value. The Harris Center's portfolio shall be designed
with the objective of regularly meeting or exceeding the average rate of return on U.S. Treasury Bills at a
maturity level comparable to the entity's weighted average maturity in days.

Xl. REPORTING (PFIA 2256.023)
A. Methods

The Investment Officer shall prepare an investment report on a quarterly basis that summarizes
investment strategies employed in the most recent quarter and describes the portfolio in terms of
investment securities, maturities, and shall explain the total investment return for the quarter.

The quarterly investment report shall include a summary statement of investment activity. This summary
will be prepared in a manner that will allow The Harris Center to ascertain whether investment activities
during the reporting period have conformed to the Investment Policy. The report will be provided to the
Board. The report will include the following:

+ Alisting of individual securities held at the end of the reporting period.

Unrealized gains or losses resulting from appreciation or depreciation by listing the ending
book and market value of securities for the period.

+ Average weighted yield to maturity of portfolio as compared to applicable benchmark.
Listing of investments by maturity date.

+ Fully accrued interest for the reporting period

+ The percentage of the total portfolio that each type of investment represents.

- Statement of compliance of The Harris Center's (formerly MHMRA of Harris County's)
investment portfolio with state law and the investment strategy and policy approved by the
Board.

+ Schedule of the Investment Portfolio's Comparative Weighted Average Maturity and Weighted
Average Yield.

A. Anindependent auditor will perform a formal annual review of the quarterly reports with the
results reported to the governing body [PFIA 2256.023(d)].

B. Monitoring Market Value [PFIA 2256.005(b) (4) (D)]

Market value of all securities in the portfolio will be determined on a quarterly basis. These values will be
obtained from a reputable and independent source and disclosed to the governing body quarterly in a
written report.

FM.A.17 Investment Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233621/. Page 13 of 15
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 232 of 319

XII. INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION [PFIA
2256.005(e)]

The Harris County's investment policy shall be adopted by resolution of the Board. It is the entity's intent
to comply with state laws and regulations. The Harris Center's investment policy shall be subject to
revisions consistent with changing laws, regulations, and needs of the entity. The Board shall adopt a
resolution stating that it has reviewed the policy and investment strategies annually, approving any
changes or modifications.

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Investment Strategy for the General Fund

l. OBJECTIVES

The Harris Center shall purchase securities that mature when funds are required to meet expected
obligations. This strategy will determine the suitability of the investment to the financial requirements of
the Agency. The focus of this type of investment strategy is preservation and safety of principal, liquidity
and optimization of yield. This strategy is very conservative.

Il. PRESERVATION AND SAFETY OF PRINCIPAL

The preservation and safety of principal shall be ensured through the allocation and diversification of the
investment portfolio consistent with The Harris Center's Investment Policy, state and federal regulations
and prudent investment practices. Only those securities allowed by the Agency's Investment Policy and
the Public Funds Investment Act shall be purchased.

Diversification shall be achieved by utilizing Broker/Dealers from a Board approved list and investing in
different investment instruments.

lll. LIQUIDITY

A monthly cash projection shall be developed to determine the cash requirements of The Harris Center
for a period of six (6) months or more. As a conservative measure, the equivalent of one and half (11/2)
month's requirements shall be placed in highly liquid instruments.

The maturity of the remaining portfolio shall be timed to coincide with the projected cash requirements
of The Harris Center. As an added measure, particular emphasis shall be placed on the marketability of
the investment should the need arise to liquidate prior to maturity. The primary determinants of a
security's liquidity are its marketability and maturity. The Harris Center therefore shall only invest in short
term (1 year or less) and medium term (1- 5 years) investment alternatives which are traded in an active
secondary market.

IV. YIELD

The Harris Center shall optimize yield to the extent the preservation and safety of principal can be

FM.A.17 Investment Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233621/. Page 14 of 15
Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



achieved and liquidity maintained.

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Department Review Stanley Adams

Initial Assignment Stanley Adams

FM.A.17 Investment Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233621/.

Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
07/2024
07/2024

Page 233 of 319

Page 15 of 15



EXHIBIT F-48




Page 234 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStatID 14967212

Origination  09/2002 Owner  Karen Rose
Last N/A Area  Medical Services
¢ j Approved ,
PP Document Agency Policy
( ) Effective  Upon Type
Mental Health and IDD Approval
Transforming Lives Last Revised = 05/2024

Next Review 1 year after
approval

MED.IRB.A.1 IRB Research Procedures and the Committee
for the Protection of Human Subjects

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of the policy is to establish a uniform process for the review, selection, approval, and
handling of inquiries or requests for any research, studies, or clinical trials involving The Harris Center for
Mental Health and IDD (hereinafter "The Harris Center") patients.

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center to permit certain research programs and research training to be
conducted, whereby Agency consumers or staff serve as research subjects.

Any research conducted on human subjects must be done in compliance with the rules and regulations
as outlined by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) and as governed by other state
and federal guidelines.

Research involving the use of aversive procedures (aversive stimuli and/or effortful tasks, including
overcorrection, forced exercise, and negative practice), placebos, convulsive therapy, or phase | or phase
Il investigational and experimental drugs shall not be allowed.

Any research being done by individuals working under the auspices of an academic institution, health
care system, or research sponsor, must have the approval of their institutions' Institutional Review Board
(IRB) before it can be considered by The Harris Center's IRB. Researchers must submit a full research
protocol describing research procedures for The Harris Center’s IRB review.

The Harris Center IRB Committee (or approved designee — university partner, in accordance with state

MED.IRB.A.1 IRB Research Procedures and the Committee for the Protection of Human Subjects. Retrieved 08/2024. Official ~ Page 1 of 3
copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14967212/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and
IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7504300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 235 of 319

and federal guidelines) must review and approve any research studies prior to soliciting research
subjects (both consumers or staff). The Harris Center IRB Committee (or approved designee) must
provide a formal letter stating that research can be conducted at The Harris Center. Without formal
approval, no research subjects shall be solicited, verbally, through mail or e-mail, or through posting, nor
shall research be conducted involving consumers or staff.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

All research conducted at The Harris Center or in connection with The Harris Center programs and/ or
clinical services.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):
Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/ Individual Health Information

Consents and Authorizations

Compliance Plan

5. PROCEDURES:

Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/ Individual Health Information

Consents and Authorizations

MED.IRB.B.1 IRB Request for Protocol Approval for the Committee for the Protection of Human Subjects
MED.IRB.B.1.1 IRB Exemptions of the Committee for the Protection of Human Subjects

MED.IRB.B.1.2 IRB Expedited Review of the Committee for the Protection of Human Subjects
MED.IRB.B.4 IRB Roles and Responsibilities of the Committee for the Protection of Human Subjects

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

Protection of Human Subjects, 45 CFR Part 46, Subparts A, B, C & D

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 45 CFR Part 160 & Part 164

Rights and Protections of Persons Receiving Mental Health Services, Tex. Admin. Code, Title 25, Part 1,
Chapter 414.

MED.IRB.A.1 IRB Research Procedures and the Committee for the Protection of Human Subjects. Retrieved 08/2024. Official ~ Page 2 of 3
copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14967212/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and
IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11586900/latest/
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11493737/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12167871/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11321673/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11366629/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13984399/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14049773/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14043696/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13972430/latest

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date
Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2024
Final Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 07/2024
Department Review Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr 06/2024

(1101 1817)
Initial Assignment Karen Rose 05/2024

Page 236 of 319

MED.IRB.A.1 IRB Research Procedures and the Committee for the Protection of Human Subjects. Retrieved 08/2024. Official Page 3 of 3

copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14967212/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and
IDD



EXHIBIT F-49




Page 237 of 319

Status = Pending PolicyStat ID 14496190

Origination  11/2022 Owner  Toby Hicks
Last N/A Area  Human
( ) Approved Resources
'\ ) Effective  Upon Document Agency Policy
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type
Transforming Lives Last Revised  06/2024

Next Review 1 year after
approval

HR.A.31 Moonlighting

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) Moonlighting policy is to
(1) provide staff the ability to work and earn additional wages while contributing their knowledge, skills,
and abilities in other areas within the agency outside of their original position or department of hire. (2)
Ensure the additional work performed is billed to the correct area within the agency for labor cost
purposes.

2. POLICY:

The Harris Center supports staff members providing coverage in an area of the Agency outside of their
normal home work -area; however, in certain cases, the work may be in the same work area covering
additional shifts separate from the staff member’s typical work shift.

Local area management is responsible for (1) ensuring moonlighting staff are qualified for the position
based on requirements as documented on the job description on file; including any training, certifications
or licensures, etc., (2) documenting and confirming the Moonlighting work required for the business is
being performed, (3) ensuring the appropriate department is billed for the Moonlighting labor costs, and
(4) submitting required documentation to Payroll. (5) Moonlighting would generate overtime for all non-
exempt employees as all hours worked under the Moonlighting code are considered as hours worked.
Exempt employees would be paid as straight time as the Overtime provisions would not apply. (6) All full-
time employees must first meet their full-time shift commitment before being eligible for moonlighting
pay. (7) Moonlighting pay will be affected if the employee calls in prior to their scheduled shift. In this
event, moonlight pay will start after the employee meets their required full-time or part-time shift(s). (8)

HR.A.31 Moonlighting. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14496190/. Copyright Page 1 of 2
© 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7537198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 238 of 319

Any scheduled PTO time does not exclude an employee from obtaining moonlighting pay. (9) Relief
employees must first meet their Relief commitment before being eligible for moonlighting pay.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

All Harris Center employees and staff who meet the criteria are eligible to work in the role designated as
a Moonlighting role. Example: Employees interested in moonlighting as a direct care provider, must meet
all documented criteria to work in a direct care provider role.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):

Employee Handbook

-

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

Code of Ethics

/. PROCEDURES:

Moonlighting

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date
Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2024
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 07/2024
Department Review Joseph Gorczyca 07/2024
Initial Assignment Toby Hicks 07/2024

HR.A.31 Moonlighting. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14496190/. Copyright Page 2 of 2
© 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12415867/latest/
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12415867/latest/

EXHIBIT F-350



Page 239 of 319

Status ' Pending PolicyStat ID 14490077

Origination 07/2008 Owner  Tanya White: Mgr
Last N/A Area  Medical Services
( ! Approved ,
PP Document Agency Policy
{ ) Effective  Upon Type
Mental Health and IDD Approval
Transforming Lives Last Revised  05/2024

Next Review 1 year after
approval

MED.PHA.A.4 - Pharmacy and Unit Medication/Drug
Inventory

1. PURPOSE:

To establish a uniform policy to control and account for all medications received, dispensed, and
destroyed by the pharmacy.

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center to account for stock supplies of prescription drugs and at a
minimum, conduct inventory twice per year. The Harris Center pharmacies shall maintain records of all
pharmacy transactions in accordance with legal requirements. In order to control and account for all
medication, these records shall include documentation of the receipt and delivery of prescription drugs
as well as those dispensed.

The Harris Center units may maintain stock supplies of medications for consumer use as deemed
appropriate by The Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee. Any medication stocked by a unit will be the
responsibility of the Unit's Lead Psychiatrist.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

All Harris Center MentalHealthmental health and IDD service sites, clinics, treatment programs,
residential care programs; and pharmacies.

MED.PHA.A .4 - Pharmacy and Unit Medication/Drug Inventory. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 1 of 3
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14490077/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=5637438
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=5637438
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 240 of 319

4. PROCEDURES

A. Clinic Pharmacies Inventory (AMH)

B. Clinic Nurses' Station Inventory (AMH) C. IDD Residential Units' Inventor

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS(forreference
only):

MED.PHA.A.2 Medication Storage, Preparation, and Administration Areas

7. REFERENCES—[RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

+ Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. §§827, 842, 958(d)
+ Tex. Controlled Substances Act, Tex. Health & Safety Code §481.067

+ Pharmacies-All Classes of Pharmacies-Inventory Requirements, 22 Tex. Admin. Code
§291.4417

+ The Harris Center's Policy and Procedure Handbook CARF Section 2E

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit Pending

Approval

CEO/Board Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2024

Legal 2nd Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 07/2024

Pharmacy &Therapeutic Angela Babin: Dir 06/2024

Committee

Pharmacy Department Review Tanya White: Mgr 06/2024

Legal 1st Review Obiajulu Enaohwo 06/2024
MED.PHA A 4 - Pharmacy and Unit Medication/Drug Inventory. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 2 of 3

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14490077/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11650547/latest

Page 241 of 319

CMO Review Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr 05/2024
(1101 1817)
Initial Tanya White: Mgr 04/2024
MED.PHA.A .4 - Pharmacy and Unit Medication/Drug Inventory. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 3 of 3

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14490077/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



EXHIBIT F-51



Page 242 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStat ID 16020735

Origination  04/2018 Owner  Danyalle Evans
Last N/A Area  Medical Services
¢ ) Approved A i
Document Agency Policy
( ) Effective  Upon Type
Mental Health and IDD Approval
Transforming Lives Last Revised  06/2024

Next Review 1 year after
approval

COM.A.6 Professional Review Committee

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to operationalize a Professional Review Committee {PRC), as a permanent
committee and as an integral component of ongoing evaluation and improvement of the quality of
patient care at The Harris Center and of the competence of licensed providers. The PRC will act as the
authorizing committee for medical peer review, nursing peer review, closed records review, pharmacy
peer review, licensed provider peer review, Professional Practice Evaluation Committee, Pharmaceutical
and Therapeutics, sentinel events, System Quality, Safety and Experience Committee, and critical
incident review. The committee will also ensure that licensing boards of professional health care staff
are properly notified of any reportable conduct or findings when indicated.

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center to form the PRC to have oversight of the peer review processes of all
clinical services. The PRC shall approve all peer review committees. The Closed Records Committee,
Medical Peer Review, Licensed Provider Peer Review, Professional Practice Evaluation Committee,
System Quiality, Safety and Experience Committee, Nursing Peer Review, Pharmaceutical & Therapeutics
Committee, and Pharmacy Peer Review Committee are subcommittees of the Professional Review
Committee.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy is applicable to all Harris Center staff engaged in the delivery of healthcare services to
patients. This policy applies to all our consumers, employees, contractors, volunteers, and partners who
access our services. This policy must be followed in conjunction with professional licensing standards

COM.A.6 Professional Review Committee. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/ Page 1 of 3
16020735/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7649937
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7649937
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 243 of 319

and other Harris Center policies and operational guidelines governing appropriate workplace conduct
and behavior.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference
only):

+ Closed Records Review Policy

* Nursing Peer Review Policy

+ Medical Peer Review Policy

+ System Quality, Safety and Experience Committee
+ Pharmaceutical & Therapeutics Committee Policy

« Pharmacy Peer Review Committee Policy

5. PROCEDURES:

Bylaws Of The Professional Review Committee Of The Harris Center For Mental Health and IDD with
signature

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

+ Texas Medical Practices Act, Texas Occupations Code, §§151.001 et. seq. & §§160.001 et.
seq.

+ Texas Health & Safety Code §161.032
« Texas Nursing Peer Review, Texas Occupations Code, Chapter 303
+ Health Care Quality Improvement Act of 1986, 42 U.S.C. 11101 et. seq.

+ Texas Board of Nursing, Licensure, Peer Assistance & Practice, 22 TAC Chapter 2 17 Deaths of
Persons Served by TXMHMR Facilities or Community Mental Health & Mental Retardation
Centers, 25 TAC Chapter 405, Subchapter K

+ Texas Pharmacy Peer Review, Texas Occupations Code, Chapter 564

Attachments
8.png

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date

COM.A.6 Professional Review Committee. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/ Page 2 of 3
16020735/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13574559/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13574559/latest
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/public/a06c018e27f262505c494b7272132eb2ca1f5d096f2027092d3dc109/Med%20Review%20Structure.PNG

Management of Board
Approval

CEO Approval
Final Legal Review

Department Review

Initial Assignment

COM.A.6 Professional Review Committee. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

Christopher Webb: Audit

Wayne Young: Exec
Kendra Thomas: Counsel

Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr
(1101 1817)

Danyalle Evans

16020735/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
06/2024

06/2024

Page 244 of 319

Page 3 of 3



EXHIBIT F-52




Status ' Pending PolicyStat ID 13029807

Origination

Last

¢ ) Approved

{ Effective
v

Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives

Next Review

Last Revised

07/2012
N/A

Upon
Approval

08/2024

1 year after
approval

Owner
Area

Document
Type

LD.A.5 - Signature for Authorization

1. PURPOSE:

Page 245 of 319

Stanley Adams

Leadership
Agency Policy

The purpose of this policy is to identify the Harris Center personnel authorized to sign and approve

various requests in the normal course of business.

2. POLICY:

The Harris Center personnel having authorization to sign, or their authorized designee, both of which are
on file with the Chief Financial Officer, must approve all requests for services, contracts, billings,

supplies, leave, and other items.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all Harris Center personnel.

LD.A.5 - Signature for Authorization. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

13029807/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81303
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11198966/latest/

Page 246 of 319

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS-(forreference

only):
6. PROCEDURE:

LD.B.5 Signature for Authorization

7. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Initial Assignment Stanley Adams

LD.A.5 - Signature for Authorization. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

13029807/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
06/2024

Page 2 of 2


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15517193/latest

EXHIBIT F-53



Status ' Pending PolicyStat ID 13649965

Origination

¢ )

HARRIS
W/ \J CENTER
Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives

Next Review

FM.A.6 - Travel Policy

1. PURPOSE:

Approved

Effective

Last Revised

11/2015
N/A

Upon
Approval

08/2024

1 year after
approval

Owner

Area

Document
Type

Page 247 of 319

Stanley Adams

Fiscal
Management

Agency Policy

The purpose of this policy is to reimburse employees for reasonable expenses incurred during the period
they are employed with Fhethe Harris Center in connection with travel and other business on behalf of

Thethe Harris Center, subject to the guidelines outlined in this policy.

2. POLICY:

It is the policy of The Harris Center to reimburse staff for reasonable and necessary expenses incurred

during approved work-related travel.

Employees seeking reimbursement should incur the lowest reasonable travel expenses and exercise
care to avoid impropriety or the appearance of impropriety. Reimbursement is allowed only when
reimbursement has not been, and will not be, received from other sources. If a circumstance arises that
is not specifically covered in this travel policy, then the most conservative course of action should be

taken.

All business-related travel paid with The Harris Center funds must comply with company expenditure
procedures. As a tax-exempt center, The Harris Center does not pay sales taxes; and employees will not

be reimbursed.

Autherizati IR ibili

Authorization and responsibility

Staff travel must be authorized. Travelers should verify that planned travel is eligible for reimbursement

FM.A.6 - Travel Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13649965/. Copyright Page 1 of 4

© 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470

Page 248 of 319

before making travel arrangements. The traveler must submit a travel reimbursement form and
supporting documentation to obtain reimbursement of expenses.

An individual may not approve his or her own travel or reimbursement. The travel reimbursement form
must be signed by the Chief Executive Officer mustsign-thefor travel reimbursement formfortravelover
$1,000.

Designated approval authorities are required to review expenditures and withhold reimbursement if there
is reason to believe that the expenditures are inappropriate or extravagant.

Personalfunds

Personal funds

Travelers should review reimbursement guidelines before spending personal funds for business travel to
determine if such expenses are reimbursable. The Harris Center reserves the right to deny
reimbursement of travel-related expenses for failure to comply with policies.

Travelers who use personal funds to facilitate travel arrangements will not be reimbursed until after the
trip occurs and proper documentation is submitted.

Mileage
Mileage

Employees are reimbursed at the current standard mileage reimbursement rate determined by the IRS.

Mileage will be calculated in accordance with FM18B Travel Reimbursement Procedure.

Per Diem

Employee meals while traveling will be reimbursed at the per diem rates as published by the Chief
Financial Officer.

Eeepltiens
Exceptions

Occasionally it may be necessary for travelers to request exceptions to this travel policy. Requests for
exceptions to the policy must be made in writing and approved by the Chief Executive Officer or by the
Chief Financial Officer. Exceptions related to the Chief Executive Officer's or the Chief Financial Officer's
expenses must be submitted to the opposite person or to a member of the Board of Trustees for
approval. In most instances, the expected turnaround time for review and approval is five business days.

Neop-relmbursable Travel Zysenses

FM.A.6 - Travel Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13649965/. Copyright Page 2 of 4
© 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



Page 249 of 319

Non-reimbursable Travel Expenses

The Harris Center will not reimburse the following items that may be associated with business travel:

+ Airline club memberships
+ Airline upgrades
Baggage fees
+ Business class for domestic flights or first class for all flights
Childcare, babysitting, housesitting, or pet-sitting/kennel charges
Commuting between home and the primary work location
Costs incurred by traveler's failure to cancel travel or hotel reservations in a timely fashion
Evening or formal wear expenses
Haircuts and personal grooming
Laundry and dry cleaning

Passports, vaccinations; and visas when not required as a specific and necessary condition of
the travel assignment

+ Personal entertainment expenses, including in-flight movies, headsets, health club facilities,
hotel pay-per-view movies, in-theater movies, social activities; and related incidental costs

+ Travel accident insurance premiums or purchase of additional travel insurance

« Other expenses not directly related to the business travel

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all Harris Center employees, contractors, interns; and volunteers.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS(forreference
only):

6. PROCEDURE:

FM.B.6 Travel Reimbursement Procedure

7. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS:

FM.A.6 - Travel Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13649965/. Copyright Page 3 of 4
© 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11522952/latest

Approval Signatures
Step Description

Management of Board
Approval

CEO Approval
Legal Review
Department Review

Initial Assignment

FM.A.6 - Travel Policy. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13649965/. Copyright

Approver

Christopher Webb: Audit

Wayne Young: Exec
Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Stanley Adams

Stanley Adams

© 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
06/2024
06/2024

Page 250 of 319

Page 4 of 4



EXHIBIT F-54




Page 251 of 319

Status | Pending PolicyStatID 16214782

Origination 06/2022 Owner  Kendra Thomas:
Last N/A Counsel
¢ ) Approved Area  Leadership
( ) Effective  Upon Document Agency
Mental Health and IDD Approval Type Procedure
Transforming Lives Last Revised 08/2024

Next Review 1 year after
approval

LD.A.16 Whistleblower

1. PURPOSE:

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (“The Harris Center") requires its directors, officers,
employees, and volunteers to observe high standards of business and personal ethics in the conduct of
their duties and responsibilities. As employees and representatives of The Harris Center, we must
practice honesty and integrity in fulfilling our responsibilities and comply with all applicable laws and
regulations.

2. POLICY:

The purpose of this whistleblower policy (the "Policy") is to:

(a) Encourage and enable employees and representatives to raise concerns regarding suspected illegal
or unethical conduct or practices or violations of The Harris Center’s policies on a confidential and, if
desired, anonymous basis.

(b) Protect employees and representatives from retaliation for raising such concerns.

(c) Establish policies and procedures for The Harris Center to receive and investigate reported concerns
and address and correct inappropriate conduct and actions.

Each employee and representative has the responsibility to report in good faith any concerns about
actual or suspected violations of The Harris Center’s policies or any federal, state, or municipal law or
regulations governing The Harris Center’s operations (each, a “Concern”) to The Harris Center’s
Enterprise Risk Management Department or to an appropriate law enforcement authority. Appropriate
subjects to report under this Policy include, but are not limited to, financial improprieties, accounting or

LD.A.16 Whistleblower. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16214782/. Copyright ~ Page 1 of 3
© 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4197055
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4197055
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81303
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=103694
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=103694

Page 252 of 319

audit matters, ethical violations, or other similar illegal or improper practices, such as:
(a) False Claims

(b) Fraud

(c) Theft

(d) Embezzlement

(e) Bribery or kickbacks

(f) Misuse of The Harris Center’s assets

(9) Undisclosed conflicts of interest

(h) Danger to public health or safety

Anyone reporting a Concern must act in good faith and have reasonable grounds for believing the
information disclosed indicates a violation of law and/or ethical standards. Any unfounded allegation
that proves to have been made maliciously, recklessly, or knowingly to be false will be viewed as a
serious offense and result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment or
volunteer status.

Employees shall use The Harris Center’s existing complaint procedures and mechanisms to report other
issues, unless those channels are themselves implicated in wrongdoing. This Policy is not intended to
provide a means of appealing the outcomes resulting from those other mechanisms.

No employee who in good faith reports a Concern or participates in a review or investigation of a
Concern shall be subject to harassment, retaliation, or, in the case of an employee, adverse employment
consequences because of such report or participation. This protection extends to employees who report
in good faith, even if the allegations are, after an investigation, not substantiated.

Any employee who retaliates against someone who in good faith has reported or participated in a review
or investigation of a Concern will be subject to discipline, up to and including, termination of employment
or volunteer status.

i. The Harris Center

1. Call: 1-800-737-6789

2. Report Online: www.safetyalerthotline.com
ii. US Office of Inspector General

1. Call: 1-800-323-8603 toll free

2. TTY: 1-844-889-4357 toll free

3. U.S. Mail:

DHS Office of Inspector General/MAIL STOP 0305
Attn: Office of Investigations - Hotline

LD.A.16 Whistleblower. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16214782/. Copyright ~ Page 2 of 3
© 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



245 Murray Lane SW
Washington, DC 20528-0305

5. https://hotline.oig.dhs.gov/#step-1
iii. Texas State Auditor's Office (SAO)

1. (800) TX-AUDIT (892-8348)
2. https://sao.fraud.texas.gov/

iv. Texas Attorney General's Office

Page 253 of 319

1. https://www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/consumer-protection/health-care/health-care-fraud-and-abuse

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

All employees of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

4. PROCEDURE:

LD35.B.16 Whistleblower Procedure

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference

only):

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

Texas Whistleblower Act, Texas Government Code §§554.001 et seq.

Texas Medicaid Fraud Act, Texas Human Resources Code §§36.001 et. seq.

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Initial Assignment Kendra Thomas: Counsel

LD.A.16 Whistleblower. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16214782/. Copyright

© 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
07/2024

Page 3 of 3


https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fhotline.oig.dhs.gov%2F%23step-1&data=05%7C01%7CChristopher.Webb%40TheHarrisCenter.org%7Ce1d91fd11a974e0a0f4b08da44c98816%7C417ed06335ba4a1c8bc557273fb7ecf2%7C0%7C0%7C637897929600638922%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=TH04PelHJ3EhrSugqxRM0JaZ7jAPhEUnAqVQqx8%2F5gw%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsao.fraud.texas.gov%2F&data=05%7C01%7CChristopher.Webb%40TheHarrisCenter.org%7Ce1d91fd11a974e0a0f4b08da44c98816%7C417ed06335ba4a1c8bc557273fb7ecf2%7C0%7C0%7C637897929600638922%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=W1pAA6Ds2Qr7OF%2FXRHx4BoHJnFs0z4%2Fm1f7m%2BagC%2B4U%3D&reserved=0
https://www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/consumer-protection/health-care/health-care-fraud-and-abuse
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11431806/latest

- EXHIBIT F-55



Status | Pending PolicyStat ID 13421424

Origination

¢ )

\ J
Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives

Next Review

FM.A.10 Writing Off Self Pay Balances

1. PURPOSE:

Approved

Effective

Last Revised

06/2022
N/A

Upon
Approval

06/2024

1 year after
approval

Owner

Area

Document
Type

Page 254 of 319

Rachel Beasley

Fiscal
Management

Agency Policy

To reduce the number of self-pay statements mailed monthly when there has been no response from the
guarantor and to accurately reflect the collectability of self-pay financial obligation.

2. POLICY:

The Harris Center commits to sending summarized monthly statements including, but not limited to,

service- specific information such-as dates of service, charges, payments, adjustments, and amounts
owed. The structured procedure must be followed to ensure that all persons served with outstanding
financial obligations are given fair and objective opportunities to satisfy their balance.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:

This policy applies to all persons served at The Harris Center including, both open and closed.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (forreference

only):
5. PROCEDURES:

A. Writing Off Self Pay Balances Procedure
1. MONTHLY RECONCILIATION
2. GENERATED STATEMENTS

FM.A.10 Writing Off Self Pay Balances. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

13421424/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=8287252
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=8287252
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11543655/latest/

3. RESOLVING BALANCES

Page 255 of 319

6. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference

only)::

7. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

STANDARDS:

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver

Management of Board Christopher Webb: Audit
Approval

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec
Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel
Department Review Stanley Adams

Initial Assignment Rachel Beasley

FM.A.10 Writing Off Self Pay Balances. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

13421424/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Date

Pending

08/2024
07/2024
06/2024
06/2024

Page 2 of 2



EXHIBIT F-56



Status ' Pending PolicyStat ID 16407392

Origination  N/A Owner  Evelyn Locklin:
Last N/A Dir
( ) Approved Area  General
( ) Effective  Upon Administration
Mental Health and IDD Approval Document Agency Plan

Transforming Lives Last Revised  N/A Type

Next Review 1 year after
approval

Crisis Stabilization Unit - Workplace Violence Prevention
Plan

The Harris Center’'s Workplace Violence Protection Plan is to protect health care providers and
employees from violent behaviors and threats of violent behavior occurring at the Crisis Stabilization
Unit.

DEFINITIONS

Emergency - Unanticipated circumstances that can be life threatening or pose a risk of significant
injuries to employees or other persons.

Serious injury or illness - Any injury or iliness occurring in a place of employment or in connection with
any employment that requires inpatient hospitalization for other than medical observation or diagnostic
testing, or in which an employee suffers an amputation, the loss of an eye, or any serious degree of
permanent disfigurement, but does not include any injury or iliness or death caused by an accident on a
public street or highway, unless the accident occurred in a construction zone.

Threat of violence - Any verbal or written statement, including, but not limited to, texts, electronic
messages, social media messages, or other online posts, or any behavioral or physical conduct, that
conveys an intent, or that is reasonably perceived to convey an intent, to cause physical harm or to place
someone in fear of physical harm, and that serves no legitimate purpose.

Workplace violence - Any act of violence, threat of violence, harassment, intimidation, or threatening
disruptive behavior that occurs in a place of employment.

Workplace violence includes, but is not limited to, the following:

« An act or threat of physical force against a health care provider or employee that results in, or

Crisis Stabilization Unit - Workplace Violence Prevention Plan. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 1 of 3
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16407392/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196306
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196306
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81302
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81302
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=114203

is likely to result in, physical injury or psychological trauma.

« Anincident involving the use of a firearm or other dangerous weapon, regardless of whether a
health care provider or employee is injured by the weapon.

Annual Training and Education

The Harris Center will implement an annual training and education on workplace violence either in-
person, virtually or incorporate into our learning management system to all employees who provide
direct care to patients.

Reporting Incidents

All healthcare providers and employees will adhere to the Harris Center’s current policies and procedures
relating to incident reporting. Incident reports should be submitted within a 24-hour period to our
reporting system.

Response and Investigating Incidents

The Harris Center will provide immediate post incident services to any staff who was involved in an
incident including medical treatment and conduct an investigation. Staff will be allowed to make a report
to law enforcement regarding a workplace violence incident and will not be impeded or coerced from
making a report. Reports of impeding or coercion by healthcare provider or employee will not be
tolerated and such persons may be subject to disciplinary action or termination. The Harris Center will
not discipline, including suspension or termination of employment, discriminate against, or retaliate
against another employee who: 1) in good faith reports an incident or workplace violence; or 2) advises
a health care provider or employee of the provider’s or employee’s right to report an incident of
workplace violence.

Physical Security and Safety

The Harris Center will follow the policy and procedure for Harris Health System. The Harris Center will
review, identify, and address potential risks with the Workplace Violence Prevention Committee and
Harris Health.

Healthcare Provider and Employee Feedback — Employee Involvement

The Harris Center will establish a process for healthcare providers and employees to provide confidential
feedback on what should be considered and addressed when creating the plan. The Harris Center will
also create a focus group to meet quarterly with staff for additional feedback. All information provided
will remain confidential and all committee members will be trained in the importance of maintaining
confidentiality. Retaliation is prohibited and all staff will be informed that any actions may lead to
disciplinary action including termination. All committee members and participants must sign a
confidentiality statement at each meeting to ensure confidentiality of information provided and to
protect employees who report any retaliation.

Client Care Assignments

Patients who have threatened physical abuse or who have assaulted a healthcare provider or employee
will be reassigned to other staff or to a new setting for continued patient care upon completion of the

Crisis Stabilization Unit - Workplace Violence Prevention Plan. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 2 of 3
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16407392/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



treatment team’s review.
Annual Review of Workplace Violence Prevention Plan

The Workplace Violence Prevention Plan will be reviewed and evaluated annually and report the results
of the evaluation to the governing body of The Harris Center.

Access to Plan

The Workplace Violence Plan will be accessible to all staff, contractors, volunteers, and interns either
electronically or via access to Policy Stat.

References:

+ Incident Reporting https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15267529/latest
« Critical Incidents https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15283872/latest
+ Workplace Violence Prevention, Tex. Health & Safety Code Ch 331

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date
Initial Assignment Kendra Thomas: Counsel Pending
Initial Assignment Evelyn Locklin: Dir 08/2024
Crisis Stabilization Unit - Workplace Violence Prevention Plan. Retrieved 08/2024. Official copy at Page 3 of 3

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16407392/. Copyright © 2024 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15267529/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15283872/latest

EXHIBIT F-57



Docusign Envelope |1D: 01 D36F76-D558-43B3-B47A-1E70B89701BF Page 264 of 319

O e The Harris Center Foundation for Mental Health & IDD
AnRnlS 9401 SW Freeway, Houston, Texas 77074

W/ W CENTER

Foundation

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Patricia “Gail” Bray, PhD August 8, 2024
Chair

Judge Marc Carter, JD
Vice Chair Dear Chairman Gearing and Members of The Harris Center Board of Trustees,

Jenny Meyer, MBA

Secretary The Harris Center Foundation Board of Directors respectfully requests consideration

for naming the Board Room at 9401 Southwest Freeway for David M. Feldman.
Lucindra Campbell-Law,
PhD Anyone with long service to The Harris Center knew Dave. He filled many roles
during more than three decades of service to the Center and the Foundation. In his last meeting
as Chair of the Foundation, Dave shared that he was most proud of three things. 1) His service
Lily Chen Foster as a Captain in the Army. 2) His service as City Attorney with Mayor Annise Parker. 3) His
service on the Foundation Board of Directors. Service was sacred to Dave and his service
epitomizes dedication to our community and his personal passion and compassion for

Natali Hurtado individuals served by The Harris Center. As is true for many of us, this dedication was

Harris Center Board of personal.

Trustees, Liaison.

Robert M. Eury

Tony Solomon, MBA

Dave’s work with The Harris Center began in the late 1980s at a challenging time for
The Mental Health and Mental Retardation Authority of Harris County (MHMRA). Brought

DIRECTORS EMERITI in as outside counsel, Dave served an important role working with the Board and Staff at a
_ time of transition. His continued service included Board training and assisting with staffing
Robert Corrigan, Jr, JD needs, including the hiring of Executive Director, Dr. Steven B. Schnee in 1992. Dave’s

service as outside counsel continued. Dr. Schnee hired Ms. Jeanne Mayo to serve as in-house
General Counsel. Legal issues were taken to trial and not a single case was lost.

Alan Helfman

Jeanne Mayo, MS, JD

Steven B. Schnee, PhD Dave continued to represent the Agency through the 1990s assisting with vendor
disputes, employment matters, board training, and more. The Agency mission expanded and
Marshenell Sells, JD The Harris Center (MHMRA at the time) served as an ever-greater resource for those in need.
Baxid Eeldman, Jo; B).f' 2010, Dave’s expertise and experience in the Harris County legal community made him a
posthumously prime candidate to serve the City of Houston as City Attorney under Mayor Annise Parker. He

took on that assignment with the same vigor and dedication he provided to the Agency. His
son, Cris Feldman, stepped in as outside counsel to the Agency while Dave served in this role.
Cris called upon his father during that time for advice and assistance.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Susan Fordice In 2012, Cris opened the Feldman Firm. A few years later, following his service as
City Attorney, Dave was proud to join the practice of Feldman & Feldman as the second
Feldman on the letterhead. Dave was able to resume his work in support of the Agency,
working closely with Dr. Schnee, Ms. Mayo and new Board Chair Mayor Jon Keeney. This
opportunity for service included the retirement of Dr. Schnee and Ms. Mayo and the hiring of
Mr. Wayne Young.

www.theharriscenterfoundation.org




Docusign Envelope ID: 01D36F76-D558-4383-B47A-1E70B89701BF Page 265 of 319

QP [T The Harris Center Foundation for Mental Health & IDD
CLANULS 9401 SW Freeway, Houston, Texas 77074

4 s CLINTER

Foundation

Exploration for creating a foundation was viewed as a natural and needed progression in the early 2000s, and
Dave was integral to the creation of Friends of MHMRA, which became known as The Harris Center Foundation for
Mental Health and IDD. He served on the Board of Directors from inception in 2006. Dr. Schnee led the Foundation
from 2006 through 2021. Dave was the first Chair of the Foundation Board of Directors following Dr. Schnee’s
tenure. His charge was to transition from Board membership with long service to a community-led Board. Long-
serving Board members accepted term limits or Director Emeritus status and a new Board was recruited and seated in
2022. Mrs. Gwen Emmett followed Dave as Chair of the Board in 2023. With the implementation of term limits,
Dave’s retirement from the Board was anticipated at calendar year end 2023. The Board and staff of the Foundation
were shocked and saddened to learn of his unexpected passing on July 23, 2023. We lost a leader, a friend, and the
opportunity to appropriately recognize and thank him for his ever present, passionate and prolific service to the Harris
Center and the Foundation. Many of us attended his Celebration of Life at the Gallagher Club at Minute Made Park.
Dave’s obituary invited memorial gifts for The Harris Center Foundation.

The Feldman family supports the request and son Cris offered that Dave’s early years in Brooklyn formed
Dave’s passion for helping with the challenges of those with less. More than three decades of service as in-house
counsel and volunteer are a testament to his passion for the mission and his commitment to the people it serves.
The Harris Center Foundation Board of Directors respectfully invites consideration and approval of this request.

Sincerely,
DocuSigned by: Signed by:
Patricia. Cail, Bray udse Mare (arter
N 353096§FCQ10403 i CBO03604AAAEAF1...
Patricia “Gail” Bray, PhD Judge Marc Carter (ret.)
Chair Vice Chair

cc: Wayne Young, President & CEO, Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Natalie Hurtado, Trustee & Foundation Liaison, Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Cris Feldman, Feldman & Feldman
Members, Foundation Board of Directors

www.theharriscenterfoundation.org



EXHIBIT F-58




Page 266 of 319

l S/

Mental Health and IDD

Strategic Plan

Presented By: Wayne Young, MBA, LPC, FACHE

Chief Executive Officer




Summary: Domains and Goals 1 - 3

Page 267 of 319

Mental Health and DD

Domain  Goal FY2025 FY2026 FY2027
1.1. Improve depression treatment; Increase MDD Remission at 6 Months measure by 5% per year. (Current baseline 8.46%) 13.8% 18.8% 23.8%
o 1.2 Improv.e.use of SU|C|d¢=j care pathwa?y by enhancing the number of evidence-based suicide treatment interventions (by one per year) and 30% of E1 30% of E2 30% of E3
measure clinical use after implementation. [Enhancement #1, #2, #3 (E1, E2, E3)]
Quality 1.3 Operationalize just-in-time organizational dashboards for different staff and management levels and disseminate to core programs and Yes/No 50% Reports 75% Reports
departments. Automated Automated
. . . Training & . .
1.4 Develop and implement processes to improve patient and employee safety events. . 5% Reduction | 10% Reduction
Develop Baseline
1.5 Improve patient satisfaction. (Baseline YTD Pl Scorecard FY24 = 87) 87.9% 88.7% 89.6%
2.1. Improve employee engagement; Improve overall favorability scores on the annual employee engagement survey. (Baseline FY24 = 65%) 65% 68% 71%
9 2.2 Improve employee recognition; Improve employee recognition favorability scores on annual employee engagement survey. (Baseline FY24 = 45% 47% 50%
42%) 0 0 ()
People 2.3 Increase employee health and wellbeing. Improve employee health and wellbeing favorability scores on annual employee engagement Conduct Survey & 5% 10%
survey. Develop Baseline ° 0
2.4 Improve employee voice; Improve favorability sores on employee voice (my opinion counts) on annual employee engagement survey. 529% 55% 58%
(Baseline FY24 = 49%) ° 0 0
3.1 Improve integration of behavioral health/IDD and primary care collaboration across outpatient settings. (Baseline FY24 = 1554) 1650 1750 1850
9 3.2 Number of individuals with a history of mental iliness or IDD housed. (Baseline FY24 = 576). 600 660 726
3.3 Improve the identification and care pathways for clients having IDD at Harris County Jail locations Implement Clinical Create 10%
Integration | 2> '™MP P Y & yaal ) Pathway Baseline 0
. . o . . . 1 Additional 1 Additional
3.4 Expand partnerships with Managed Care Organizations to incorporate medical care services. 1 Contract A R




Summary: Domains and Goals 4 - 6

Page 268 of 319

Mental Health and DD

Domain Goal FY2025 FY2026 FY2027
4.1. Add service strategies that either extend program availability or enhance service array for MH/SUD/IDD. 6 8 10
9 4.2 Decrease 30 day readmissions rates to HCPC/SMHF discharges, inclusive of individuals having IDD/ASD. 10.25% 9.75% 9.25%
Program 4.3 Increase the number of people served with substance use disorder services 497 547 602
Access
4.4 Enhancement of multi-linguistics in clinical education programs to best serve community. (Baseline FY24 = 19.4% Multi-linguistic Students) 25% 30% 40%
4.5 Increase the number of children and adults served in IDD/ASD services. (Baseline FY24 = 970) 990 1010 1030
5.1. Increase The Harris Center reach into the community via outreach and engagement activities for MH/SUD/IDD. (Baseline FY24 = 357 Annually) 393 428 464
9 5.2 Expand The Harris Center’s partnerships with local law enforcement and mental/behavioral health providers to include training on the
identification, engagement, and referral resources for persons with intellectual and developmental disabilities (IDD) and/or autism spectrum 10 Trainings 15 Trainings 20 Trainings
Community | disorders (ASD).
5.3 Expand community training through additional curricula and number of people trained related to MH/SUD/IDD. (Baseline FY24 = 1272) 1399 1526 1654
6.1. Improve financial and accounting platform : .
FY2025: 1) Implement Monthly Board Financial Package (5 minimum new KPIs as agreed by Board; Financial PKG Grant Mgt . .
. . . & 5 Financial
2) Conduct Analysis and Proposal for Financial Systems Improvements Svstem System & —
FY2026: 1) Implement Grant Management System, and v Financial PKG ¥
. : Improvements . Improvements
@ 2) Automate Board Financial Package Proposal Automation
FY2027: Implement 5 Additional Financial Systems Improvements
Innovation
6.2 Establish agency-wide program for incorporating safe artificial intelligence (Al) to MH/SUD/IDD care delivery Yes/NO 1 Tool 3 Tool
6.3 Devel di . : . . . : . .
> evelop and implement The Harris Center HUB (HCHub), an on-demand MH/SUD/IDD clinical service offering convenient, accessible virtual HCHUD Pilot 500 Visits 1000 Visits




The
8-8 HARRIS
(: I’UN I I”;] {__.F'E"_H'

Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives

Thank You



EXHIBIT F-59



Page 270 of 319

Mental Health and IDD

Legislative Priorities:

Presented By: Amanda Jones, JD

Director of Government and Public Affairs



Page 271 of 319

Access: IDD Interest Lists

* Reduction of IDD Interest Lists is a priority issue for The Harris
Center’s Board of Trustees.

* More than 335K people are on all six of the IDD interest lists for
community-based services. (May 2024)

* 124K people were on the Home & Community Services (HCS) interest list.

* 111K people were on the Texas Home Living (TXMHL) interest list.

* 39% of persons on the HCS interest list, and 31% of TxHML interest
list have waiting for more than 10 years. (June 2024)




Increasing Access

* Cost of living adjustment for our clinical team members.

° Increased funding for community-based mental health and IDD services.

Competition Inflation

Increased demand Increased costs to
for behavioral deliver services
health services

Page 272 of 319
N ) e .
HS HARRIS
W/ \J CENTER fr
Mental Health and IDD

‘Transforming Lives

Population Growth

Funding has not
kept pace



Page 273 of 319

X The
(I-? HARRIS
UV CENTER por

Housing and Supports ol

* Harris County and the City of
Houston programs that support
people who are unhoused are
considered models in the
country.

* We are working with the City
and County to develop a
legislative request to address
individuals who are newly
unhoused




HARRIS
Expiration of ARPA and the Fiscal Cliff %@Emﬁ

Transforming Lives

* The Harris Center receives ARPA from the City of
Houston, Harris County, and the State of Texas.

e Our agency stands to lose an estimated S 24.9 Million
per year with the expiration of ARPA across various
programs.

e 273 FTEs will be impacted and 2 contractors.

e 27,461 children and adults would receive less
comprehensive services. This includes vulnerable
populations such as

* Youth in foster care and juvenile justice systems;
* Seniors;

* Individuals who are unhoused; and

* Individuals who are incompetent to stand trial.



Page 275 of 319

~ Y, The )
HARRIS

W/ \J CENTER s

Mental Health and IDD

Other Issues

* Purchased private psychiatric beds

* Growing state hospital waitlist

* Jail-based competency restoration

* Not Guilty by Reason of Insanity proposal.




EXHIBIT F-60



Page 276 of 319

— Mental Health and IDD
Lesson Objectives i .
1. Identifying your “Why” and Need for Implementing PraCtlcaI Steps tO Integratlng NMDOH
Interventions Non-Medical Driver of Health (NMDOH) Screenlng and Referral Prog ram

2. Describe the framework for Evaluation, Assessment
and Interventions used for Implementing NMDOH
Initiatives

3. Describe how the Health Home Project used NMDOH
to improve health outcomes

4. Describe how the Food RX Program was developed
and addressed Food Insecurity as a Referral Program

Dr. Stanley Williams, PhD  Director of Integrated Health

Janeth Martinez, MA,

LPC .
Project Director Dr. Stanley Williams, PhD Theresa Pettigrew -
Integrated Health Director of Integrated Health Beason, LPC-S

Certified Community Practice Manager

Behavioral Health Clinic Optum Project
(CCBHC) Expansion Integrated Care Health

Program Home




Page 277 of 319

The Harris Center

Houston, TX

As the largest behavioral and developmental disability
care center in Texas, The Harris Center provides a full
continuum of services to 88 sites across Harris County
and serves over 90,000 individuals annually.

Services are offered in over 40+ languages to better
serve one of the most diverse and multi-cultural
communities in the nation.

The Harris Center is the state-designated Local Mental
£ : Health Authority and the Local Intellectual and
,.,., The Developmental Disability Authority serving Harris

H ARRIS ‘ County, Texas.

J CENTER rr
Mental Health and IDD




Page 278 of 319

The Why — —

& - S -
Gathering Wisdom VE C&o\ti e e o
fov @ shared juurney oNnS AR /7 Soaal Determinants

Why Address Non-Medical . @\t Seu? o heartn
. vocl22-24,2013¢ (:) tuge opporfunty . STR'F\T'EGY ?“\ mj
Drivers of Health " WELLNES e ] e ST
0_” D 2 WDT’k}n -.-.__/'_%C Thpﬁl‘hk ?YRMW_[ )D ! 2 P "fl‘/
: = /) “\d&hmr\g Together oc?i )29 PYwiiniial ylong ﬂwi‘nhua‘;a&;e OSI;LLJQRE“Q‘\M <
. . < mfl](m_g To5YEss \'\N[J TJOURNEY Iea“:’z\"f‘tffmmmﬁll){:n% | Do Belkep)
Agency and Organization N \M\” N T T N e S
= €ople Hreal b e
. _ . heatih pioblens /9/ LEAW ‘&Mo::or;; :)@ummhons re\ﬂ’mhzmg ot sieps We are gathered
Adoption of Non-Medical W e U - g il
. appen = vich 0L | P %, A logal needs ™,
Drivers as Part of Culture = \ s wvey g O W TN e
ﬂ-%‘lﬁmr T (Onﬂmj( St hﬁuSm T’xpum. g\‘lrﬁ{g j[;)
d Service Deliver e -—— 5m e \ = i oy . e
a n e V|Ce e |Ve y i Ii(i” N : e {W Communihes Mjlml h al{mmﬂ“} Mmfarmﬂ.ﬁ Smﬂﬂhms.._,
| Bg gen o \Nﬂ Shenghens ys
\and &) dasa
\ g onin| / mﬂ\@ &m{‘?&‘ﬁmg %);rigﬂr hCﬂm h“fmgum{\,t

Feons 00 HisTries 1 culhue
jk +ensure szrh'»m Ted prgate

AN Yeach us how }y r ; 5&
Souﬂ;lﬂ ; @H‘WE ‘ﬁ)r‘HuL} VEM@Q& % ?()\\UQ‘ ei hes,ef)
Q%; OFHEﬁUH m =

%-Mbj m J C " the ground
A A S sho % oL
,m %(ﬁusm &Dﬂ?‘n:% nd 1S HEALTH § Feel it WSDY\?{% “\é\ Dot A BoP\,AT\OI\]
hnv«smg e - . Z o Or:-?;\e ﬂmw\d ffg;mm %Wi:‘m . *he Soromon
DA ' d
. Collo¥™ M5 F20 Toads a visionof Securi ildhood
ch hl\t\{ fHk JM\Q Q‘ ; F\!’d‘Nﬂ‘{!\'Lﬂi *Shelier. rhj u?’H D Ejﬁem de.
2 9 [ et o wdn Mg s " 1 udfond wags. S e
&\0 J‘E}- '\ . SMW W O d 40/; " Comphm{ed \ows, h?nhng E{u&{m \mmshrﬁ mdmhq\
& 5 <00 fom ome, WS e Pro I § School. itmpacks
) % ki SN Oroumn toCk lNla!wpu Tettbig.
ERNY A 22
-
[F7)



Page 279 of 319

Y My The )
U7 HARRIS

' \J CENTER for

Mental Health and IDD

We began to Understand NMDOH Needs at an Individual and
Community Level — the Role of Needs Assessments

“Social determinants are the main drivers of health disparities, which are defined by the”
World Health Organization- WHO

Physiological: Help me to have a place to live where people can
visit and consistently afford food for myself and family.

Safety: Help me prevent physical/financial/emotional harm to
myself and family.

Belonging: Help me to maintain healthy relationships with
others; not remain addicted, improve my mental health
conditions to be accepted and not isolated

Esteem: Help me with being amotivational about wanting to
feel accomplished and self-confident- being employed, being —
valued by co-workers, earning a wage

Self-actualization: Help me be the best version of myself.

Maslow’s ‘Hierarchy of Needs’: prioritizing progress
Abraham Maslow proposed his Hierarchy of Needs as a “Theory of Human Motivation” in 1943. His pyramid (shown below) defines five levels of human needs. The pyramid characterizes how humans tend to prioritize the progress they’re trying

to make in their lives. Maslow found that people seek to satisfy needs on a higher level only when the needs on the underlying levels and foundation have been adequately fulfilled.



http://psychclassics.yorku.ca/Maslow/motivation.htm
http://psychclassics.yorku.ca/Maslow/motivation.htm

Page 280 of 319
' Yy The )
W HARRIS
v \J (:ENTEP\ for
Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives

We learned through Literature Reviews -NMDOH —*“Looks like its here to stay” —and is imbedded in
CMS and payor policy and practice guidelines

Data Set Directory of
Social Determinants of Health
at the Local Level

The Social Determinants of Mental Health:
OV An Overview and Call to Action
° wecn et e
p ; ETES ,_,

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services

PO AN 1| AR o

Coordinated Whole-Person i How Software Hel
Care that Addresses Social
Determinants of Health

‘the R uired Data Inhastuctuse and Systans
Data Across %
Sectors 1 Health

| Sapuwbn 3017 ¥

S (D (st

Standards of Practice Social Determinants of Health: Know What Affects Health
far Case Management

Tools for Putting SDOH into Action

U
——— Y

TOOLS FOR PUTTING SOCIAL |
DETERMINANTS OF HEALTH INTO ACTION |

REFORT

Addressing Social
Determinants of Health via

Medicaid Managed Care
Contracts and Section
1115 Demonstrations

cheworg  commumityplans.nat

An enormous volume of literature has catalogued the impact of the social determinants on human health.

All the research shows the lack of addressing social determinants models—worsened health care outcomes.

Centers for Disease o\

SO Ukl CETER AT ER

O RFRTEL AL T




The
8.8‘ HARRIS
CENT‘ER for

Mental Health and IDD

Why Behavioral Health Practitioners Need Competency an Up Stream Approach for N——

Individuals with SMI die on average at the age of
53 years old
Have elevated (and often undiagnosed) rates of:
* hypertension,
* diabetes,
e obesity
* cardiovascular disease
Patient Challenges- Non-Medical Drivers
Disparities within People with SMI hampers self-
care, access to care, medication compliance,

adherence to primary care & medical treatment
plans

Early Interventions to Prevent downstream Poor Health Outcomes

l The PROBLEM

Peoplewith mentalillness
die'earlier than the general

Chronic conditions and comorbid psychological disorders Milliman Research Report. July 2008



Page 282 of 319

IMPACT OF SOCIAL DETERMINANTS OF HEALTH

Social determinants of health have tremendous affect on an individual’s health regardless of age, race, or ethnicity.

Socioeconomic Factors » SDOH Impact

20 percent of a person’s
health and well-being is

Education  Job Status FarSnLiJIF))/:)SOorf[:ial Income Cognar%ti;ity related to access to care and
quality of services

.—I: Physical Environment

= The physical environment,
social determinants and
Health Behaviors behavioral factors drive
‘ . @ ‘ 80 percent of health outcomes
Tobacco Use Ezieerz i%e Alcohol Use AS'?;\L;I?;

Health Care

Access to Care
Quality of Care

Source: Institute for Clinical Systems Improvement; Going Beyond Clinical Walls: Solving Complex Problems, 2014 Graphic designed by ProMedica. ©2018 American Hospital Association


Presenter
Presentation Notes
Only 20 percent of an individual’s health is tied to clinical care, which includes access to and quality of health care services. 80 percent of an individual’s health is tied to their physical environment, social determinants – where you live, work and play – and behavioral factors – including exercise or smoking.

More specifically, that 80 percent can be broken down as follows:  
Roughly 40 percent is attributed to socio-economic factors
10 percent to physical environment
30 percent to health behaviors 

Source: http://www.countyhealthrankings.org/county-health-rankings-model
and https://www.icsi.org/_asset/w6zn9x/solvcomplexproblems.pdf 

Image source: https://www.promedica.org/socialdeterminants/pages/default.aspx


Page 283 of 319

| Gathering Wisdom @\LESP Develoging o
The What does Internal B o o shoed juiney VI oS es N Souial Delumbrs
ﬂ X Nah of Healh

v ocl22-24,2013¢ Y\(S \NESS Ca(e' Huge opportunty . STR.'AT‘EGY

1 indi
Data and Information rhes S é(y%@

/) ’ Work)n .-f %C Triparhie FYIIN.’Wf )DﬂlOJ\Lm 6P Uiy,
S h ow —_— AS S e S S m e nt_ W “\‘jahmngl Together) | local, ey, pvovinial glang ‘ With w‘goﬂs osis(n/giueﬂE‘v““lw <
Making PIRYIEss_ /e ‘%ﬁ‘té‘&&&“ﬁ?@“ '2%?3%% |
4

Why Address Non- mow\a

LE L, > Key bi/hiparkie ngremeﬂk ﬁ:q e s
_ ° Farst Nations organizations re e We g
Medical Drivers of W ] o L e W) e
2 slkfE *[Housingl “Childsens Land SeNGe of .
they happen < A Jrich [Mou™  fomilies; .ﬂcr&m;k? ki \ Pongng ot nead™ ﬁ‘( CHANGE
/‘,-'23@._‘&\‘.@ Wse ivvovator @ = Q(Pg/ & fol tl{ reds ;
Hea Ith ﬁ%‘{j 1 I L N T v, 4
- poor | 5}_\{/;‘@ ——mic g s o ) s o fufure
- TN S ey \/ﬂ \ilant™ mlmhon
ot 0oty {W Comrnumhfa AAOOMY | g Oprershions .
Q@w = gm ST a@" h i g r—
- orol oy ity qdasa *NC oo
dP Tk WH'%“““”‘WLA o " el mE?rr:n :x@ - G g

@ STE.Fou M'"N P{NT s @l{ure {n? ~H\:§ m& % ?()\\('\QS e’ . hes,ef)
oFHEﬂLﬂJr Wig} 5

Tear responginy QX\SO
i \—E@ CRA resonsbibes f iy
bj mud° connechi Z §\$ A S"Na}g ghou\d /b// ) LLA B 3 4\0"]
w Wit ead\'%lky s Beaie f Teel it '(esomh Part ORAT
\wsmg g‘*‘wl Colorcaation Znon, on the grownd. ffg;mw‘:l by et *he SotuTON
\
. an A o 7 70 TOWas a visionof "E,'Od Secur ( \h'ldhund
f}k Jw:hte Wageg O A oShe ’
2 ch hl\t\{ T = > m\{r‘\?;: R u\?HoLD Change He ayle
\ ?dﬂ(ﬁd’\b‘n = mﬁ “\wh moi? ‘?\‘_"jmmh Ottory on : kadﬂ\nml Was: Su‘;wﬁ neali
S 9&&?&@%% o /fa,] %th{ed aws, buiking ks * Understand tﬁldznhu\
Uy Yo bome, o Pro&rﬂmfodﬁ School. twpacks

lve Yecdh
Yoqnic tecor oy .
Sombradd - Zhiy” *aory




Page 284 of 319

Harris Center Survey — Determinants of Health
Findings

“Social determinants of health (SDOH) are known to influence mental health outcomes, which are independent

risk factors for poor health status, emotional wellness and physical illness.”
Journal of the American Medical Informatics Association, 26(8-9), 2019, 895-899

Eight key DOH related findings from the Harris Center survey revealed the following:

The Harris Center, anticipating the potential of *Food Insecurity 34.69% Believed that they would run out of food
the significant and devastating impact of “Percent Uninsured: 39 26 % Uninsured

COVID-19 on direct behavioral health patient

care developed and administered a survey Economic Insecurity 56.86% Found 1t difficult to pay for basic needs (1.e.,
entitled Harris Center COVID-19 & Impact food)

Social Determinants of Health.'® This survey Feeling lonely & isolated: 54.16% Frequently felt lonely and isolated

was administered to patients by care managers

through telephonic, socially distanced in person *Fearful about the future: 92.46%

contact, and telehealth between April 2020 and *Can’t keep up with medications: 44.49%,

April 2021. The survey was administered to

7,560 individual clients using a random number *Lost access to health 24.75%

recruitment of active outpatient adult (81% appointments:

adults) and children (19%) with SMI and or *Have not seen a healthcare 31.43% 1n last year

SED conditions. provider




[ ankey

BURF ey
Cancer
(il

CiSPARITY
DISPLETY

Clinical Tricals

Prevenlion

"RACE = s

WESSDUSPERTY  RACE

Mrtlh_'ujt{

[..-.lrn-ui-n'.ﬁ.'.'Jl

wWELLI

F’rimarglgargl

Lty el nclior
tobacco-
Cancer cdre

J= =g, 15
E;L;‘.Li.; ' '.c‘I
::- u-i 2a I-.-ﬁi‘

EFETY

cancér-

Poli Iy
Cancer
Liningrr
cess T
RACE ==

Cancer

Caniid =)

[

Page 285 of 319

Mental Health and IDD

Health Disparities were associated with unmet Non-Medical Drivers
of Health Factors:

Access problems
High rates of physical illness with mental illness
Premature mortality

People with mental illness receive a lower quality of care in
primary care settings

High cost of physical illness with mental illness

Definition of Health Disparities “Health disparities are differences in the incidence, prevalence, mortality, and

exist among specific (racial and ethnic, cultural, gender) populations in the United States. ”

Populations in which disparities exist experience worse outcomes for chronic conditions, have higher health care cost, experience

lower quality of life



11

People with Serious Mental Health &
Co-Occurring Chronic Health Conditions —
Vicious Cycle of Unmet Needs -

Some believe that the lack of proper @
care addressing SDOH and integrated
health of people with behavioral health
conditions results in Health Disparities

Improper Treatment Leads to
latrogenic disease:

Any adverse conditions in a patient
occurring as a result of treatment that
does not incorporate the proper
diagnosis, manner of treatment, failure
to address conditions and problems. [

1.




I The Social Determinants of Mental Health I

under employment/
unemployment
adverse early food
life experiences insecurity
poor access to and

A 'Y Poor Mental Health W e gl quality of health care

housing
instability

Risk of Mental lliness

social exclusion/ \ low education/
social isolation educational inequality

>Income and employment
> Food security
>Houslng affordability and quality

> Mental health, depression
Parent

Personal > Substance use/addiction
Well-Being > Stress

>Tran5portation > Mindfulness
% Other basic needs Children’s Well-being and Healthy » Resiliency
Physical, Cognitive, Social,
and Emotional-Behavioral
> Partner support or conflict/violence Development >Bonding and attachment

> Social ties and connections

> Membership, civic participation Family Parental >Knowledge of development
Inclusion or discrimination Social Relationship ;
> Well-Being | Well-Being >Knowledge of parenting

> Community social capital

CAHMI. SDOH TWG. Bruner et al. August 2018.

>Positive activity, reading, play

>Relationsh|' p security, stability

Page 287 of 319

‘& The B
R ) HARRIS

The Social Determinants of Mental Health:

N I CENTER for

The Social Determinants
of Mental Health

Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives

We Explored Role of Assessments & Interventions

Addressing the social determinants of mental health requires taking an approach
distinct from the typical clinical interventions of psychiatrists and other mental health
professionals in everyday practice.

Evaluation and one-on-one interventions, such as care coordination must be
employed, but doing so yields less overall population impact. Population-based, risk
stratification, hot-spotting and using evaluation tools — will target greater population
needs

However; on an individual patient basis, care coordinators can begin to address SDOH
domains and risk factors stemming from the social determinants of mental health by
identifying the family/social network, economic, and environmental factors that
influence illness and hinder positive patient outcomes. Educating patients on how these
factors can lead to poor mental health may lead to some gains through changes in
individual decision-making and health behaviors.



Page 288 of 319

CMS gov Types of SDOH - Standardized tools

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services

https://healthitanalytics.com/news/cms-offers-resources-to-address-social-determinants-of-health

CMS Offers Standardized Resources to Address Social Determinants of Health
CMS is encouraging providers to address the social determinants of health through data-driven efforts and new
resources

Organizations can leverage the Accountable Health
Communities (AHC) social needs screening tool
the PRAPARE tool from the National Association of
Community Health Centers, or the Health Leads
Screening Toolkit to better understand their patients’
challenges.

These quick assessments allow providers to have
meaningful conversations with patients about their
unique socioeconomic situations, and may help clinicians
connect patients to community resources or services to
improve their experiences.



http://www.nachc.org/research-and-data/prapare/
https://healthleadsusa.org/resources/the-health-leads-screening-toolkit/
https://healthleadsusa.org/resources/the-health-leads-screening-toolkit/
https://healthitanalytics.com/news/cms-offers-resources-to-address-social-determinants-of-health

Texas Health and Human Services — Tex
State Behavioral Health: Local Mental Health Authority — will use the AAFM tool

as Council of Community Centers —

for all Local Mental Health Authorities -

Commission
March 2021

Health and Human
Services

Assessment of Social

' AMERICAN ACADEMY OF
FAMILY PHYSICIANS

Page 289 of 319
'8 Yy The )
W HARRIS
L v (:ENTER for
Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives

Underfined answer optieas indicate & pasibve response for & sotial nbed for the housing, tood, ranspartathn, and wiles cabegories,

Factors impacting
Health Care Quality
in Texas Medicaid

1. Wl 5 your housing siluaion loday™ & Iniha past 12 months, has lack of

appoiniments, maatings, woek of from L Raiily (2]
et things neadod for daily vng? Sometmes (3]

L o i s, o in B park) © Yos, i nas kept me from medical Freguenily (5)
O [hive bousng fodiry, bul | am
i

2 Think about 1 placs you v Do

As Required by the Centers for Medicare
and Medicaid Services

6 It st 2 monthe has the slochic,
g, e, or wales comgany ihvestened

Delivery System Reform
Incentive Payment (DSRIP)

Transition Plan Milestone tllowing qussions e mvved

indicatos & positive scroen fof personal  Grealer than 10 equals posittve screen
salely. Please input the comespanding o alel

3 WAIIS i st 12 Trcsiinia, o wiiFiesd

7. Hiw ofier e antne, incuudig
4 Within the past 12 monns, tho food you
benigh jus e ks and you dik1

Health and Human Services

Social Needs UTILITIES
Screening fool 6. Inthe past 12 months has the electric,
ppospm—— gas, oil, or water company threatened
o R~ to shut off services in your home?
e B Yes
PR—— O No
A O Already shut off
e ASSISTANCE
i .H“;"":fﬁﬂ 1. Would you like help with any of these
Pty 5 needs?
Smotqustons 10 B Yes
O No

10 Wt you s help with any of ass
neods?

Questiors: .10 opriked wilh povmissn fem
o Ml cachoany of Scca, cousliy of 1
Mo Acikiios s, Wshingion, (10

| Fiba A, Vishancked K Ariboiny 5, afd Allsy [0 Meiboonad Acuck Mekein: it ] i
T A Washingion, L0 by

............. ST RS Sy —pe——.

200




15

Page 290 of 319

€ )

Current Development — Part of Harris County Health Exchange —Health Equity Coalition

! J
Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives

EHF: Care Management Platform - & Primary Care/Health Home
Optimization — AAFP Social Needs Tool

Compass Rose — EPIC EHR

Coordinated Care }
Epic AMERICAN ACADEMY OF
Mana ® ement Overview FAMILY PHYSICIANS

The comprehensive health and social care record in Epic moves healthcare beyond clinics and
hospitals. Coordinated Care Management provides case management tools to roll out population

health, social, and community related programs to improve a person’s well-being through care
management and outreach.

A Comprehensive View of Wellness

Coordinate Programs

With program management toals, you can organize and manage large-scale programs - like chronic care
management and child welfare services - that benefit many different types of pepulations in your community.
You can:

Address Social Determinants of Health « |dentify candidates for programs with decision support and reporting.

« Enroll program participants with referrals and applications, including a transparent application status
With EpicCare, clinicians, social service providers, and community visible in MyChart.

partners can capture a person’s social determinants of health — such o Establish a program's targets and timelines in order to track the program’s status relative to its goals.

. ¥
as isolation, depression, food insecurity, and barriers to reliable 6? . ‘ﬂ s Track the services a person receives for each program he's enrolled in.
»!

Coordinated Care Management can help your organization keep more people well. Use tools in Epic to address
social determinants of health, map support networks, connect people to community services, and measure
outreach and program effectiveness. If you're interested in installing Coordinated Care Management, talk to
your Epic representative to discuss how these tools fit your needs.

transportation. Social determinants can also be submitted directly in 5 I sh , tsand d ¢ tiol q i
P . . . .
MyChart. Users have easy access to this information in the Epic chart ecurely share a person’s assessments and documents across multiple programs and provide

and can use it, combined with medical information, to inform the care "F ﬁ confidential information specifically to program staff who need access.

and services they provide. Tl ¢ Manage staff workloads by visualizing program data like case load distribution by case manager and
With Epic’'s Coordinated Care Management license, you can use social e outstanding task.s by owner. ) ) o ]
determinants of health history to drive decision support, risk {'f} > « |mprove population health by enrolling consumers in structured programs, which include milestone
stratification, and analytics. These tools help you target outreach and - - = tracking, integrated client plans, and actionable population reports with discrete, measurable outcomes.

program enrollment to the most vulnerable in your population,
leading to improved health outcomes and reduced costs through
prevention.

 Providers bring care to people where they are with a mobile toolset for telehealth and home visits.



Integrated Behavioral Health Whole-Person Approach

By building an infrastructure around integrative health, collaborations,Non-
Medical Drivers of Health (NMDOH), data directed clinical decisions that
correlate to measures, we can create a bridge to improve health outcomes

Redefine specialty mental health and consider the
whole person — not just mental iliness, Include SDOH

A Remove barriers that limit access to care
and address health disparities

Improve overall health and well being

of all vulnerable and at-risk behavioral health populations for
preventable hospital and ER Admissions



Presenter
Presentation Notes
over the 30 years, 
Worked in Healthcare 
Seen how socio economics situations (including those of my parents) played a role in their health and sadly how they aged

THERE IS A GAP between HC and Health

I thought why can’t  I help to change the way they system thinks about HEALTH, so the Strategic Community Parntership Program was begun over 4 years ago

I am seeking to spark your imagination and craetivity  around what is possible if we work together in new and collaborative ways by doing three things

1. Share with you today some examples by those of you in the room re: how things are changing  with AMAZING clinical and financial success  and 

2. I am going to share with you what we are doing to innovate in the SDOH space

3. I going to ask those of you who want to engage work with me on this journey to enhancing  the system of HEALTH in our country to let me know


What Can we Do to
Address Gaps in
NMDOH- Intervention—
Why Address Non-
Medical Drivers of
Health

Page 292 of 319

Gathering Wisdom
fov @ shared juurney I[

roct22-24,2013 -

: = Key b hiparkle a
ol O e
ealth problems 'LEAW ;‘: y Nm?s;o?mmm
\. 43 o
i WY 2 e T
ﬂvﬂhnpp?jn éﬂ_g@ ¥ich Wse ot (g = wm,..lm%-; ¥ u006?/
ﬁw: rs Towmprove ibrowl &
}{- l?mr 5# \.\5;l
A s

B L* '
gend{r
d
L

e E | o HEﬁLﬂJr B

uch | g
o hl\t\{ J y Gl
/ cduahon

: S denint e Mok,
X -U‘uﬂﬁ{‘mw\'qohﬁ, \_y—\

nnech

@Dmm\ With eodk :
\wmg gohwl Colonizatisn %&?\/ i

f)
“?\\‘QS' C " +he ground
N A S sho 4 oL
R Sf Yeel i er\ﬁ%ﬁ “é‘ P8 O‘U‘T‘O'd
on +he ground Wmmunﬂg Yoy e Sotug o™
Aefood § "’a" ( R
(@) ToWads a viino Ruuhy ; YB (dhood
Fwd'm‘fr\;?;r ‘S'\'\EHCK uPHow DJﬁE'HQ Py
’ on _ Madiona ways: * SuggorT heali
40/] %Ph(cﬁed \aws, hurding,, cushans  * Understand mdznhq\
Progmm-ﬁ)mﬁ School etz [ gropnc Tt

S .
C&O\L P \/\’(’6

N
Fesors 00 Histories + culhueg o

"-u_,_‘_J \\_/ o
Feach us how + re i (s
Q% SOC{H;L s @lﬁue nr %ug WHo Lr{g /A Dﬂdﬁ‘_w\\g\l

clear re Sonsibiihes 7

?4‘:\(:7

Huﬂe oworfunrgf_
'parfhers T First Naions

S

ummrt Retdutioh

. BC Triparhie Fanewl|  Salancing Bie 'Pic,Tupg"" “‘*k,fg/@
local,v2g., pvwiiniial ylans With W‘; !
‘ at's possible g
fensure tommunlwlhnn | Do Belkep)
IauountnbulsiH ioucwnﬂ’r_t,
'rebm'.dlrg Ourselues R0 Mo
0s 0. Deople oty e
re\n’mhzmg bt sags We are gathered
o 0 ﬂh@ﬂhood | e a8 medicine
Yoelo l‘\g\w Stable local needs ™ . ﬁ'( CHANG{
hm& Jobs fduoary (7]
ousing » loal Eponsiblgs 'JQW i futuge
Vi
commumhe; mnmhon ﬂlxh)nomg - Oprerations., .
\“\ %ﬂ{:ﬂ Shenghens ys
o Uty act as ‘A
\l_’] (o CDW%@C?&LW“ Paﬁneﬁ Iocam “C?&“\.tsnm{\,t

+ ensure partner,
ﬁ. (i e

Develoging o
Socal Determinants

of Healh
STRHT’EGY

din
n

Sombradd - Zhiy” *aory




18

Page 293 of 319
The

V(D [TARRIS

Q
Collaborative Projects: Interventions for Implementing Non-Medical et i 13

Drivers of Health Approaches to Improve Health Outcomes

Integrative Behavioral Health Home
Food RX — Food as Medicine

Transforming Lives

Collaborative Partners

houston |

EPISCOPAL HEALTH

FOUNDATION fQOd ban EE‘EEJEE

@I ,@ Texas Council
of Community Centers

HEALTH EQUITY
COLLECTIVE

Driving Better Health Together H AH H I s H E A lTH ?:ra‘:ltgagnd Human
SYSTEM
Q United
nite
OPTUMHealth 'JJ Healthcare



Page 294 of 319

Mental Health and IDD

- @ The Harris Center Health Home

“alth & Weunes""?

Your Health and Wellness Partner




) The
d HARRIS

o U CENTER jor
Review of Goals G CENTER

Transforming Lives

Goals
Improve overall wellness of members to include their self-manogement of conditions

Increased member participation in the health home program based upon enrollment rates for atiributed members (farget goalis 'j‘ enrollment for
all artributed members within a 12 month period)
* Reductions in avoidable hospital admissions and emergency room use
* Reductions in overall hospiral readmission rates

* Reduced lengths of stay in the hospital when hospitalizations are necessary i A i

 lmproved rates for follow up after hospitalization (FUH) for behavioral and medical inpatient and ER visits * Impmvﬂ {herence to gec - %] 1
treatments (inchiding medications and specialty care) AV A .“_

* Improved access to prinary care, based on key metrics related (e.g.. diabetes care) ' . \_..‘:.: :
Opportanity t
One of Four behavioral Health Orvganizations participating in the National Pilot ) “‘
Target 1500 of the highest risk Optum Members (costing approximatety S100K in claims per member) | " ‘
Only about 25% Harris Center clients 1 -

"""":4’ OPTUM
'JJJ UnitedHealthcare

.':
L



Re-admissions Reduction Interventions
Targeting specific social determinants
known to affect outcomes for seriously
mental ill patients. These include:

- Unemployment . Substance Use

- Homelessness . Low Health

- Lack of Transportation Literacy Levels

- Lack of Access to Health . Unsafe Social
Insurance and Primary Environments

Care Services




Page 297 of 319

8.8 HARRIS
CENTER for

Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives

Flow

Part | a free BP / BMI screening 1o opt-in to IBHH
encourage enraliment services?

Value-based engagement — offer Did patient

Al =0 ask about opting in to MH
outpatent senaces at HC

Yes Complete Health Action Plan:

Stapes of Change
SDOH Evabsation Repeat
NIDA Alcchol SCreening SCTeEeTings eveny
DLA-20 4 months and at
PHO-S discharge

BP

Motify Optum via
letter that patent

User completes Care

Yes—- Memt Wellness
Assessment & Moniworing

Did patient opt-
in to IBEH?

did not optin to
IBBH

B

Re-evaluate SDOH and stratify by high / medium / low
risk based on Care Mgmit Assessmient and sareening
tools in Health Action Plan

Level of risk dictates frequency of contact:

High — 3x / week

Medium —weekly

Loww — O 2 weeks
1BHH Services — does not need to go to state
reporting
- Comprehensive Care Management

Care Coordination

2 separate visits in the
month coverning at keast 2

Health Promotion e i o Note with each contact

User completes Optum BHH Services

completed in order to bl
monthly @se rate
[(Procedure code: GO002)

Comprehensive Transitional Care Vitals collected montly
Individual and Family Support Services
Refemal to Community and Sodal
Support Services
HC Care Mgmt tod form B —completed
monthly. Curently in a web-based application

22



Page 298 of 319

The HARRIS CENTER - Behavioral Health Home

Care Management Six Steps — Team-Based Care Model

Concierge
Medical

1. Member Identification & Analytics ® 2. Integrative Health- Care Management
* Realtime Utilizationdata ~ feceemass ' \ " Weekly & monthly team meetings
+  Population Health Risk . ion o [ ] *  (are —based upon analytics and health cutcome improvements
. Uﬁll]izati:-n of Community & Health Exchanses as N — m m *  Whole care approach with integrative health care plan addressing health,
part of data collection :d analysis £ behavioral health t2am monitoring and cutcomes for both health and behavioral

health cutcomes and bench marks.
* Care Coordination with other health providers, PCP, law enforcement, criminal
Justice system, SDOH resource referral and follow-up
* Best practices (stages of change, motivational counseling) behavioral change
*  Member advocacy
*  MNon-traditional hours and scheduling

6. Health Coaching

3. Physical Health/Healthcare

Health Fromotions & Wellness Strategies
Coaching and monitoring health cutcomes
Health system navigation

Medication education

* Care Coordination with Harris Center Integrated Health Clinic,
Community PCPs, other providers — hospital, ED
* Health Promotions, disease & medication management

5. Social Determinants of Needs . .
4. Integrative Behavioral Healthcare

*  SDOH Assessment — include strategies in
individualized care plan * In-person & televisual care
*  Specialized treatment addressing mental health, substance use,

criminal justice factors; 5DO0H; and integrative health

* Comprehensive resource list development £
resource connections — monthly monitor resources
for gualifications & acouracy

*  Trained in 3AMHSA 50AR program -

23



ANALYTICS-DRIVEN INSIGHTS ARE KEY TO
POPULATION HEALTH SUCCESS

The
8-8 HARRIS
CENTER for

Mental Health and IDD

Transforming Lives

Utilizing Optum Portal —
Data

1. Data-driven decisions

2.ldentification of high-utilizer and

assignments

3.Care coordination and collaborative

contacts with patient care team

4.Gaps in Care and Social

Determinants of Health



How Will We Track
and Monitor




26

Page 301 of 319

United Health/Optum Partnership Details:

* Per member per
month (PMPM)
payment
structure

e Total cost of care
shared savings

* Performance
measures as part
of shared savings
bonus payout

Health Home Measures

Follow-Up After Hospitalization for Mental Iliness (HEDIS® - FUH): 7-day
Comprehensive Diabetes Care HH - Composite 1 (HEDIS® - CDC): Eye exam
Child and Adolescent Well-Care Visits (HEDIS® - WCV)

Plan All-Cause Readmissions (HEDIS® - PCR)

Ambulatory Care: AMB HH (CMS)

Diabetes Screening for People With Schizophrenia or Bipolar Disorder Who Are Using
Antipsychotic Medications (HEDIS® - SSD)

Inpatient Utilization General Hospital/Acute Care HH (HEDIS® IPU)
Rate of Inpatient Behavioral Health Admissions - TPl (Custom)

Medication Adherence: Mood Stabilizers, Anti-Psychotics and Anti-Depressants- MA-MS,
MA-AP, MA-AD (Custom)

Reporting Only Measures

Follow-Up After Hospitalization for Mental Iliness HH (HEDIS® - FUH): 30-day
Behavioral Health Inpatient Days - TPI-DAYS (Custom)

7- and 30-Day Inpatient Behavioral Health & Residential Treatment Facility Readmission
Rate TPR-7, TPR-30 (Custom)



Page 302 of 319
r ’ The

‘ QN . ARRIS
0 u r E g H_\_[ ” {l\ UJ . d]v (l—lEkl{'Il:Ele for
M easures - | Mental Health and IDD ’

Transforming Lives

Quality Measures OPTUM TEAM

P f R t THE HARRIS CENTER
errormance kepor Utilization Medasures OPTUM TEAM

2023 Quarter 2 Performance Report [
2023 Quarter 2

Medication Adherence: Anti-Depressa

Increased member adherence of Anti-Depressants by
55.22% from the baseline of 32.05%.

Emergency Department
Visits

Decreased Emergency Department Visits by 50.59%
from a baseline of 613.46 ER visits.

Medication Adherence: Anti-
Psychotics

Increased member adherence of Anti-Psychotics by
54.41% from the baseline of 32.09%.

Inpatient Utilization-General
Hospital Acute Care

Reduced Inpatient Utilization of General Hospital Visits by
56.25% from a baseline of 17479 Inpatient General
Hospitalization Visits. Reducing the number to 78.21 visits.

Medication Adherence: Mood
Stabilizers

Increased member adherence of Mood Stabilizers by 40.02%
from the baseline of 35.91%.

Rate of Inpatient Behavioral
Health Admissions

Reduced the rate of Inpatient Behavioral Health Admissions by
49.07% from baseline of 179.13 Inpatient Behavioral Health
Admissions. Reducing the number to 91.23 admissions.

Plan All Cause Readmission Rate

Decreased Plan All Cause Readmission by 5.4 % from the baseline of
41.25%.



The Page 303 of 319
) HARRIS

Quarterly Performance D%em;égﬁmg
Report
2023 Q2

Denominator Baseline Your Percentage Points
Performance Change from Earned
Baseline

Medication Adherence: Anti-Depressants 3296% | 5116% | 5522% 20 —
Medication Adherence: Anti-Psychotics 338 683 32.05% 49 49% 54.41% 20 —
Medication Adherence: Mood Stabilizers 365 726 35.91% 50.28% 40.02% 20 —
Plan All-Cause Readmission Rate 558 1,426 41.25% 39.13% -5.14% 1.0 —
Measure Numerator | Denominator | Baseline Your Percentage |Points
Performance | Change from |Earned
Baseline
Ambulatory Care — Emergency Department Visits 3,406 11,214 613.46 303.73 -50.49% 20 —
Inpatient Utilization - General Hospital/Acute Care 877 11,214 17479 78.21 -55.25% 20 —
Excellent work!

Rate of Inpatient Behavioral Health Admissions 1,023 11,214 179.13 91.23 -49 07% 20 _

% Quality/Utilization Points Earned:

The percentage of quality/utilization

points earned out of the total

Total Quality/Utilization Points Earned: 13.0 available. The Harris Center earned
the maximum points !

Percentage of Quality/Utilization Points Earned: 59.09%

O tum 'Jﬂ Hm&hmm © 2022 Optum, Inc. All Rights Reserved United Behavioral Heaith and United Behavioral Health of New York, I.P_A_, Inc. operating under the brand Optum 13
p Comvnuniy Pl BH4067_04/2022 U.5. Behavicral Health Plan, Califomia doing business as OptumHealth Behavioral Sclutions of Califomia



"ouston |
oodbgk A

Food is Medicine ,

Food is the main contributor to health and chronic
conditions. Food is medicine, and research
demonstrates that regular intake of fresh produce helps

to improve the health of individuals with prediabetes and Hnw d oes i| wﬂrk",l-

| diabetes.

4

The R for Fresh Fruits and Vegetables program (RxFFV) g )

is designed to assist food-insecure individuals with ‘\ } r o ’ ;
¥ diabetes and prediabetes in managing their condition by J
providing access to fresh fruits and vegetables through F o o d R x
iDs wi ini i Soreanad by
pannejrshl|ps w}nh Idaho healthcarle clinics, communlty serlusias; Cet FoodRx Gel grocerias
organizations, insurance companies, and retailers. Patret! L from

sy e - Maorket Trailer

Addressing Food Insecurity



Presenter
Presentation Notes




30

What is Food Insecurity?

Food msecurity (FI)1s a lack of consistent access to
enough nutritious food for an active, healthy life
due to a lack ofresources.

The causes of food insecurity are complex. Some of the causes of food insecurity include:

Source: National Institute for Health Care Management Foundation

Page 305 of 319
” ¥

A ’ |

Mental Health and IDD
Transforming Lives



Page 306 of 319

Harris Center Mapping Screening —Non-Medical Drivers Screening

Front desk

provides screening
&fmal}‘:lal Individual completes the Screening
evaluating for information - to include releases of
Patient Assistance information for follow-up and consent to
receive treatment

and Sliding Scale
fee

Treatment Team Provides develops with

client patient centered treatment plan —

to include follow-up with case manager,
psychiatry, primary care, -etc.

Front desk—nursing, treatment team
formulate with client follow-up appts, plan
ofcare, assignment case manager

Case Manager review

Individual
receives
feedback
related to

needs —
associated
with follow-up
and risks

Individual does
not require
further
engagement —
Provider make
community
referral

Mental Health
Professional —
reviews the bio-
psycho-social —

results with —
Individual

RN reviews physical
health screen with
the individual

Mental Health
Professional —
provider- completes
—Behavioral Health
Assessment —to
include Phq9,
Columbia suicide ,
bio-psycho-social
assessment- to
include the SDOH
Tool &documents in

chart

Nurse —CMA
receives basic
screen - completes
—physical health
screen - documents
in EPIC EHR

treatment plan and
facilitates care
== AMERICAN ACADEMY OF
FAMILY PHYSICIANS

coordination with reducin
SDOH deficits follow-upg Follow-up appointments
care with Communit with physical health at the o T
providers related toy Harris Center or with Client leaves clinic
physical health Psychiatry is identified
‘ through front desk

Social Needs Screening Tool

transporation, housing,
employment, food

insecurity, mental health

follow-up appointments



The
8-8 HARRIS
CENTER for

Food Insecurity Screening o

Transforming Lives

For each statement, please tell me whether
the statement was

“Often true, sometimes true, or never true”
for your household:

Within the past 12 months, we worried
whether our food would run out before we
got money to buy more.

Never true
Don’t know, or refused

Within the past 12 months, the food we
bought just didn't last and we didn't have
money to get more

Never true
Don’t know, or refused

Hager, E.R., Quigg, A.M., Black, M.M., Coleman, S.M., Heeren, T., Rose-Jacobs,
R.,...Frank, D.A.(2010). Development and validity of a 2-item screen to identify
families at risk for food insecurity. Pediatrics, 126(1), e26-e32.




Screen for Eligibility

All patients are screened for Food
insecurity using 2 item-Hunger vital
signs — Janeth &Team

Patients that screen positive and/or
meet qualifying criteria may opt into
the Food Rx program — SAI
contacts clients with opportunity -
gets them to opt in — tell them there
are enrollment form, quality of life
survey,once dates of food truck
delivery — let them know dates,
make sure they have means to take
home

Clients assigned unique
Food ID number

Client completes
enrollment form (Forms
Assembly)

Patient completes
Quality of Life survey
FIRST Link refer to HFB
for SNAP application
assistance

Redeem Food

Identified Patients will
get 30 Ibs of fresh

produce and additional
items twice a month at

our sites



Presenter
Presentation Notes




—

> purnets &z — | 1(f)U810n

= - proud =
ctoion () e Q0
foodbank <= & |

Site

Staff Member- verify DLA

— tell about the program- add
to treatment plan — get the
okay- ask if they can come to
site to get 30 Ibs of food to take
home 2 x a month

Southwest (77074) -  Food Bank Services -

Southeast (77087) -  Food Bank Services

Northwest (77092) - Food Bank Services

Northeast (77028) - Food Bank Services

. Harris Center

Market Trailer — individuals that will oversee

the check-in process

Peers

Peers

Peers

Peers

Identify the staffmembers from each site that will be the POC

Eligibility will include screening positive for Flas well as the Daily Living
Assessment, financial Screen ofneeds (both shared by Harris Center)and
Quality of Life (shared by HFB) will be gathered to show the impact ofthe
program:

SDOH - two Hunger Vital Signs - Janeth

Provide best dates and times to provide site assessment at each location
for market trailer: Dates for site review: Completed

Population health target at each ofthe four clinics —abnormal screens and
data related to Health Risks —High Blood Pressure, Diabetes, other health

concerns, Non-medical drivers ofhealth screening results - Financial
screening form: Janeth — Anna-Dr. Hickey-& Team

Identify patients and spread sheet with
positive -two questions SDOH, poverty,
health condition, Financial, DLA, & the site
location

Care Navigators

Care Navigators

Care Navigators

Care Navigators

Page 309 of 319



B I
Food Rx enrollment process

Program Duration

e Patients remain eligible e Screenings and surveys
for set duration. administered at baselne,

e Average time is 6 6 month intervals,
months program completion

e Client tracks health
outcomes — every 6
months — part of
Assessment
Note: Since April 2024 -
over 1000 clients x 25 lbs of
food = 25,000 lbs of food.



Presenter
Presentation Notes






Presenter
Presentation Notes
For our Healthcare Partners, this is the measure we use to screen for food insecurity, officially known as the Hunger Vital Sign 2-question food insecurity screener. It has been validated and reduced from an 18-item USDA Household Food Security Scale (HFSS). Using a standardized screening method allows for consistency during evaluation across all CAP partners.

(Describe questions)

If someone answers “often true” or “sometimes true” to either question, they are considered food insecure. 



A Case: Identifying and Engaging Non-Medical Drivers of Health (NMDOH) Page 312 0319

Who Are We Talking About?

Mr. Bean is case manager with 80 people on his case list, He thinks He has a number of people on his case list like Willey (Will)
Ferrell. Will, a 58 year old man who resides in a private house with his wife in Houston, Texas. The house has been in his family for 5
generations, may need new paint inside — strange odor. The once thriving middle class community has been infiltrated by opioid
dependence, unemployment, and poverty — as a result of employment reductions technologies in the oil business.

* Most of Will’s neighbors now live below the poverty level, roughly $25, 000 for a family of 4.

* Will does not have consistent transportation, has had recurrent hospitalizations for major depression, diabetes, chronic pain
from injuries from working in the oil business, opioid addiction, and COPD. Dr. House, thinks Will Ferrell is not taking his health
and depression medications consistently and needs help with opioid addiction. Will, tells Mr. Bean ‘Dr. House doesn’t need to
worry about me; | know | got the “sugar” | may not do a lot of things I’'m supposed to; but | have a lot of things going on in my
life and nobody even understands like my kids are always hungry. Mr. Bean tells Will — you got a lot of problems; you are just a
depressed person that’s why you don’t want to do anything for yourself and family. Will gets angry and speaks to Mr. Beans’
supervisor and says that no one understand what I’'m really going through — | didn’t just get depression... that’s not who | am.

* Will Ferrell gets a new Case coordinator and is assigned Kevin Hart to be the care coordinator. Mr. Bean (the former case
manager) tells Kevin Hart, “You won’t be leaving early today. Will lives in a bad neighborhood, will probably need to be
readmitted, and the mobile crisis team will be furious! He says he takes his meds, but don’t believe him and he gets sick with
probably eating all those fried foods. All these folks are the same”, they don’t want to get better ...

Question -
What would you do if you were the supervisor or Kevin Hart, the new case manager



38

Page 313 of 319

‘Q ™y The )
U2 HARRIS
L \J CERTEP\ for

Mental Health and IDD

Trying to provide behavioral health treatment without addressing Non-Medical
Drivers and Health Disparities—

is like spraying greater and greater quantities of pesticides on crops growing in unsuitable soil—
the plants will not thrive,




EXHIBIT F-61



8/19/24, 12:53 PM Restructuring Medicare Payments To Address Homelessness | Health Affairs Page 314 of 319

HEALTH AFFAIRS FOREFRONT

RELATED TOPICS:

HOUSING | HEALTH CARE PROVIDERS | PATIENT CARE | MEDICARE ELIGIBILITY
| COSTS AND SPENDING | SYSTEMS OF CARE | EMERGENCY DEPARTMENTS | QUALITY OF CARE
| ORGANIZATION OF CARE

Restructuring Medicare Payments To Address
Homelessness

Priyanka A. Abraham, Jacob T. Kannarkat, Wayne Young

JULY 16, 2024 DOI: 10.1377/forefront.20240715.364948

Social determinants of health (SDOH) contribute upwards of 37 percent to geographic
variation in Medicare <https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmec/articles/PMC8193453/> per
beneficiary spending. Consequently, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
(CMS) in recent years has restructured policies to incentivize providers to address SDOH.

In 2015, CMS released ICD-10 Z codes representing SDOH, the non-medical factors
known to affect health-related outcomes that CMS has categorized into five domains—
food insecurity, housing instability, transportation needs, utility difficulties, and
interpersonal safety. These codes are intended to help CMS better understand the

https://www.healthaffairs.org/content/forefront/restructuring-medicare-payments-address-homelessness 1/6


https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/2464
https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/116
https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/1901
https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/2044
https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/83
https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/2190
https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/612
https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/57
https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/1554
https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hauthor20240701.506852/full/
https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hauthor20240701.726046/full/
https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hauthor20240701.989569/full/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC8193453/
https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/forefront.20240715.364948

8/19/24, 12:53 PM Restructuring Medicare Payments To Address Homelessness | Health Affairs Page 315 of 319

contribution of these factors to health care costs and help providers document their
patient populations. However, Z codes have been highly underused

<https://www.cms.gov/files/document/z-codes-data-highlight.pdf> and were associated

with only about 0.11 percent of Medicare fee-for-service claims in 2019.

This could change, however, with the CMS Inpatient Prospective Payment System (IPPS)
2025 proposed rule <https://public-inspection.federalregister.gov/2024-07567.pdf>

released on April 10, 2024. This rule builds on the prior year’s rule and would ensure
providers receive additional reimbursement for treating patients with Z codes specific to

homelessness due to their outsized impact on costs. In this article, we highlight CMS’s
historical approach in Medicare to addressing homelessness, review recent reforms, and
present opportunities for improvement.

CMS's Approach

CMS has made efforts to incorporate SDOH principally through incentives for data
collection and services. Since 2019, the Medicare Advantage program has covered non-
medical services to promote patient well-being—such as home health, meal delivery, and
wellness programs—with the aims of providing higher-quality care and lowering costs. In
providing services that directly address SDOH and barriers to care, the progression of
chronic conditions and costly emergency or inpatient care may be prevented.

Another example is Medicare’s Inpatient Quality Reporting (IQR) program, which
requires hospitals to collect and submit data on specific quality metrics, with penalties
for non-compliance. Starting in 2024, the IQR program included two SDOH screening
measures to promote identification of patient social risk factors. The program also allows
for flexibility in the screening tool used as long as it covers CMS’s five domains.

With the 2024 Physician Fee Schedule (PES)
<https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2023/11/16/2023-24184/medicare-and-

medicaid-programs-cy-2024-payment-policies-under-the-physician-fee-schedule-and-
other> and 2024/2025 IPPS rules, CMS continues to expand the scope of its policies
related to SDOH.

In the PFS rule, Community Health Integration (CHI) and Principal Illness Navigation
(PIN) involve services associated with new outpatient G codes, which are distinct from Z
codes and used to identify procedures and services not included in the standard Current
Procedural Terminology coding system. These codes can be billed at certain initiating
provider visits, including most types of evaluation and management (E/M) visits. CHI
services include personnel (for example, community health workers) under clinician

https://www.healthaffairs.org/content/forefront/restructuring-medicare-payments-address-homelessness 2/6


https://www.cms.gov/files/document/z-codes-data-highlight.pdf
https://public-inspection.federalregister.gov/2024-07567.pdf
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2023/11/16/2023-24184/medicare-and-medicaid-programs-cy-2024-payment-policies-under-the-physician-fee-schedule-and-other

8/19/24, 12:53 PM Restructuring Medicare Payments To Address Homelessness | Health Affairs Page 316 of 319

supervision helping to address SDOH barriers (for example, assistance with Section 8
housing applications) that impede clinicians from effective patient diagnosis or
treatment. PIN services are for high-risk conditions (for example, cancer, substance use
disorders, HIV) lasting at least three months requiring coordination among multiple
specialties and involve auxiliary personnel helping patients adhere to treatment plans
(for example, scheduling post-discharge appointments). Importantly, providers billing
for CHI and PIN services are directly reimbursed for services provided by personnel, as
long as specific criteria are met. Another standalone G code for using a SDOH assessment
tool can be paired with E/M visits biannually to help identify barriers to treatment.

The 2024 IPPS rule reclassified Z codes corresponding to homelessness, including
unspecified homelessness and sheltered or unsheltered homelessness, so that they are
now considered a comorbidity (CC) instead of non-comorbidity. This change resulted in
increased hospital reimbursements, specifically to the base reimbursement associated
with a given diagnosis-related group. In the 2025 IPPS proposed rule, Z codes for
inadequate housing and housing instability are also considered CC. These
reclassifications are based on CMS’s mathematical analysis <https://public-
inspection.federalregister.gov/2024-07567.pdf> of claims data, indicating higher

resource use for acute inpatients, and CMS’s application of specific principles for
assigning CC status. CMS states that it is open to future expansion of reimbursements for
other SDOH-related Z codes to promote usage and yield insights into health inequities.

Considerations And Challenges

By incentivizing providers to collect SDOH data, particularly for homelessness, CMS
intends to encourage the delivery of holistic patient care that accounts for the many
social and economic drivers of individual well-being. Reimbursement of Z codes for
homelessness should lead to improved accounting of costs for providers, as homeless
individuals can be high-utilizers of emergency department (ED) services
<https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s11606-022-07809-6> and often require
costlier care. By paying for CHI and PIN services, CMS aims to promote linkage of
outpatients to social resources and contribute to improved treatment outcomes.
However, challenges remain related to how health systems will operationalize these

changes, gather specific and useful information, and practically impact homelessness in
the communities they serve.

Many providers have yet to invest in accurate collection and effective application of
SDOH data. A survey of individuals in health information management

<https://ahima.org/media/o3dbonub/ahima_sdoh-data-report.pdf> indicates that

https://www.healthaffairs.org/content/forefront/restructuring-medicare-payments-address-homelessness 3/6


https://public-inspection.federalregister.gov/2024-07567.pdf
https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s11606-022-07809-6
https://ahima.org/media/03dbonub/ahima_sdoh-data-report.pdf

8/19/24, 12:53 PM Restructuring Medicare Payments To Address Homelessness | Health Affairs Page 317 of 319

although homelessness is the second-highest collected SDOH domain, there continues to
be lack of data standardization and integration, insufficient staff training, and limited
data application toward community referrals. Although the IQR program’s newly
required measures should promote standardized screening for SDOH data, providers
must also develop robust processes to ensure reliable information capture. This involves
embedding screening tools into existing staff workflows within electronic health records
and providing clear instruction on consistent use. CMS should provide specific
administrative and technical guidance to help providers develop SDOH data
infrastructure.

Differentiating between levels of housing insecurity is important given differences in
circumstances and approaches to treatment and engagement. For example, sheltered
homelessness suggests not only increased access to resources (for example, food,
medication storage, support in applying for benefits programs) but also greater ability to
engage with services. Those who are unsheltered face additional barriers to treatment
and often must be engaged by certain outreach services on an unstructured basis.
Although screening results and distinct codes for homelessness types provide some
meaningful clarity, they may be insufficient to give providers insight into the drivers of
social conditions. Consider the population of individuals who receive social security
income and use the greater portion of their funds to support drug dependency. These
individuals require increased engagement toward substance use disorder treatment
alongside housing interventions. Consequently, CMS should explore ways to encourage
providers to more completely understand each individual’s situation so that care plans
appropriately address not only social needs but also root causes.

Although CHI and PIN service availability for outpatients is important, the ED is the
most common setting where homeless populations receive care, and many have
significant difficulty connecting with post-discharge care. Because ED clinicians cannot
follow up with patients, CMS excludes them from billing under these CHI and PIN codes
<https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2023/11/16/2023-24184/medicare-and-
medicaid-programs-cy-2024-payment-policies-under-the-physician-fee-schedule-and-
other> , but the possibility of allowing them to do so could encourage EDs to bridge
patients to outpatient care and address SDOH earlier. CMS should facilitate payment of
these services for individuals at higher levels of care by creating financing structures to
support this.

Reimbursing Z and G codes may be insufficient to modify organizational behavior
regarding SDOH. Only providers with significant Medicare populations may gain
substantive revenue from these reimbursements, and there is no guarantee that

https://www.healthaffairs.org/content/forefront/restructuring-medicare-payments-address-homelessness 4/6


https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2023/11/16/2023-24184/medicare-and-medicaid-programs-cy-2024-payment-policies-under-the-physician-fee-schedule-and-other

8/19/24, 12:53 PM Restructuring Medicare Payments To Address Homelessness | Health Affairs Page 318 of 319

providers will invest any additional revenue back into interventions that aid homeless
populations. Providers accustomed to serving disadvantaged populations, such as safety-
net hospitals, may be more inclined to make these kinds of investments; although, even
some providers with mandates for community investment, such as not-for-profit
hospitals, operate in ways misaligned with their purported mission. Inducing providers
to address SDOH may require greater incentives.

Health systems have developed programs that are effective at addressing homelessness;
however, they have not been widely deployed because many perceive them as financially
unsustainable. For example, crisis residential services (CRS) are designed as an
alternative to EDs and jails for individuals with acute psychiatric illness at higher risk of
homelessness. CRS often include case management to assist individuals in connecting
with housing on discharge. Although these services have costs, they have demonstrated
health system savings
<https://jamanetwork.com/journals/jamanetworkopen/fullarticle/2780864> .

Medicaid grants and waivers—such as 1915(c) home and community-based service
waivers—present opportunities for providers to deliver these kinds of services to
populations in need. However, Medicare does not always cover the same kinds of
services, and a significant proportion of Medicare enrollees are not dual eligible
<https://www.cms.gov/files/document/z-codes-data-highlight.pdf> . In 2019, 17.9
percent of Medicare patients with Z59 codes were not Medicaid eligible. For this
population, reimbursing Z codes absent an appropriate range of services addressing
underlying negative SDOH will leave their needs recorded but unaddressed. We believe
CMS should review services covered by Medicaid programs and remedy this disparity by
expanding its coverage of effective interventions targeting SDOH in Medicare.

Although health systems are designed to deliver health care, they are increasingly viewed
as entities with large influence on SDOH. Recognizing their impacts on health care costs
and quality, particularly for homelessness, CMS has taken important steps to encourage
providers to address SDOH more meaningfully. Advancing this work will require
continued thoughtful investment to bridge the gaps in our system’s ability to address
patients’ full range of needs.

Article Metrics

<https://www.altmetric.com/details.php?
domain=www.healthaffairs.org&citation_id=165424621>

https://www.healthaffairs.org/content/forefront/restructuring-medicare-payments-address-homelessness 5/6


https://www.altmetric.com/details.php?domain=www.healthaffairs.org&citation_id=165424621
https://www.healthaffairs.org/doi/10.1377/hlthaff.2020.01627
https://jamanetwork.com/journals/jamanetworkopen/fullarticle/2780864
https://www.cms.gov/files/document/z-codes-data-highlight.pdf

8/19/24, 12:53 PM Restructuring Medicare Payments To Address Homelessness | Health Affairs Page 319 of 319

Related
CONTENT A
Housing
TOPICS A
Housing

Health Care Providers
Patient Care

Medicare Eligibility
Costs And Spending
Systems Of Care
Emergency Departments
Quality Of Care

Organization Of Care

Cite As

"Restructuring Medicare Payments To Address Homelessness", Health Affairs Forefront,
July 16, 2024.

DOI: 10.1377/forefront.20240715.364948

https://www.healthaffairs.org/content/forefront/restructuring-medicare-payments-address-homelessness 6/6


https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/pt_2464
https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/2464
https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/116
https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/1901
https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/2044
https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/83
https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/2190
https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/612
https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/57
https://www.healthaffairs.org/topic/1554

	Agenda
	I. DECLARATION OF QUORUM
	II. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	A. Approve Minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting Held on Thursday, July 23, 2024

	IV. BOARD CHAIR’S REPORT
	V. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
	VI. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ACTIONS
	A. Governance Committee Reports and/or Action
	B. Resource Committee Report and/or Action
	C. Quality Committee Report and/or Action
	D. Program Committee Report and/or Action
	E. Foundation Report and/or Action
	1. Board Room Designation


	VII. CONSENT AGENDA
	A. FY'24 Year-to-Date Budget Report-July
	B. August 2024 Contracts Renewals Over 250K
	C. August 2024 Contract Amendments over 250K
	D. August 2024 Interlocal Agreement
	E. Corporate Card
	F. Development and Management for Mental Health and IDD Services Waiver/Interest  List 
	G. Drug and Alcohol Testing Pre-Employment 
	H. Drug-Free Workplace 
	I. Employee Counseling, Supervision, Progressive Discipline, and Termination 
	J. Employment Eligibility Verification for Workers in the United States 
	K. Guidelines for The Use of Purchase Orders for Goods and Non-Community Services
	L. Incident Response Policy 
	M. Information Security Policy 
	N. Least Restrictive Interventions and Management of Aggressive Behavior 
	O. Off-Premises Equipment Usage 
	P. Payment of Accrued Leave Upon Separation 
	Q. Performance Reporting and Monitoring of Service Contracts 
	R. Pharmacy Services and Outpatient Prescription Purchase Plan 
	S. Professional Practice Evaluation Policy 
	T. Sexual Harassment Policy 
	U. The Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and/or Services 
	V. The Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and/or Services Dollar Limit Threshold & Requirements 
	W. The Use of Service and Assistance Animals in the Harris Center Facilities Pertaining to Patients and Visitors 
	X. Vehicle Operations 
	Y. Workforce Member Network Internet Use Policy 
	Z. Accident Reporting Policy 
	AA. Crisis Stabilization Unit- Workplace Violence Prevention 
	AB. Delegation of Medical Acts for Nurses, Licensed Vocational Nurses, Licensed Social Workers, and Unlicensed Staff 
	AC. Drug Diversion Reporting and Response Policy 
	AD. Harris Center Disaster & Emergency Response Plan 
	AE. Out-of-State Employment 
	AF. Pharmacy Hazardous Drugs Policy 
	AG. Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee Policy 
	AH. Pharmacy Staff Training Policy 
	AI. Tenant Selection Policy 
	AJ. Bylaws of The Professional Review Committee of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD with Signature 
	AK. Cash Receipts & Bank Deposits 
	AL. Cellular Phone Distribution and Management
	AM. Center-related Meeting Expense 
	AN. Charity Care Policy 
	AO. Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/ Individual Health Information 
	AP. Disposal of Fixed Assets 
	AQ. Dues and Membership Fees
	AR. Infection Control Plan/Airborne Precautions
	AS. Investment Policy 
	AT. IRB Research Procedures and the Committee for the Protection of Human Subjects 
	AU. Moonlighting
	AV. Pharmacy and Unit Medication/Drug Inventory 
	AW. Professional Review Committee 
	AX. Signature for Authorization 
	AY. Travel Policy 
	AZ. Whistleblower
	BA. Writing Off Self Pay Balances 
	BB. Crisis Stabilization Unit-Workplace Violence Prevention Plan
	BC. FY2025 Budget Review
	BD. FY 2025 Capital Budget Review
	BE. Human  Resource Insurance Update
	BF. Commercial Insurance Renewal

	VIII. REVIEW AND TAKE ACTION
	A. Board Room Designation
	B. FQHC Update
	C. FY2025-FY2027 Strategic Plan
	D. Capital Bond Issuance Update

	IX. REVIEW AND COMMENT
	A. Legislative Priorities

	X. EXECUTIVE SESSION
	•	As authorized by §551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Board of Trustees reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at anytime during the course of this meeting to seek legal advice from its attorney about any matters listed on the agenda.

•	In accordance with §§551.071 and 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, discussion of a personnel matter and contemplated litigation in Case 4:23-cv-00297 Christian Thompson v. The Harris Center for Mental Health & IDD. Kendra Thomas, General Counsel and Bijul Enaohwo, Assistant General Counsel-Legal Services

•	In accordance with §§551.071 and 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, discussion of a personnel matter and contemplated litigation EEOC Charge No. 460-2024-00011, Jimaisha Yett v. the Harris Center for Mental Health & IDD. Kendra Thomas, General Counsel  

•	In accordance with §551.071 of the Texas Government Code, to seek legal advice related to the FQHC application process and the co-applicant agreement.  Kendra Thomas, General Counsel

•	In accordance with §§551.071 and 551.072 of the Texas Government Code, to consult with attorney about the due diligence related to the potential acquisition of real property for a youth residential program. Wayne Young, CEO and Ernest Savoy, Assistant General Counsel-Contract Services



	XI. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION                                                       
	XII. CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION AS A RESULT OF THE EXECUTIVE SESSION
	XIII. INFORMATION ONLY
	A. Practical Steps to Integrating NMDOH Screening and Referral Program
	B. Restructuring Medicare Payments to Address Homelessness Article

	XIV. ADJOURN
	



______________________________________
Veronica Franco, Board Liaison
Robin Gearing, Ph.D., Chair, Board of Trustees
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD




